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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows

T Freyman (resigned | January 2013)
C Soenderby (resigned 1 January 2013)
M Smuth (resigned | January 2013)
S Hudson (resigned 1 January 2013)
The following directors were appointed after the year end
W Chase (appomted 1 January 2013)
M Regan (appomnted 1 January 2013)
G White (appointed 1 January 2013)

Prineipal activity
The company's principal activity 1s that of a holding company During 2012 the company's subsidiary, Abbott
Australasia Pty Ltd, spun off the company's research based pharmaceutical products division into a new

company, Abbvie Pty Linited  On the 27th June 2012 the company changed its name to Abbvic Australasia
Holdings Limited

On 22 June 2012 the company reduced 1its share capital by cancelling 100 ordinary shares of £1 each and
cancelling the share premium account of the company £18,520,000 and increasing the distributable reserves of
the company by £18,520,100

During August 2012, the company distributed a dividend in specie the shareholding of Abbott Australasia Pty
Ltd to Abbott Holding (Gibraltar) Ltd, at its book value of £18,520,000

During July 2012 the company subscribed for 23,000,000 ordinary shares of 1 AUD, in Abbvie Pty Ltd Then
during August 2012, the immediate parent company Abbvie (Gibraltar) Ltd made a capital contribution to the
company of £15,278,000

Business review

Fair review of the business

As shown m the company's profit and loss account, the loss afler tax for the year was £13,000 (2011
£31,745,000 profit)

Principal risky and uncertainties

The company has considerable financial resources and as a consequence, the directors believe that the company
15 well placed 1o manage 1ts business successfully despite the current economic outlock After making enquiries,
the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
prepaning the annual report and accounts

Drrectors' habilites

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

cesemness COMTinUued

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the company auditor 1s aware of that information The
directors confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and which they know the auditor 1s
unaware of

Reappomtment of auditors
The currem auditors, Deloitte LLP, have expressed a wish to resign after completion of the 31 December 2012
accounts The directors are expecting to appomnt Emst & Young LLP to fill the casual vacancy

Approved py the Board on 24 September 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

K Poots
Company pgcretary
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements mn accordance with Unmited Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphcable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Comparmes Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other iregularities
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)

We have audited the financial statements of AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia
Holdings Limited) for the year ended 31 December 2012, set out on pages 6 to 12 which comprise the profit and
loss account, the balance sheet and related notes 1 to 14 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied n their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accerdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them m an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully m the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities (set out on page 3), the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Audttors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting pohicies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information mn the Directors’ Report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the tmplications for our report

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opmion the financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its loss for the
year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

* have been prepared 1in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinwon on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of

AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)

wereenees CORTIRUEd

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report i respect of the following matters where the Compamies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, 1n our opinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

/%.ar/ﬁ_,_r

Richard Muschamp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

24 September 2013
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)

Profit and Loss Account for the
Year Ended 31 December 2012

2012 201
Note £000 £ 000
Tumover - -
Admunistrative expenses (13 Q1))
Operating loss (13) (m
Income from shares m group undertakings - 31,749
Other interest recervable and similar income - 6
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (13) 31,745
(Loss)/profit for the financial year 10 (13) 31,745

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations

The company has no recognised gains or losses for the year other than the results above

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited) |
(Registration number: 4324878)
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Note £ 000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Investments 5 15,278 18,520
Current assets
Debtors 6 86 85
Cash at bank and n hand 39 51
125 136
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 7 (15) (13)
Net current assets 110 123
Net assets 15,388 18,643
Capital and reserves
Called up share caputal 8 - -
Share premium account 10 - 18,520
Other distributable reserves 10 15,278 -
Profit and loss account 10 110 123 ;
Shareholders' funds 11 15,388 18,643 |

Approved by the Board on 24 September 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

M Regan
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year
and the preceding year, 1s set out below

Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost basis and have been prepared in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

The company is exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as 90% or more of the voting nights are held
within the group

Exemption from preparing group accounts

The company has taken exemption from preparing group accounts as i 1s included in consohidated accounts for
a larger group which are drawn up as full consolidated audited accounts which are filed at Companies House

Going concern

The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect 1ts future development, performance
and position, are set out in the Busmess Review which forms part of the Directors’ Report  After making
enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting n preparing the annual report and accounts

Fixed asset mvestments
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment

Interest Income

Interest income 1s due to the company from cash deposits with affiliated companies or third party banks Interest
income 15 calculated on a daily basis and accrued monthly

Taxation
UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid, or recovered, using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Income from shares 1n group undertakings

Dividend income from subsidiary companies 1s recogmsed on the date the directors of the subsidiary declare the
dividend

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date Tmung differences are differences between the company's taxable profits and 1ts results as stated 1n
the accounts that arise from the inclusion of gainis and losses in tax assessments n periods different from those
in which they are recognised in the accounts A net deferred tax asset 1s recogmised as recoverable only when, on
the basis of available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted Deferred tax 1s not
discounted

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transacttons are translated nto sterling at the rates ruling at the transaction date Amounts
payable or receivable in foreign currency are transiated nto sterling at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date,
or where appropriate, at the rate of exchange 1n a related forward exchange contract Any gams or losses are
reported as exchange differences 1n the profit and loss account
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

vaeneenes CONtinued

2  Auditor's remuneration

2012 201
£000 £000

Audit of the financial statements 5 5

3 Staff Costs

During the current and prior year all the directors were paid by other affiliates within the Abbott group of
compantes The directors received no emoluments from the company The company has no other employees

4 Taxation

Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities

2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000

Total current tax - -

Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

Tax on {loss)/profit on ordinary activities for the year 1s higher than (2011 - lower than) the standard rate of
corporation tax n the UK of 24 5% (2011 - 26 5%)

The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011

£000 £ 000
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (13) 31,745
Corporation tax at standard rate 3 8412
Dividends not subject to UK Corporation tax - (8413
Losses carried forward 2 2
Losses brought forward - N

Group relief surrendered to other group companies ] -

Total current tax - -
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

ceseennes CORtINUE

Investments held as fixed assets

Shares in group undertakings and participating interests

Cost

At 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2012
Net book value

At 31 December 2012

Details of undertakings

The company has investments 1n the following subsidiary

Country of
Incorporation

Abbvie Pty Ltd Australia

Debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors

Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully payd

Page 10

Subsidiary
undertakings Total
£ 000 £ 000
18,520 18,520
15,278 15,278
(18,520) (18,520)
15,278 15,278
15,278 15,278
Principal Share Class Holdin
Activity &
Healthcare  Ordinary 100%
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
86 85
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
3 1
12 12
15 13

31 December
2012

£000

31 December
201t

£000




AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

veerseass CORtinuted

I ordinary share (2011 101) of £1 each

9 Dvidends

2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
Dividends paid
Current year interim dividend paid 18,520 31,735
Interim dividend paid of £18,520,000 (2011 £314,208) per ordinary share
10 Reserves
Share
premium Other Profit and
account reserves loss account Tetal
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 1 January 2012 18,520 - 123 18,643
Loss for the year - (13) (13)
Dividends - {18,520 (18,520)
Other reserve movements (18,520) 15,278 18,520 15,278
At 31 December 2012 15278 110 15,388
11 Reconcihation of movement in shareholders' funds
2012 2011
£ 000 £ 000
(Loss)/profit attnibutable to the members of the company (13) 31,745
Capital contributions 1n the year 15,278 -
Dividends (18,520) (31,735)
Net (reduction)/addition to sharcholders' funds (3,255) 10
Shareholders' funds at 1 January 18,643 18,633
Shareholders' funds at 31 December 15,388 18,643

12 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing

transactions with other members of the group
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AbbVie Australasia Holdings Limited (formerly Abbott Australasia Holdings Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012

......... continued

13 Control

The company 1s controlled by the immediate parent company Abbvie (Gibraltar) Limited, incorporated in
Gibraltar The smallest and the largest group i which the results are consohidated 1s the ultimate parent
company Abbott Laboratonies, mncorporated in the State of Ilhinois, USA The consolidated accounts are
available to the public and may be obtained from Abbott Laboratories Inc, 100 Abbott Park Road, Abbott Park,
1L. 60064-6400, USA

14 Post balance sheet events
On 1 January 2013, Abbett Laboratories completed the spin off of its research based pharmaceutical business

and the ultimate parent company beacome Abbvie Inc, | North Waukegan Road, North Chicago, Illinois,
60064-6400, USA
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AbbVie Inc. and Subsidiaries
Combined Statements of Earnings

years ended December 31 (in millions, except per share data) 2012 2011 2010
Net sales $18,380 $17,444 $15,638
Cost of products sold 4,508 4,639 4,293
Selling, general and admimstrative 4,989 5,894 3,820
Research and development 2,778 2,618 2,495
Acquired in-process research and development 288 673 313
Total operating costs and expenses 12,563 13,824 10,921
Operating carnmings 5,817 3,620 4,717
Interest expense, net 84 (20) (28)
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss 17 (30) (30
Other (income) expense, net (9 2 {(61)
Earnings before income tax 5,725 3,668 4,836
Income tax expense 450 235 658
Net carnings $5275 $3433 $ 4,178
Per share data

Basic and diluted earnings per share(a) $ 335 § 218 § 265

(a) On January 1, 2013, Abbott Laboratories distributed 1,577 miihon shares of AbbVie common
stock The computation of basic and diluted earmings per common share for all periods through
December 31, 2012 was calculated using the shares distributed on January 1, 2013

The accompanying notes aie an mtegral part of these combined financial statements
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AbbVie Inc. and Subsidiaries
Combined Statements of Comprehensive Income

years ended December 31 (in millions)

2012 201 2010

Net earnings

Foreign currency translation gain (loss) adjustments

Pension and post-employment benefits, net of tax benefit of $(24) m 2012,
$(12) m 2011 and $(2) n 2010

Unrealized (loss) gans on marketable equity securities, net of tax (benefit)

$5275 $3433 $4,178
173 (295) (383)

(150) ™ @2

expense of $(15) m 2012, $10 1n 2011 and $4 i 2010 (25) 17 7
Hedging activities, net of tax (benefit) expense of $(8) i 2012, $(8) n 2011
and $10 in 2010 (27) (28) 5

Other comprehensive {oss

(29) (313) (393)

Comprehensive income

$5,246  $3,120 $3,785

The accompanying noles are an miegtal part of these combined financial staiements
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AbbVie Inc, and Subsidiaries
Combined Statements of Cash Flows

years ended December 31 (in mitlions) (brackets denote cash outflows)

2012

2011

2010

Cash flows from operating aclivities
Net earmings

Adjustments to reconcile earmings to net cash from operating activities,

$ 5275 $3433 §$ 4,178

Depreciation 525 508 476
Amortization of intangible assets 625 764 708
Stock-based compensation 187 163 167
Acqured n-process research and development 288 673 313
Other 66 — —
Changes 1n operating assets and habilities, net of acquisitions
Accounts recetvable 223 (498) (60)
Inventories (203) (87 (73)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 90 (206) (38)
Accounts payable and other labilities (731) 1,497 {695)
Cash flows from operating activities 6,345 6,247 4,976
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions and 1nvestments, nct of cash acquired (688) (273) (2,621)
Acquisitions of property and eqmpment (333) (356) (448)
Release of (deposit of) restricted funds — 1,870 (1,870)
Purchases of investment secunitics (2,550) (1,943) (93)
Sales of mvestment securities 1,153 1,255 1
Cash flows from investing activities {2,418) 553 (5,031
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssuance of long-term debt 14,586 — —_
Net change 1n short-term borrowings 1,000 — —
Other (151) (21 (32)
Net transactions with Abbott Laboratories, excluding noncash items (13,504) (6,762) 97
Cash flows from financing activities 1,931 (6,783} 65
Effcct of exchange rale changes on cash and cquivalents 16 — —
Net mcrease 1n cash and cquivalents 5,874 17 10
Cash and equivalents, beginming of year 27 10 —_
Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 5,901 27 10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combimned financial statements
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AbbVie Inc. and Subsidiaries
Combined Balance Sheets

as of December 31 (in millions)

2012 2001

Assets
Current assets
Cash and equivalents

$591 $ 27

Short-term nvestments 2,075 626
Accounts receivable 3,602 3817
Due from Abbott Laboratories 696 —_
Inventories 1,001 872
Deferred mcome taxes 1,446 1,469
Prepaid expenses and other 543 543
Total current assets 15,354 7,354
Investments 119 229
Net property and equipment 2,247 2,144
Intangible assets, net of amortization 2,323 2,910
Goodwill 6,130 6,100
Other assets 835 784

Total assets

$27,008 $19,521

Liabilities and net parent company investment in AbbVie Inc.
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings $1,020 §$ —
Current maturities of long-term debt and lease obligations 22 16

Accounts payable and accrued habilities 4,811 5,881

Due to Abbott Laboralories 923 —
Total current liabilities 6,776 5,897

Long-term habilities 2,239 1,660
Long-term debt and lease obligations 14,630 32

Commitments and contingencies

Parent company equity

Net parent company mvestment in AbbVie Inc 3,713 11,957

Accurnulated other comprehensive (loss) (350) (25)

Total parent company equity

3,363 11,932

Total liabilities and net parent company investment in AbbVie Inc

$27,008 $19,521

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financtal statements
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AbbVie Inc. and Subsidiaries
Combined Statements of Parent Company Equity

Net parent  Accumulated other
company comprehensive
years ended December 31 (1in millions) investment income Total
Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 10973 $ 681 $ 11,654
Net earmings 4178 4,178
Net transactions with Abbott Laboratories 264 204
QOther comprehensive loss (393) (393)
Balance at December 31, 2010 15,415 288 15,703
Net earnings 3,433 3,433
Net transactions with Abbott Laboratories {(6,891) (6,891)
Other comprehensive loss (313) (313)
Balance at December 31, 2011 11,957 (25) 11,932
Net carnings 5,275 5,275
Net transactions with Abbott Laboratories (13,519) (13,519)
Assumption of accumulated unrealized losses on pension and
other post-employment benefits, net of tax benefit of $36 (296) (296)
Other comprehensive loss (29) (29)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 313 $(350) $ 3,363

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these combined financial statements
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AbbVie Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Combined Financial Statements

Note | Basis of Presentation

The principal business of AbbVie Inc (AbbVie or the company) 1s the discovery, development,
manufacture and sale of a broad hine of propnetary pharmaceutical products. Substantially all of
AbbVie’s US sales are to three wholesalers Qutsiie the Umted States, products are sold primarily to
health care providers or through distributors, depending on the market served

On January 1, 2013, AbbVie became an independent company as a result of the distnbution by Abbott
Laboratories (Abbott) of 100 percent of the outstanding common stock of AbbVie to Abbott’s
sharcholders AbbVie was incorporated in Delaware on Apnl 10, 2012 Abbott’s Board of Directors
approved the distribution of 1ts shares of AbbVie on November 28, 2012 AbbVie's Regstration
Statement on Form 10 was declared effective by the US Secunties and Exchange Commussion on
December 7, 2012 On January 1, 2013, Abbott’s sharcholders of record as of the close of business on
December 12, 2012, received one share of AbbVie common stock for every one share of Abbolt’s
common stock held as of the record date AbbVie’s common stock began trading “regular-way” under
the ticker symbol “ABBV” on the New York Stock Exchange on January 2, 2013

The accompanying combined financial statements have been prepared on a stand-alone basis and are
derved from Abbott’s consolidated financial statements and accounting records as if the former
research-based pharmaceutical business of Abbotl had been part of AbbVie for all penods presented
The combined financial statements reflected AbbVie’s financial position, results of operations and cash
flows as 1ts business was operated as part of Abbott prior (o the distribution, in conformity with U S
generally accepled accounting principles

The combmed financial statements ncluded the allocation of certain assets and hiabilities that have
hsstorically been held at the Abbott corporate level but which are specifically identifiable or allocable to
AbbVie Prior to 2012, cash and equivalents, short-term mvestments and restricted funds held by
Abbott were not allocated to AbbVie unless those assets were held by an entity that was transferred to
AbbVie As of December 31, 2012, AbbVie’s combined balance sheet reflected the direct holdings for
AbbVie legal entities All intracompany transactions and accounts have been ehmnated Prior to 2012,
all intercompany transactions between AbbVie and Abbott were considered to be effectively settled
the combined financial statements at the time the transaction was recorded As a resuli, the tolal net
effect of settlement of these intercompany transactions was reflected mn the combined statements of
cash flows as a financig actvity and 1 the combined balance sheet as net parent company mvestment
mn AbbVie As of December 31, 2012, outstanding intercompany transactions between AbbVie and
Abbott are reflected as Due from Abbott Laboratones and Due to Abbott Laboratornies in the
combined balance sheet

AbbVie's combined financial statements included an allocauon of expenses related to certain Abbott
corporale functions, including senior management, legal, human resources, finance, information
technology and quality assurance Thesc expenses have been allocated to AbbVie based on direct usage
or benefil where identifiable, with the remainder allocated on a pro rata basis of revenues, headcount,
square footage, number of transactions or other measures AbbVie considers the expensc allocation
methodology and results to be reasonable for all periods presented However, the allocations may not
be indicative of the actual expenses that would have been incurred had AbbVie operated as an
independent, publicly-traded company for the penods presented

AbbVie employces participated n various benefit and stock-based compensation programs mamntaincd
by Abbott A portion of the cost of those programs was included in AbbVie’s financial statements
However, AbbVie’s combined balance sheet docs not mclude any equity related to stock-based
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compensation plans See Note 9 and Note 10 for a further description of the accounting for
post-cmployment benefits and stock-based compensation, respectively

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The financial statements have been prepared n accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles m the United States and necessarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by
management Actual results could differ from those amounts Significant estimates include amounts for
sales rebates, income taxes, pension and post-employment benefits, valuation of intangible assets and
goodwill, liugation, financial instruments, and nventory and accounts recelvable exposures

Revenue Recognition

AbbVie recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred,
the sales price 1s fixed or determinable and collectability of the sales price 15 reasonably assured
Revenue from product sales s recognized when title and nisk of loss have passed to the customer
Provistons for discounts, rebates and sales incentives (o customers and returns and other adjustments
are provided for m the period the related sales are recorded. Sales ncentives to customers arc not
material Historical data 1s readily available and reliable, and 1s used for estumatmg the amount of the
reduction m gross sales Revenue from the launch of a new product, from an improved version of an
existing product, or for shipments in excess of a customer’s normal requirements arc recorded when the
conditions noted above are met In those situations, management records a returns reserve for such
revenue, 1if necessary Sales of product rights for marketable products are recorded as revenue upon
disposition of the rights

Research and Development Costs

Internal research and development (R&D) costs are expensed as mncurred Climcal trial costs ncurred
by third parties are expensed as the contracted work 1s performed Where contingent milestone
payments are due to third parties under rescarch and development collaborations for
pre-commercialization milestones, the milestone payment obligations are expensed when the milestone
results are achieved Payments made to third parties subsequent to regulatory approval are capitalized
and amortized over the remaimning uscful life of the related product Amounts capitahzed for such
payments are included n intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization

Advertising

Costs associated with advertising are expensed i the year incurred and are ncluded 1n selling, general
and admimstrative expenses (SG&A) Adverusing expenses were $506 mithon, $375 million and
$290 rmillion 1n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits

AbbVie records annual expenses relating to its pension benefit and other posi-employment plans based
on calculations which include vartous actuarnal assumptions, including discount rates, assumed asscl
rates of return, compensation cicases, turnover rates and health care cost trend rates AbbVie reviews
its actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications 10 the assumptions based on
current rates and trends Actuarial losses and gains are amortized over the remarming service attribution
periods of the employees under the corndor method, 1 accordance with the rules for accounting for
post-employment benefits Differences between the expected long-term return on plan assets and the
actual annual return are amortized over a five-year period
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AbbVie employees participate 1n defined benefit pension and other post-employment plans sponsored
by Abbott, which include participants of Abbott’s other businesses. Such plans are accounted for as
multiemployer plans 1n the historical financial statements for AbbVie and, as a resuli, no assel or
liability was recorded by AbbVie in the historical combined balance sheets to recognize the funded
status of these plans In 2013, subsequent to the separation from Abbott, AbbVie’s portion of the
defined benefit pension plans will be separated from the Abbott defined benefit pension plans at which
time the funded status for each plan will be reflected in the AbbVie combined balance sheets using 2
December 31, 2012 measurement date In addition to participation in defined benefit pension and
other post-employment plans sponsored by Abbott, AbbVie is the sole sponsor for certan defined
benefit pension and other post-employment plans The funded status of these plans have been recorded
in the combmed balance sheets for AbbVie at December 31, 2012

Refer to Note 9 for information regarding AbbVie’s pension and post-employment plans

Income Taxes

Income taxes on carnings reflect the annual cffective rates, mncluding charges for interest and penalties
Deferred mcome taxes are provided for the tax effect of temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and habilities and their reported amounts n the financial statements based on enacted tax
laws and rates. The combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 has been appropnately revised to
mcrease deferred tax habihities 1 long-term habilities by $156 mullion, decrease deferred tax assets in
other assets by $136 million, and decrease net parent company investment n AbbVie by $292 mallion to
properly reflect temporary differences attributable to AbbVie assets

In AbbVie’s combined financial statements, icome tax expense and deferred tax balances have been
calculated on a separate tax return basis although AbbVie’s operations have hustorically been mcluded
in the tax returns filed by the respective Abbott entities of which the AbbVie business 1s a part In the
future, as a stand-alone entily, AbbVie will file tax returns on its own behalf and ns deferred taxes and
effective tax rate may differ from those 1n the historical periods

AbbVie does not mamtam an income taxes payable to/from account with Abbott With the exception of
certain entities outside the United States that transferred to AbbVie at separation, AbbVie 1s deemed
to have settled current tax balances with the Abbott tax paying entities i the respective jurisdictions
These settlements were reflected as changes in net parent company nvestment

Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include ume deposits and money market funds with ongmal maturiues of three
months or less

Investments

Short-term mvestments consist primartly of time deposits and U S Treasury secuntics and are carnicd
at fair value Investments n marketable equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and arc
recorded at fan value with any unrealized holding gains or losses, net of tax, mcluded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) Investments in equity securities that are not traded on pubhic stock
cxchanges and held-to-maturity debt securitics are recorded at cost

AbbVie reviews the carrying value of mvestments each quarter to determine whether an other than
temporary dechine in market value exists AbbVie considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investee operates n and general equty market trends The company
considers the length of tme an vestment’s market value has been below cost and the near-term
prospects for recovery When AbbVie determines that an other than temporary declinc has occurred,
the cost basis mvestment 1s written down with a charge 10 income and the available-for-sale securities’
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unrealized loss 1s recognized as a charge to income and removed from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss} (AOCI)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts reccivable are stated at their net reahzable value The allowance agamst gross accounts
recewvable reflects the best estimate of probable losses mnherent 1n the recewvables portfolio determined
on the basis of historical experience, specific allowances for known troubled accounts and other
currently available information Accounts recewvable are written off after all reasonable means to collect
the full amount (including liugation, where appropnate) have been exhausted The allowance was

$178 million at December 31, 2012 and $161 million at December 31, 2011

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-1n, first-out basis) or market Cost includes material
and conversion costs Inventories, net, consist of the following

as of December 31 (in millions) 2012 2011
Finished goods $ 547 $429
Work-1n-process 286 207
Matenals 258 236
Inventories, net $1,001 $872

Property and Equmipment

as of December 31 (in mulions) 2012 2011
Land $§ 94 §$ 106
Buildings 1,278 1,305
Equipment 4,865 4,331
Construction 1n progress 305 206
Property and equpment, gross 6,542 5,948
Less accumulated depreciation (4,295) (3,804)
Property and cquipment, net $2247 §2,144

Depreciation for property and equipment 1s recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets The estimated useful hfe for buildings ranges from 15 to 66 years, with an average
depreciation period of 25 years, and five to 35 years for equipment, with an average depreciation
penod of 10 years Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the related facihty lease
(including any renewal periods, if appropriate) or the asset, whichever 1s shorter Depreciation expensc
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $525 million, $508 mtihion and

$476 nullion, respecuvely Equipment includes certain computer software and software development
costs mcurred i connection with developing or obtaming software for intcrnal use Assels under capital
leases included m property and equipment m the combined balance sheets are not material

Litigation

Loss contingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s best esumate of a loss
When a best estimale cannot be made, a mmmmum loss contingency amount 1s recorded Legal fees are
cxpensed as incurred
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Product Liability

AbbVie accrues for product hiability claims, on an undiscounted basis, when 1t 1s probable that a
hiability has been mcurred and the amount of the hiability can be reasonably esumated bascd on existing
mmformation The hiabilities are adjusted quarterly as additional mformation becomes available.
Recevables for insurance recoveries for product hability claims are recorded as assets, on an
undiscounted basts, when 1t 1s probable that a recovery will be realized

Business Combmnations

Results of operations of acquired companies are included in AbbVie's results of operations as of the
respective acquisition dates Assets acquired and habilities assumed are recognized at the date of
acquisition at therr respective fair values Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair
values of the net assets acquired 1s recognized as goodwill Contingent consideration 1s recognized at
the estimated fair value on the acquisition date, which 1s determined by utihzing a probabihity weighted
discounted cash flow model Subsequent changes to the fair value of contmgent payments are
recogmzed m earnings The allocation of purchase price i certan cases may be subject to revision
based on the final determmation of far value Legal costs, audit fees, business valuation costs and all
other busimess acquisition costs are expensed when incurred

Goodwill and Intangible Assects

Purchased ntangible assets are recorded at fair value using a discounted cash flow model The
discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the uming and amount of future net cash
ftows, nsk, the cost of capital, terminal values and market participants Definite-lived intangibles are
amortized over their esimated useful lives AbbVie reviews the recoverabihity of definite-lived
intangible assets whenever events or changes n circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable Impairment 1s reviewed by comparing projected undiscounted cash flows to be
gencrated by the asset Lo 1ts carrying value If the undiscounted cash flows of an mntangible asset are
less than the carrying value of an mtangible asset, the intangible assct 1s written down to its fair value,
which 1s usually the discounted cash flow amount and a loss 1s recorded equal to the excess of the
asset’s net carrying value over its far value Where cash flows cannot be 1dentified for an indvidual
asset, the review 1s apphed at the lowest level for which cash flows are wdentifiable

Goodwill and indefimte-lived assets are not amortized but are subject to an impairment review annually
and whenever indicators of impairment exist An impairment of goodwill would occur if the carrying
amount of a reporting unit exceeded the fair valuc of that reporting unit, calculated using a weighting
of the income approach and the market approach The fair value under the income approach 1s
calculated as the present value of estimated cash flows discounted using a nisk-free market rate
adjusted for a market participant’s view of similar companies and percewved risks 1 cash flows The fawr
value under the market approach 1s calculated using market multiples for pecr groups applied to the
operating results of the reporting umits to determne fair value The implied fair value of goodwill 15
then determined by subtracting the fair value of all Wdentifiable net assets other than goodwill from the
fair value of the reporting units, with an impairment charge recorded for the excess, if any, of the
carrying amount of goodwill over the imphed fair value Based on the company’s most reccnt annual
imparrment lest performed in the third quarter, the fair value of the reporting umis was substantially m
excess of their carrying valuc

Indefinite-lived assets are tested for impairment by companing the fair value of each intangible asset
with 1ts carrying value The value of indefimte-lived 1s based on the present value of projected cash
flows using an income approach If the carrying value exceeds fair value, the mtangible asset 15
considered impaired and 1s reduced to fair value
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Acquired In-Process Research and Development

The mitial costs of rights to acquired n-process research and development (IPR&D) projects acquired
in an assel acquisition are expensed as IPR&D unless the project has an alternative future use. These
costs include 1mtial payments mcurred prior to regulatory approval in connection with research and
development collaboration agreements that provide rights to develop, manufacture, market and/or sell
pharmaceutical products The fair value of IPR&D projects acquired 1n a business combnation are
capitalized and accounted for as imdefinite-lived ntangible assets until the underlying project receives
regulatory approval, at which pont the intangible asset will be accounted for as a definite-lived
mtangible asset, or discontinuation, at which point the intangible asset will be written off Development
costs incurred after the acquisition are expensed as incurred Indefimite- and definite-lived assets are
subject to impairment reviews as discussed previously.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign subsidiary earmings are translated into U S dollars using average exchange rates The net assels
of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U S dollars using current exchange rates The U.S dollar
effects that arise from translating the net assets of these subsidiaries ai changing rates are recogmzed n
other comprehensive income (OCI) The net assets of subsidiaries in lughly inflauonary economues are
remeasured as 1f the functional currency were the reporting currency The remeasurement 15 recogmzed
mn earnings and 15 immaterial for all years presented

Derivatives

All derwvative mstruments are recogmized as either assets or habihities at fair value n the combined
balance sheets and are classified as current or long-term based on the scheduled maturity of the
mstrument The accounting for changes 1n the fair value of a derivative mstrument depends on whether
it has been formally designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship under the applicable
accounting standards and, further, on the type of hedging relationship

For derwvatives formally designated as hedges, the company assesses at inception and guarterly
thereafter, whether the hedging dervatives are highly effective 1n offsetting changes 1n the fair value or
cash flows of the hedged tem The changes in fair value of a derivative designated as a fair value
hedge and of the hedged item attributable to the hedge nisk are recognized mn earnings immediately
Fair value hedges are used to hedge the interest rate risk associated with certain of the company’s
fixed-rate debt The effective portions of changes 1n the fair value of a derivative designated as a cash
flow hedge are reported in AOCI and are subsequently recogmzed 1n carmings consistent with the
underlying hedged item Cash flow hedges are used to manage exposures from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates

The denwvatives that are not designated and do not qualfy as hedges are adjusted to fair value through
current earnings If 1t 1s deternuned that a derivative 1s no longer highly effective as a hedge, the
company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively Gams or losses are 1immediately reclassified from
AOCI 1o earnings relating to hedged forecasted transactions that are no longer probable of occurring
Gains or losses relating to termmations of effective cash flow hedges in which the forecasted
transactions are still probable of occurring are deferred and recognized consistent with the income or
loss recognition of the underlying hedged items Terminations of a fair value hedge result m a
cumulative fair value adjustment to the hedged items at the date of termuination which 15 amortized (o
carnings over the remaning term of the hedged ntem

Dernvatives, mcluding those that are not designated as a hedge, are principally classified 1n the
operating section of the combined statements of cash flows, consistent with the underlymg hedged em

Refer to Note 8 for mformation regarding AbbVic’s derivative and hedging acuivities
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Earnings per Share

The numerator for both basic and diluted earnings per common share (EPS) 1s net earnings
attributable to AbbVie. The deneminator for basic and diluted EPS 1s based on the number of shares
of AbbVie common stock outstanding on the distribution date On January 1, 2013, the distribution
date, Abbott shareholders of record as of the close of business on December 12, 2012 received one
share of AbbVie common stock for every one share of Abbott’s common stock held as of the record
date

Basic and diluted earmings per common share and the average number of common shares outstanding
were calculated using the number of AbbVie common shares outstanding immediately following the
distribution The same number of shares was used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share
since no AbbVie equity awards were outstanding prior to the distibution

years ended December 31 (in mithons, except per share amounts) 2012 2011 2010

Net earnings $5,275 $3,433 $4,178
Basic and diluted earnings per common share 335 218 265
Basic and diluted average shares outstanding 1,577 1,577 1,577

Note 3 Supplemental Financial Information

Interest Expense, net

years ended December 31 (in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividend imcome $(20) $(20) $(28)
Interest expense 104 — —
Interest expense, net $ 84 $(20) $(28)

Other (Income} Expense

Other (income) expense, net, for 2012 mcluded mmcome of $21 million from the resolution of a
contractual agreement and a loss of $52 million for the impairment of an equity security Other
(income) expense, net, icluded losses of $29 million 1 2012 and $56 mithon 1n 2011 of fair value
adjustments and accretion 1n the contingent consideration related to the acqusition of Solvay SAs U §
pharmaceuticals business (Solvay) Other (income) expense, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also included
ongomg contraciual payments from Takeda associated with the conclusion of the TAP Pharmaceutical
Products Inc jomnt venture in 2008

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

as of December 31 (in millions) 2012 2011

Sales rebales $1,616 $1,537
Accounts payable 556 417
Salarics, wages and commissions 523 435
Royalty license atrangements 398 417
Government nvestigation — 1,509
Acquired IPR&D — 400
Other 1,718 1,166
Accounts payable and accrued habilities $4,811 $5,881
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Long-Term Liabilities

as of December 31 (in mullions) 2012 2011

Deferred mcome taxes $ 360 $ 646
Pension and other post-employment benefits 979 397
Other 900 617
Long-term habilities $2,239 31,660

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The net-of-tax components of AQOCI, a component of parent company equity, were as follows

as of December 31 (1n mullions) (brackets denote loss) 2012 2011

Cumulative foreign currency translation gamn adjustments $181 § 8
Pension and other post-employment benefits (511) (65)
Cumulative unrealized gamns on marketable equily securities 1 26
Curnulative losses/gains on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges (21) 6
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(350) $(25)

Note 4 Acquisitions, Collaborations and Other Arrangements

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, cash outflows related to acquisitions, collaborations and other arrangements
totaled $688 mullion, $273 mullion and $2 6 billion, respectively AbbVie recorded IPR&D charges of
$288 mullion, $673 mlhen and $313 mullion 1n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively The following are the
more significant acquisitions and mvestments, including hicensing and collaboration agreements, some of
which require contingent mlestone payments

Acquisitions
Solvay SA Pharmaceuticals

In February 2010, AbbVie acquired Solvay and certain other product nights for approximately

$1 9 hillion, 1n cash, plus contingent payments of up to EUR 100 milhon per year if certam sales
milestones arc met n 2011, 2012 and 2013 The total consideration was valucd at $2 2 billion, which
mncludes the $1 9 billion cash payment plus the estimated fair value of the mlestone-based contmgent
payments of approximately $290 mulion The estimated fair value of the contingent constderation was
based on the estimated probability of achieving the specified sales milestones discounted based on the
expected timing of payment Subsequent changes to the fair value of contingent payments are
recogmized In earnings

This transaction provides AbbVie with a complementary pharmaceutical product porticho mcluding the
US nghts to AndioGel and Creon, worldwide nights to Duodopa, and various research and
development projects AbbVie acquired control of this business on February 15, 2010, and the financial
results of the acquired operations are included m these financial statements beginning on that date Net
sales of the acquired operations were approximaltely $1 1 billion e 2010 Had the Solvay acquisition
taken place on January 1, 2010, combined net sales and net ecarmngs would not have been signilicantly
different from reported amounts The acquisition was funded with cash and short-term investments
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The allocation of the fair value of the arrangement as of the acquisition date 15 shown mn the table
below

(m bllions)

Acquired intangible assets, non-deductible $18
IPR&D, non-deductible 0.5
Goodwill, non-deductible 04
Deferred income taxes (05)
Total consideration $22

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the asscts acquired and habilities assumed of
approximately $400 million was recorded as goodwill Goodwill 1s attributable to expected synergies and
other benefits AbbVie believed would result from the acquisiion Acquired intangible assets consist
primarily of product nights for currently marketed products and are amoruzed over 2 to 13 years
(average of 8 years) Acquired IPR&D projects are accounted for as indefinite-lived mtangible assets
until regulatory approval or discontinuation

Facet Biotech Corporation

In Apnil 2010, AbbVie acquired the outstanding shares of Facet Biotech Corporation (Facet) for
approximately $430 million, 1n cash, net of cash held by Facet The acquisition enhances AbbVie's
early-and mid-stage pharmaccutical pipeline, including dachzumab, a biologic for multiple sclerosis, and
an oncology compound A substantial portion of the fair value of the acquisition, mcluding $381 milhon
for dachzumab, has been allocated to acquired IPR&D projects that are accounted for as indefinite-
lived intangible assets until regulatory approval or discontinuation Had the Facet acquisition taken
place on January 1, 2010, combined net sales and net earnings would not have been significantly
different from reported amounts

Collaborations and Other Arrangements

The company enters mlo collaborative agreements with third parties to develop and commercialize
drug candidates Collaborative activities may include joint rescarch and development and
commercialization of new products AbbVie generally receves certamn licensing rights under these
arrangements These collaborations oflen require upfront payments and may mclude additional
milestone, rescarch and development cost sharing, royalty or profit share payments, contingent upon
the occurrence of certan future events hinked to the success of the asset in development and
commercialization Upfront payments associated with collaborative arrangements during the
development stage are expensed to IPR&D  Subsequent payments made (o the partner for the
achievement of milestones during the development stage arc expensed to R&D when the milestone 1s
achieved Milestone payments made to the paitner subsequent to regulatory approval are caputalized as
mtangible asscts and amortized to cost of products sold over the estimated uscful life of the related
asset Royally and salcs-based mulestones are expensed as cost of products sold when incurred

Reata Pharmaceuticals, Inc

Durmg 2010 and 2011, AbbVie entered into a series of transactions with Reata Pharmaceuticals, Inc
(Reata) AbbVie acquired equity interests in Reata of $62 nullion each i 2011 and 2010. In 2010,
AbbVie entered nto an agreement to acquire licensing rights outside the United States, excluding
certain Asian markets, to bardoxolone methyl, a product in development for the treatment of chronic
kidney disease, resulting m a charge to IPR&D of $238 million The achievement of certain
development mulestones under the hicense agreement resulted m charges of $50 mullion m 2012 to
R&D and $188 mullion n 2011 to IPR&D Additional payments of up to $150 million could be




required for the achievement of certan development and regulatory milestones associated with the
chronic kidney discase compound m development

In the fourth quarter of 2011, AbbVie entered into a collaboration with Reata for the joint
development and commercialization of second-generation oral antioxidant inflammation modulators
resulting 1 a charge to IPR&D of $400 milhion, which was paid i the first quarter of 2012

On October 17, 2012, Reata nformed AbbVie that 1t 1s discontinuing the Phase I1I clintcal study for
bardoxolone methyl for chronic kidney disease Reata and AbbVie will closely examine the data from
this study to determine whether there 1s an appropriate path forward for the development of
bardoxolone methyl m chronic kidney disease or other indications In the fourth quarter of 2012,
AbbVie recorded a charge of $52 milion mn other (income) expense, net {or the impairment of the
equity investment in Reata

Seattle Genetics, Inc

In October 2012, AbbVie recorded a charge to IPR&D of $28 million as a resull of entering into a
two-year collaboration agreement with Secattle Genetics, Inc to research, develop and commercialize up
to three compounds with Antibody-Drug Conjugate approaches Additional payments of up to

$220 mulhon for each licensed compound may be required based on the achievement of specified
devclopment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement

Action Pharma AIS

In May 2012, AbbVie recorded a charge to IPR&D of $110 million as a result of the acquisition of
ABT-719 (previously referred to as AP214), a drug under development for the prevention of acute
kidney njury associated with major cardiac surgery in patients at increased risk

Galapagos NV

In February 2012, AbbVie recorded a charge to IPR&D of $150 mmllion as a result of entermg into a
global collaboration with Galapagos NV to develop and commercialize a next-generation, oral Janus
Kinase 1 (JAK1) mhibitor 1n Phase 11 development with the potential to treat multiple autoymmune
diseases Additional payments of approximately $1 2 billion could be required for the achievement of
certain development, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement

Biotest AG

In June 2011, AbbVie entered into a global agreement with Biotest AG to develop and commercialize
an anit-CD4, a treatment for rheumatoid arthritis and psoriasis, resuluing 1n an $85 muillion charge to
IPR&D AbbVie could, in the future, be required Lo make additional payments totaling up to

$395 mmillion based on the achievement of certain development, regulatory and commercial milestones
under this agreement

Neurocrnine Biosciences, Inc

In June 2010, AbbVie entered mio an exclusive worldwide agreement with Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc
to develop and commercialize a product for the trcatment of endomeltrioss, resulting m a $75 million
charge to IPR&D AbbVie could, m the future, be required 1o make additional payments of up to $500
million based on the achievement of certain development, regulatory and commercial milestones under
this agrecment
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Note 5 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $6,130 million and $6,100 million,
respectively Changes i the goodwill balance were duc to foreign currency translation As of
December 31, 2012, there were no accumulated goodwill impairment losses

The following table summarizes AbbVie’s intangible assels

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Gross Net Gross Net
carrymg  Accumulated carrymg  carrymg  Accumulated  carrying
{in mullions) amount  amortizalion  amount  amount  amorhization  amount
Dcfimte-lived mtangible assets
Developed product rights $4,699  $(3,031) $1,668 $4,675  $(2,492) $2,183
License agreements 969 (734) 235 949 (647) 302
Total defimte-lhived intangible assets 5,668 (3,765) 1,903 5,624 (3,139 2,485
Indefinite-lived research and
development 420 — 420 425 — 425
Total intangible assets $6,088  $(3,765) $2,323 $6049  $(3,139) $2910

The indefinite-hived intangible assets relate to IPR&D acquired n a business combination
Amortization expense for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $625 million, $764 milhion and $708 million,
respectively. In 2012 and 2011, AbbVie recorded impairment charges of $13 milion and $46 million,
respectively, for certain projects under development These charges arc included 1n R&D cxpenses At
December 31, 2012, the anticipated annual amortization expense for mntangible assets recorded as of
December 31, 2012 was $511 million 1n 2013, $348 mullion 1n 2014, $267 mullion m 2015, $140 mullion
in 2016 and $116 miliion 1n 2017 Intangible asset amortization is included 1n cost of products sold in
the combined statements of earnings Amortizable intangible assets are amortized over 2 to 16 years
with an average of 11 years for both developed product rights and license agreements

Note 6 Restructuring Plans

In 2012 and prior years, AbbVie management approved plans to realign its worldwide manufacluring
operations and selected domestic and nternational commercial and R&D operations in order to reduce
costs In 2012, AbbVie recorded a charge of approxmately $177 miilion for employee severance and
contractual obligations, primarily related to the exit from an R&D facihty with $169 mullion classified 1n
R&D and $8 milhon as SG&A cxpenses In 2011, AbbVie recorded a charge of $160 million reflecting
employee severance and other related charges, with $42 million classified as cost of products sold,

$69 mullion as R&D and $49 million as SG&A cxpenses The following summarizes the activity for
these restructurings

(i nullions)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2009 $ 54
Payments and other adjustments (54)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 —
2011 restructuring charges 160
Payments and other adjustments (70)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 90
2012 restructuring charges 177
Payments and other adjustments (74)
Accrucd balance at December 31, 2012 $193
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An additional $69 million, $26 milion and $7 million were subsequently recorded 1n 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively, relating to these restructurings, primarily for accelerated depreciation

Solvay Plans

In 2010, AbbVie management approved restructuring plans primarnly related to the acquisiion of
Solvay This plan streamlined operations, improved efficiencies and reduced costs in certain Solvay sites
and functions as well as in certam AbbVie and Solvay commercial organizations 1 various countries In
2010, AbbVie recorded a charge of $147 mullion, with $6 million classified 1n cost of products sold,
$126 milhon classified n R&D and $15 milhion classified 1n SG&A expenses The following summarizes
the employee severance activity for this restructuring

(v millions)

2010 employee severance charge $147
Payments and other adjusiments (35)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 112
Payments and other adjusiments (92)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 20
Payments and other adjustments (20)
Accrued balance al December 31, 2012 $ —

An additional $27 mullion and $17 mullion were recorded i 2011 and 2010, respectively, relating to this
restructuring, primarily for accelerated depreciation and assct impairments

Note 7 Debt, Credit Facilities, and Commitments and Contingencies

Long-Term Debt

The following 1s a summary of long-term debt as of December 31, 2012

Effective
interest rate

{in miltions) in 2012(a) 2012

Floating rate notes duc 2015 113% 500
1 2% notes due 2015 124% 3,500
1 75% notes due 2017 182% 4,000
2 0% notes due 2018 212% 1,000
2 9% notes duc 2022 301% 3,100
4 4% notes due 2042 4 50% 2,600
Other — 104
Fair value hedges and unamortized bond discounts — (152)
Total long-term debt and lease oblhigations 14,652
Current portion 22
Noncurrent portion $14,630

{a) Excludes the effect of any related interest rate swaps

In November 2012, AbbVie 1ssued $14 7 illion aggregate principal amount of scaior notes
Approximately $3 0 billion of these senior notes were issued to Abbott as partial consideration for the
transfer of assets from Abbott to AbbVie AbbVie used part of the net proceeds from the sale of senior
notes (other than the senior notes 1ssued to Abbott) to finance the payment made m November 2012
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of a $10.2 billion distribution to Abbott, as provided by the terms of the separation agreement The
debt was guaranteed by Abbott until AbbVie scparated from Abbott on January 1, 2013

AbbVie may redeem all of the senior notes of each seres, other than the floating notes due m 2015, at
any time, and some of the semor notes of each serics, other than the floating notes due n 2015, from
time to time, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the semor notes redeemed plus a
make-wholc premmum, AbbVie may not redeem the floating notes due m 2015 prror to maturty

Debt 1ssuance costs mcurred i connection with the semor note debt offerng, which totaled
$63 million, are being amortized over the respective terms of the notes to mterest expensc m the
combined statements of earnings

At December 31, 2012, the company was i compliance with 1ts senior note covenants

Short-Term Borrowings

At December 31, 2012, short-term borrowings included $1 0 billion of commercial paper borrowings.
The weighted-average nterest rate on short-term borrowings was 04% at Deccmber 31, 2012 AbbVie
has a $2 0 billton unsecured bank credit facihty agreement, which backs the commercial paper program,
and matures 1 July 2017 Abbott was relieved of its obhgations under the credit facility upon
separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013, and AbbVie became the sole obligor of this
facility The credst facihity enables the company to borrow funds on an unsecured basis at floating
nterest rates At December 31, 2012, the company was 1 comphance with 1ts credit facility covenants
Compensating balances and commitment fees are not material

Leases

As part of the separation, AbbVie entered mto agreements to lease certain facilities, mcluding office,
laboratory, and factory and warehouse space, under principally non-cancelable operating leases The
leases generally provide for the company Lo pay taxes, mantenance, insurance and other operating
costs of the leased property AbbVie also leases office space on a short-term basis typically under
cancelable operating leases The company has capital lcase obligations principally for automobiles As
of December 31, 2012, annual future minimum lease payments are not matenal

Future Minimum Lease Payments and Long-Term Debt Maturities

as of and for the years ended December 31 (in millions)

2013 3 22
204 15
2015 4,012
2016 9
2017 4,000
Later years 6,746
Total obhigations and commitments 14,804
Fair value hedges and unamortized bond discounts (152)
Current and long-term debt and lcase obligations $14,652

Contingencies and Guarantees

In connection with the distribution, AbbVie has indemnified Abbott for all habilitses resulting from the
operation of AbbVie’s business other than mmcome tax habditics with respect to periods prior Lo the
distribution date and other habilities as agreed to by AbbVie and Abbott AbbVie has no matersal
exposures 1o off-balance sheet arrangements, no special-purpose entities and no actvities that included
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non-exchange-traded contracts accounted for at fair value. In the ordinary course of business, AbbVie
has periodically entered into third-party agreements, such as the assignment of product nights, which
have resulted in AbbVie becoming secondarily hable for obligations for which AbbVie had previously
been primanly liable Since AbbVie no longer maintans a business relationship with the other parties,
AbbVie 15 unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of future payments, if any,
under these obligations Based upon past expernience, the hkelihood of payments under these
agreements 1s remote  AbbVie penodically acquires a business or product rights in which AbbVie
agrees Lo pay contigent consideration based on attaining certain thresholds or based on the occurrence
of certain events

Note 8 Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measures

Risk Management Folicy

The company 1s exposed to foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate risks related to 11s business
cperations The company’s hedging policy atiempts to manage these risks to an acceptable level based
on the company's judgment of the appropriate trade-off between risk, opportumty and costs The
company uses derivative mstruments to reduce its exposure to foreign currency exchange rates The
company 1s also exposed to the risk that its earmings and cash flows could be adversely impacted by
fluctuations in mterest rates The company periodically enters into mterest rate swaps, based on
judgment, to manage interest costs 1n which the company agrees to exchange, at specified ntervals, the
difference between fixed and floating interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon
notional amount Derivative instruments are not used for trading purposes or to manage cxposure o
changes n interest rates for investment secunties, and none of the company’s outstanding derivative
instruments contain credit risk related contingent features

Financial Instruments

Various AbbVie foreign subsicharies enter mto foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage
exposures lo changes 1n foreign exchange rates for anticipated intercompany transactions denominated
1n a currency other than the functional currency of the locai entity These contracts, totaling §1 0 bilhon
and $249 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, are designated as cash flow hedges and
are recorded at fair value Accumulated gans and losses as of December 31, 2012 will be included in
cost of products sold at the ume the products are sold, generally through the next twelve months

The company enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to manage 1ts exposure to
foreign currency denominated trade payables and recewvables and intercompany loans The contracts
are marked-to-market, and resulting gains or losses are reflected 1n income and are generally offset by
losses or gains on the foreign currency exposure being managed At December 31, 2012 and 2011,
AbbVie held $4 3 bilhon and $3 0 bilhon, respectively, of such foreign currency forward exchange
contracts

AbbVie was a party Lo nterest rate hedge contracts, designated as fair value hedges, totaling

$8 0 billion at December 31, 2012 The effect of the hedge 1s to change a fixed-rate nterest obligation
to a floating rate for that portion of the debt AbbVie recorded the contracts at fair value and adjusted
the carrying amount of the fixed-rate debt by an offsetting amount

78




The following table summarizes the amounts and location of AbbVie’s denivative nstruments as of

December 31

Farr value-—assets

Fair value—labilities

(in millions) 2012 2011 Balance sheet caption 2012 2011 Balance sheet caption
Interest rate swaps designated as fair
value hedges — §— $ 81 $— Long-term liabilities
Foreign currency forward exchange
contracts—
Hedging imstruments 1 18 Prepaid expenses and other 10 — Accounts payable
and accrued habilities
Others not designated as hedges 14 21 Prepaid cxpenses and other 15 43 Accounts payable
and accrued habilihes
Total $15 $39 $106 343

The followng table summarizes the actvity for dervative nstruments and the amounts and location of
income (expense) and gain (loss) reclassified into mcome and for certain other dervative instruments
for the years ended December 31 The amount of hedge meffectiveness was not significant 1n 2012,

2011 and 2010

(Loss) gamn
recognized
i other
comprehensive
(loss) income

Income (expense)
and gain (loss)
reclassified
1nto Income

(in mullions) 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 Income statement caption
Foreign currency forward exchange

contracts—

Designated as cash flow hedges $(11) $(2) $75 $24 318 345 Cost of products sold

Not designated as hedges nfa nfa nfa (23} 30 30 Netforeign exchange (gain) loss
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value

hedges nfa nfa nfa (81) — — Interest expense, net

The loss of $81 mullion related to fair value hedges recognized in net nterest expense mn 2012 was
offset equally by $81 million i gams on the underlymg hedged item, the fixed-rate debt

Fair Value Measures

The fair value hierarchy under the accounting standard for fair value measurements consists of the

following three levels

* Level 1—Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices i active markets for identical assets that

the company has the ability to access,

* Level 2--Valuations based on quoted prices for similar mstruments in active markets, quoted
prices for wdentical or ssmitar instruments m markets that are not active, and model-based
valuations i which all sigruficant puts arc observable i the market, and

* Level 3—Valuations using sigmficant iputs that arc unobservable in the market and include the
use of judgment by the company’s management about the assumptions markel participants would

use 0 pricing the asset or hability
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The {ollowing table summarizes the bases used to measure certain assets and habilities that are carned
at fair value on a recurring basis in the combined balance sheets as of December 31

Basts of far value measurement

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Sigmficant
Balance at identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assels Inputs Inputs
(10 millions) 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Cash and equivalents $5,901 $675 $5,226 3 —
Certificates of deposit 1,775 — 1,775 —
U S Treasury securiies 300 300 — —
Equity securitics 12 12 — —
Forexgn currency forward contracts 15 — 15 —
Total assets $8,003 $987 $7,016 $ —
Liabilities
Interest rate hedges $ 8 3 — 3 8 3 —
Foreign currency forward contracts 25 — 25 —
Contingent consideration 251 — — 251
Total habilities $ 357 $ — 3 106 $251
Basis of fair vajue measurement
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
Bataace at identical observable  unobservable
December 31, assets Inputs inpults
{n mulhons) 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 27 $ 27 $— $—
U S Treasury securiiies 626 626 — —_
Equity securities 58 58 — —
Foreign currency forward contracts 39 — 39 o
Total assets $750 $711 $39 $ —
Liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts $ 43 $— $43 $ —
Contingent consideration 349 — — 349
Total habilities $392 $ — $43 $349

Available-for-sale eqmity secunitics consist of investments for which the fair value 1s deternuned by wsing
the published market price per umt multiplicd by the number of units held, without consideration of
transaction costs The derivatives entered mnto by the company are valued using publicized spot and
forward prices for foreign currency hedges and publicized swap curves for mterest rate hedges The
contingent payments are valued using a discounted cash flow techmque that reflecls management’s
expectations about probabihity of payment

Gross unrealized holding gans on available-for-sale equity securities totaled $1 malhon and $44 million
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

80




There have been no transfers of assets or liabilities between the farr value measurement levels The
following table 1s a reconciliation of the fair value measurements that use significant unobservable

mputs (Level 3), which consist of contingent payments related to acquisitions

(in mllions)

Fair value as of December 31, 2010 $ 295

Other 2
Loss recognized 1n carnings 56

Fair value as of December 31, 2011 349

Payments (134)
Other 7

Loss recogmzed n earnings 29

Fair value as of December 31, 2012 $ 251

In connection with the acquisition of Solvay’s US pharmaceuticals business in 2010, the achievement
of a certain sales milestone resulted 1n a payment of approximately $134 million in 2012 for which a

hability was previously established

In addition to the financial mstruments that the company 1s requited to recognize at fair value on the
combined balance sheets, the company has certamn financial instruments that are recogmized at
historical cost or some basis other than fair value The carrying values and fair values of certain

financial mstruments as of December 31 are shown 1n the table below

A proximate

Book values air values

(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets

Invesiments $ 107 %171 § 104 $17
Liabilities

Shorlt-term borrowings 1,020 — 1,020 —_
Current maturitics of long-term debt and lease obligations 22 16 22 16
Long-tcrm debt and lease oblhigations 14,630 32 15,066 32

The following table summarizes the bases used (0 measure the approximate fair values of the financial

mstruments as of December 31, 2012

Basis of fair value measurement

Quoted prices

In active Significant
markets for other Significant
Farr value at dentical abservable  unobservable
December 31, assels mpuls inputs
{mn millions} 2012 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Investments $ 104 $— $ 32 §72
Total assets $ 104 $— $ 32 $72
Liabilities
Short-term borrowings $ 1,020 $— $ 1,020 §—
Current matunitics of long-term debt and lease
obligations 22 — 22 —
Long-term debt and lease obligations 15,066 — 15,066 —
Total habilities $16,108 $— $16,108 $—
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Investments consist of cost method investments and held-to-matunty debt securities In determining the
fair value of cost method mvestments, the company takes into consideration recent transactions, as well
as the financial information of the investee, which represents a Level 3 basis of fair value measurement
The fair value of held-to-malturity debt securities and long-term debt was estimated based upon the
quoted market prices for the same or similar debt mstruments The fair values of short-term and
current borrowings approximate the carrying values due to the short maturities of these instruments
There were no material adjustments to fair value during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
of assets and lrabihities that are not measured at fair value on a recurning basis, except as discussed 1n
Note 4 regarding the impairment of the company’s investment in Reata The counterparties o financial
instruments consist of select major international financial institutions

Concentrations of Risk

The company nvests excess cash in time deposits, money market funds and U S Treasury secunties and
diversifies the concentration of cash among different financial nstitutions The company monitors
concentrations of credit nisk associated with deposits with financial mstitutions Credit exposure limits
have been established 1o limit a concentration with any single 1ssuer or msutution

Three U S wholesalers accounted for 48 percent and 43 percent of total net accounts receivables as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and substantally all of AbbVie’s U S sales are to these
three wholesalers In addition, governmental accounts in Greece, Portugal, ltaly and Spamn accounted
for 20 percent and 30 percent of total net accounts recevable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively

Note 9 Post-Employment Benefits

Abbott Sponsored Plans

AbbVie employees participated n certain U S and international defined benefit pension and other
post-employment plans sponsored by Abbott These plans included participants of Abbott’s other
businesses and were accounted for as muluemployer plans iIn AbbVie's combined financial statements
As a result, no asset or liability was recorded by AbbVie 1n the historical balance sheets through
December 31, 2012 to recognize the funded status of these plans Abbott made voluntary contributions
1o 1ts defined benefit pension funds that AbbVie accounts for as multiemployer plans totaling

$310 mullion, $289 mullion and $439 million s 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively The muluemployer
pension plans were approximately 94 percent and 99 percent funded as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively In connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013, these
plans will be separated and Abbott will transfer certain liabilitics and assets of these plans to AbbVic
The estimated amounts that will be assumed by AbbVic 1n 2013 are shown m the tablc below

Other
Defined post-employment
(in mullions} benefit plans plans
Accumulated bencfit obligations $ 2,456 $318
Deferred losses (1,422) (59)
Projected benefit obligations 2,929 318
Fair value of assets 2,295 —
Net hability 3 634 $318

For Abbott sponsored defimed benefit and post-employment benefit plans, AbbVie recorded expenses
of $200 million 1n 2012 and $150 million in both 2011 and 2010
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AbbVie Sponsored Plans

AbbVie 1s the sole sponsor for cerlan other defined benefit pension and other post-employment plans,
which have been reflected 1n the combined balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 During
2012, 1 preparation for the separation from Abbott, certain pension and other post-employment
benefit plans were assumed by AbbVie and have been reflected in the December 31, 2012 combined
balance sheet AbbVie made voluntary contributions to the AbbVie sponsored pension plans of

$46 mitlion, $64 mllion and $50 million n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively In the first quarter of
2013, AbbVie made a voluntary contribution of $145 million to its main domestic defined benefit

pension plan, which was assumed in 2013

The benefit plan information 1n the table below pertans to the AbbVie sponsored pension and other

post-employment plans

Other
Defined post-employment
benefit plans plans

as of and for the years ended December 31 (in millions) 2012 2011 2012
Projected benefit obligations
Begmning of period $ 049 5636 $ —
Service cost 21 18 —
Interest cost 38 32 —
Assumption of plan hiabilities 797 — 231
Actuanal loss (gain) 182 1) —
Benefits paid (40)  (35) —
Other, primarnly foreign currency translation loss (gain) 22 1) —
End of penod $1,669 § 649 $ 231
Fair value of plan assets
Beginmng of period $ 230 $20m § —
Actual return on plans asscts 42 — —
Company contnbutions 46 64 —
Assumption of plan assets 620 — —
Benefits paid (40)  (35) —
End of period 898 230 —
Funded status at December 31 $(771) $(419) $(231)
Amounts recognized m combined balance sheets
Other assets $ 11 5 — $ —
Current habilities 27 (22) (N
Long-term habihities (755) (397 (224)
Net liability at December 31 $ (77 (419 $(231)
Actuanal losses, net $ 526 § 97 $ 69
Pnor service cost 10 1 (0
AOCI at December 31 $ 536 § 98 $ 68

The projected benefit obligations (PBO) n the table above mcluded $1 1 billion and $405 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, related to international defined benefit pension plans winch
are generally not funded, 1n accordance with local regulations Benefit payments for those plans are

funded from company assets




For plans reflected 1n the table above, the accumulated benefit obligations (ABO) were $1 5 billion and
$620 multtion at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively For those plans reflected i the table above
n which the ABO exceeded plan assets at December 31, 2012, the ABO, PBO and aggregate plan
assets were $951 mullion, $1.0 bilhon and $278 mullion, respectively

Amounts Recognized m AOCI and OCI

The pension and other post-employment plans’ gains or losses and prior service costs or credits not yet
recognized 1n net pertodic benefit cost are recognized on a net-of-tax basis 1n AOCI and will be
amortized to net periodic benefit cost in the future The following 1s a summary of the pretax losses
included 1in OCI for 2012 and 2011

(i mllions)

Actuarial loss $167
Prior service cost 9
Amortization of prior service cost and actuanial losses Q)
Foreign exchange loss 5
Total pretax loss recognized n OCI at December 31, 2012 $174
Actuarial loss $19
Amortization of prior service cost and actuarial losses {2
Foreign exchange loss 2

Total pretax loss recognized m OCI al December 31, 2011 $ 19

The pretax amount of actuarial losses and prior service cost mcluded m AOCI at December 31, 2012
that 15 expected to be recognized m the net periodic benefit cost m 2013 15 $32 mullion for defined
benefit plans and $3 mithon for other post-employment plans

Net Periodic Benefit Cost

years ended December 31 {in nillions) 2012 2011 2010
Service cost $21 $18 $15
Interest cost 38 32 32
Expected return on plans asscts (29) (21) (16)
Amortization of actuarial losses and prior service costs 7 2 1
Net perodic pension benefit cost $37 $31 §$32

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used in Deternuning Benefit Obligations at the Measurement Date

2012 2011
Discount rate 40% 51%
Rate of compensation mcrcases 39% 42%

The assumptions above, which were used n calculating the December 31, 2012 measurement date
benefit obligations, will be used m the calculation of net pertodic benefit cost 1n 2013
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Weighted-Average Assumptions Used in Deternuning Net Penodic Benefit Cost

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 51% 50% 5.4%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 85% 85% 8.5%
Expected rate of change in compensation 42% 41% 3.7%

Penseton Plan Assets

Basis of fair value measurement
Quoted prices in ~ Significant other Significant

Balance at active markels for observable unobservable
December 31, identscal assets Inputs inputs

(im millions) 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equities

US large cap(a) $232 $232 $ — $—

U S mud cap(b) 45 31 14 —

International(c) 276 234 4?2 —
Fixed mncome securities

US government securities(d) 73 24 49 —_

Corporate debt instruments(e) 109 93 16 -

Government Securitics International 26 26 — —

Other 2 1 1 —
Absolute return funds(f) 20 22 37 k3|
Real assets 18 9 7 2
Other(g) 27 27 — —
Fair value of plan asscts $898 $699 $166 $33

Basis of fair value measurement

Quoted prices n Significant other Significant

Balance at active markets for observable unobservable
December 31, wdentical assets mputs inputs

{in millions} 11 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equities

US large cap(a) $ 54 $53 $ 1 $—

US mud cap(b) 17 5 12 —

International(c) 27 2 25 -
Fixed mcome secunties

U S government securities(d) 35 16 19 —

Corporate debl mstruments(c) 14 3 i1 —

Other 2 2 — —
Absolute return funds(f) 71 12 32 27
Other(g) 10 2 8 —
Fair value of plan assets $230 $95 $108 $27

(a) A mix of index funds that track the S&P 500 (50 percent in 2012 and 45 percent mn 2011) and
separate actively managed equity accounts that are benchmarked to the Russell 1000 (50 percent 1
2012 and 55 percent 1n 2011)

(b) A mix of index funds (75 percent) and scparate actively managed equity accounts (25 percent) that
track or are benchmarked to the S&P 400 mudcap index

85




(c) Primanly separate actively managed poolcd mvestment accounts that are benchmarked to the
MSCI emerging marketl and vanious local indices

(d) Index funds (50 percent 1 2012 and 45 percent in 2011) and separate actively managed accounts
(50 percent in 2012 and 55 percent n 2011)

(¢) Index funds (20 percent m 2012 and 40 percent 1 2011) and separate actively managed accounts
(80 percent m 2012 and 60 percent 1n 2011)

(D Primanly funds invested by managers that have a global mandate with the flexibility to allocate
capital broadly across a wide range of asset classes and strategies ncluding, but not limited to
cquities, fixed income, commodities, 1nterest rate futures, currencies and other securities (o
outperform an agreed upon benchmark with specific return and volatility targets

(g) Primarily investments in liquid commodity future contracts, private energy funds, cash and cash
cquivalents

Equities that are valued using quoted prices are valued at the published market prices Equities 1n a
common collective trust or a registered investment company that are valued using significant other
observable mputs are valued at the net asset value (NAV) provided by the fund adnumstrator The
NAV 1s based on the value of the underlying assets owned by the fund minus its habilities Fixed
income securitics that are valued usig sigmficant other observable npuls are valued at prices obtained
from independent financial service mdustry-recognized vendors Absolute return funds and commodities
are valued at the NAV provided by the fund administrator

The following table summarizes the change in the value of plan assets that are measurcd using
sigmficant unobservable mputs (Level 3)

{m mllions) 2012 2011
January 1 $27  $22
Transfers in from other categorics — 3
Actual return on plan assets on hand at year end Im
Purchases, sales and settlements, net 3
Deccember 31 $33  $27

The mvestment mix of equity securties, fixed mncome and other asset allocation strategies 1s based
upon achieving a desired return, balancing higher return, more volatile equity securities, and lower
return, less volatile fixed income securities Investment allocations are made across a range of markets,
industry sectors, capitalization sizes, and 1n the case of fixed income securitics, maturities and credit
quality There arc no known significant concentrations of nsk in the plans’ assets

The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown above 1s based on management’s expectations of
long-term average rates of return (o be achieved by the underlymg investment portfohos In establishing
this assumption, management considers historscal and expected returns for the asset classes in which
the plans are invested, as well as current economic and capital market conditions
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Expected Pension and Other Fost-Employment Payments

Other
Defined post-employment

(in millions) benefit plans plans
2013 $ 58 $7
2014 59 7
2015 60 8
2016 64 8
2017 65 9
2018 to 2022 363 53

The above table reflects total benefit payments expected to be pard to participants, which includes
payments funded from company assets as well as paid from the plans
Other

AbbVie employees also participate 1n the Abbott Laboratonies Stock Retirement Plan, which 1s
Abbott’s principal defined contribution plan AbbVie recorded expense of $67 milhion, $68 million and
$65 mullion for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to this plan

AbbVie provides certain other post-employment benefits, primarily salary continuation plans, to
quahfying employees and accrues for the related cost over the service lives of the employees

Note 10 Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to separation, AbbVie employees participated in Abbott’s incentive stock program In conjunction
with the separation, the company adopted the AbbVie Incentive Stock Program, which provides for the
assumpiion of certain awards granted under the Abbott incentive stock program and authorizes the
grant of several different forms of benefits including nonqualfied stock options, restricted stock awards
(RSAS), and restricted stock units (RSUs). The AbbVie Incentive Stock Program mitially reserved

100 milhion shares of common stock for 1ssuance with respect to awards for participants Subsequent to
year-gnd, this reserve was reduced by approximately 7 million shares for stock option, RSA and RSU
awards granted by AbbVie's Board of Directors

The foltowing disclosures represent the portion of Abbott’s mncentive stock pregram m which AbbVie
employees participated All awards granied under the program consisted of Abbott common shares As
such, all related equity account balances are reflected in Abbott's consohidated statements of
stockholders’ equity and have not been reflected in AbbVie’s combined financial statements AbbVie’s
combined statements of earnings reflects compensation expense for these stock-based awards associated
with the portion of Abbotl’s incentive stock program n which AbbVie employees participaled,
accordingly, the amounts presented are notl necessanly indicative of future performance and do not
necessarily reflect the results that AbbVie would have expericnced as an independent, publicly-traded
company for the periods presented

Al equity award amounts presented below have not been converted to reflect the separation from
Abbott Upon the separation on January 1, 2013, holders of Abbott stock options, RSAs and RSUs
generally received one AbbVie stock-based award for cach Abbott stock-based award outstanding The
value of the combined Abbott and AbbVie stock-based awards after scparation was designed to
generally preserve the iininsic value and the fair value of the award immediately prior to separation
The per share data presented m this Note has not been adjusted 1o reflect the impact of the
separation
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Stock Compensation Expense

Stock compensation expense recogmzed n the combined statements of earmings was $187 million,

$163 milion and $167 million 1n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively The related lax benefit recogmzed
was $56 million, $48 million and $51 million n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively More than half of
stock-compensation expense was classified in SG&A, with the remainder classified in R&D and cost of
products sold Compensation costs capitalized i the combined balance sheets at December 31, 2012
and 2011 was not sigmificant

Compensation expense for stock-based awards 1s measured based on the fair value of the awards, as of

the date the share-based awards are granted and adjusted to the estimated number of awards that are

expected to vest Forfeitures are estimated based on historical experience at the time of gramt and

revised 1n subsequent periods if actual forfertures differ from those estimates Compensation cost for

stock-based awards are amortized over their service peniod, which could be shorter than the vesting

period if an employee is retirement eligible, with a charge to compensation expense For stock-based

awards granted to retirement-eligible employees, compensation expense 18 recogmzed immediately at

the grant date because the employee 1s able to retamn the award without continwng to provide service. |

Stock Options

The exercise price for options granted 1s at least equal to 100 percent of the market value on the date
of grant Stock options typically have a contractual term of 10 years and generally vest in one-third
increments over a three-year period except for options with a replacement feature Pre-2005 options
were granted with a replacement option feature The terms and conditions of the replacement option
are the same n all matenal respects as those apphcable to the onginal grant When the cxercise price
of an option with a replacement option feature 1s paid with the common shares held by the employee,
a replacement option 1s granted for the number of shares used to make that payment The closing price
of the common share on the business day before the exercise 15 used lo determme the number of
shares required to exercise the related option and the exercise price of the replacement option The
replacement option 1s exercisable i full six months after the date of grant, and has a term expirmg on
the expiration date of the original option

The fair value of stock options 15 determned using the Black-Scholes model The weighted-average
assumptions used mn estimating the fair value of stock options granted dunng each year, along with
weighted-average grant-date fair values, were as follows

years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Risk-lree mterest rate 12% 27% 29%
Average life of options (years) 60 60 60
Volatility 210% 210% 220%
Dividend yield 36% 41% 32%
Fair value per stock oplion $68 $623 $924

The risk-free interest rate 1s based on the rates available at the ume of the grant for zero-coupon U §
government 1ssucs with a remaining term equal to the option’s expected ife The average lhife of an
option 1s based on both historical and projected exercise and lapsing data Expected volatility 15 based
on imphed volauhties from traded options on Abbott’s stock and historical volatility of Abbott’s stock
over the expected hife of the option Dividend yield 1s based on the option’s exercise price and annual
dividend rate at the time of grant




The following table summarizes stock option actity for the year ended December 31, 2012 and stock
option outstanding balances at December 31, 2012 under Abbott’s Incentive Stock Programs for
AbbVie employees

Weighted Weighted

(oruons in thousands, aggregate intrinsic average average remaiming Aggregate
value in mithions) Oplions  exercise price life (in years) mtrinsic value
Outstanding al December 31, 2011 25,783 34977 41

Granted 944 62 54

Exercised (13,347) 49.62

Lapsed (95) 53 88

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 13,285 $50 80 37 $196
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 12,329 $50 09 36 $190

The aggregate mtrinsic value 1n the table above represents the difference between the exercise price
and the closing stock price on the last day of trading of the year The total mtnnsic value of options
exercised m 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $170 mulhion, $31 million and $20 million, respectively

As of December 31, 2012, $1 million of unrecogmzed compensation cost related 1o stock options 15
cxpected to be recogmzed as expense over the next three years

RSAs & RSUs

Restricted stock awards generally vest between three and five years For restricted stock awards that
vest over five years, no more than one-third of the award vests in any one year RSUs vest over three
years and upon vesting, the recipient receives one share of common stock for each vested restricted
stock umit The fair value of RSAs and RSUs 1s determined based on the number of shares granted and
the quoted price of the common stock on the date of grant

The following table summarizes RSAs and RSUs balances and activity under Abbott’s Incentive Stock
Programs for AbbVie employees

Weighted average

{share umis i thousands) Share units  grant date fair value
Nonvested shares December 31, 2011 4,710 $50 29
Granted 2,749 56 07
Vested (2,164) 5123
Lapsed (251) 48 62
Nonvested shares December 31, 2012 5,044 $53 12

The fair market value of restricied stock awards and units vested 1n 2012, 2011 and 2010 was

$123 mallion, $74 million and $53 million, respectively As of December 31, 2012, $90 nulhion of
unrecognized compensation cost related to RSAs and RSUs 1s expected to be recogmzed as expense
over the next three years
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Note 11 Income Taxes

Earnings Before Income Taxes

years ended December 31 {in mullions) 2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ 625 $ 626 $(191)
Foreign 5,100 3,042 5,027
Total earnings before mcome taxes $5,725 $3,668 34,836
Income Taxes
years ended December 31 (in milhons) 2012 2011 2010
Current

Domestic $94 $177 § 987

Foreign 252 390 408
Total current taxes $346 $ 567 $1,395
Deferred

Domestic $ 89 $(198) $ (624)

Foreign 15 (134) (113)
Total deferred taxes 104 (332) (737D)
Total income taxcs $450 $235 3§ 658
Effective Tax Rate Reconciliation
years ended December 31 (in mullions) 2012 2011 2010
Statutory tax rate 350% 350% 350%
Benefit of lower tax rates and tax exemptions, primanly in Puerto Rico (235) (254) (225)
Resolution of certain tax positions pertainng to prior years (34 (112) —
Effect of non-deductible litigation loss accrual 06 129 —
Puerto Rico excise tax credit (12) (32 —
State taxes, net of federal benefit 0t 03 02
All other, net 03 (20) 09
Effective tax rate 79% 64% 136%

Income taxes in 2012 and 2011 included the recogmtion of tax benefits totaling approximately

$195 mllion and $410 million, respectively, as a result of favorable resolutions of varous tax positions
pertaining (o prior years Income taxes i 2011 also reflected the non-deductibility of a htigation
reserve Excluding these discrete items, the effective tax rates were less than the statutory U S federal
income tax rate of 35 percent principally due to the benefit of lower slatutory tax rates and tax
exemptions in Puerto Rico and other foreign taxing junisdictions, which reduced the tax rates by 235,
254 and 22 5 percentage points in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

In 2010, Puerto Rico enacted legislation that assesses an excise tax beginming n 2011 on cerlain
products manufactured in Puerto Rico The tax 1s levied on gross inventory purchases from entities 1n
Puerto Rico and 15 included in cost of products sold m the combined statements of carnings The
majoritly of the tax 15 creditable for US mcome tax purposes In 2012 and 2011, the excise tax totaled
approximately $180 million and $105 million, respectively
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At December 31, 2012, U.S ncome taxes have not been provided on approximately $19 4 billion of
undistributed foreign earmings as these carnings have been indefinitely reinvested for continued use 1n
foreign operations Il 1s not practicable to determine the amount of deferred income taxes not provided
on these earnings

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

as of December 31 (in mmllions) 2012 20114
Deferred tax assets
Compensation and employee benefits $ 295 $ 290
Trade receivable reserves 412 3n
Inventory reserves 42 49
Deferred mtercompany profit 7717 592
State mncome taxes 106 125
Other 1,039 1,196
Total deferred tax assets $2,671 $2,623
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation — (20)
Other, pnimarily the excess of book basis over tax basis of intangible assets (857) (983)
Total deferred tax habilimes (857) (1,003)
Net deferred tax asset $1,814 $1,620

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

years ended December 31 (in millions) 2012 2on 2010
January 1 $1,039 $1,645 $1,319
Incrcase due to current year tax positions 3710 294 346
Increase due to prior year tax positions 1 149 110
Decrease due to current year tax posiions — (15) —
Decrease due to prior year tax positions (220}  (604) (48)
Settlements (50)  (430) (82)
December 31 $1,140 $1,039 §1,645

AbbVie and Abbott entered mnto a tax sharing agreement effective on the date of separation For tax
contingencies prior to the separation, Abbott will indemmiy and hold AbbVie harmless 1f the tax
positions are settled for amounts n excess of recorded habilities, and AbbVie will not benefit if prior
Lax positions are resolved more favorably than recorded amounts As a result, no hability for uncertain
tax positions was recorded in the combined financial statements as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010

Note 12 Litigation

There are a number of patent disputes with third parties who claim AbbVie's products infringe their
patents On February 21, 2012, the U S Supreme Court demed Centocor Inc’s and New York
Universaly’s petition to review a February 2011 Federal Circuit Court of Appeals decision reversing a
$1 67 billron judgment m favor of Centocor and New York University on a patent they claimed
AbbVie's HUMIRA mfringed This decision concludes the case

The US Department of Justice, through the US Attorney for the Western District of Virgima, and
vartous state Altorneys General mvestigated AbbVie's sales and marketing activitics for Depakote The
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government sought to determme whether any of these acuvities violated civil and/or criminal laws,
including the Federal False Claims Act, the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, and the Anti-Kickback
Statute i connection with Medicare and/or Medicawd reimbursement to thurd parties. The state
Aulorneys General offices sought to determine whether any of these activities violated various state
laws, including state consumer fraud/protection statutes AbbVie recorded charges of $1 5 tillion 1n the
third quarter of 2011 and $100 million n the first quarter of 2012 related to cvil and criminal claims
anising from this matter In May 2012, AbbVie reached resolution of all Depakote-related federal
claims, Medicaid-related claims with 49 states and the District of Columbia, and consumer protection
claims with 45 states and the District of Columbia In 2012, AbbVie paid approximately $1 6 bilhen for
the settlement The payments were matertal to AbbVie’s cash flows in 2012

The recorded accrual balance for htigation at December 31, 2012 was not significant Within the next
year, other legal proceedings may occur that may result 1n a change n the estmated loss accrued by
AbbVie While it 1s not feasible to predict the outcome of all other proceedings and exposures with
certainty, management believes that their ultimate disposiion should not have a matenal adverse effect
on AbbVie’s financial position, cash flows, or results of operations

Note 13 Related Party Transactions with Abbott

In the historical financial statements, Abbott provided AbbVie certain services, whach included
administration of treasury, payroll, employee compensation and benefits, travel and meeung services,
public and investor relations, real estate services, internal audit, telecommumcations, information
technology, corporate mncome tax and selected legal services Some of these services will be provided to
AbbVie on a temporary basis after the separation The financial information m these combined
financial statements does not necessarily include all the expenses that would have been incurred had
AbbVie been a separate, stand-alone entity As such, the financial mformation heretn may not
necessarily reflect the combined financial positzon, results of operations and cash flows of AbbVie 1n
the future or what they would have been had AbbVie been a separate, stand-alone entily during the
periods presented Management believes that the methods used to allocate expenses 1o AbbVie are
reasonable The allocation methods included relative sales, headcount, square footage, number of
transactions or other measures These allocations totaled $838 malhon, $801 million and $677 mullion
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively In 2012, AbbVie incurred

$288 muliion of separation-related expenses, including legal, information technology and regulatory fees,
which were principally classified in SG&A As of December 31, 2012, outstanding intercompany
transactions between AbbVie and Abbott are reflected as Due from Abbott Laboratories and Due (o
Abbott Laboratonies in the combined balance sheet
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Note 14 Segment and Geographic Area Information

AbbVie operates in one business segment---pharmaceutical products Substantially all of AbbVie’'s US
sales are to three wholesalers Outside the United States, products are sold primarily to health care
providers or through distributors, depending on the market served Net sales of key products were as

follows

years ended December 31 (in millions) 2012 2011 2010
HUMIRA $9265 § 7932 § 6508
AndroGel 1,152 874 649
TnCor/TRILIPIX 1,098 1,372 1,355
Kaletra 1,013 1,170 1,223
Niaspan 911 976 927
Synagis 842 792 726
Lupron 800 810 741
Sevoflurane 602 665 664
Synthrond 551 522 451
Norvir 389 419 344
Zemplar 383 409 596
Creon 353 332 246
All other 1,021 1,171 1,208
Net sales $18,380 §$17,444 $15,638
Net sales to external customers, based on the country that sold the product, were as follows

years ended December 31 (in milhons) 2012 2011 2010
Umted States $10,435 $ 9712 § 8971
The Nethertands 776 904 845
Germany 756 701 635
Japan 718 616 484
United Kingdom 552 496 418
Spamm 525 569 515
France 500 516 479
Canada 500 446 374
Brazil 434 382 287
Ltaly 408 428 385
All other countries 2,776 2,674 2,245
Net sales $18,380 $17,444 $15,638

Long-lived assets, consisting of net property and equipment 1n the Umted States and Puerto Rico,
totaled approximately $1 6 billion and $1 5 illion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively
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Note 15 Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

(i mullions except per share data) 2002 2011
First Quarter

Net sales $4,173 $3,897
Gross margin 3017 2,689
Net earnings 883 723
Basic and diluted earnmngs per share 056 046
Second Quarter

Net sales $4,493 34274
Gross margin 3,420 3,168
Net earnings 1,267 1,540
Basic and difuted carmngs per share 080 0.98
Third Quarter

Net sales $4,508 $4409
Gross margin 3494 3,260
Net carnings 1,585 13
Basic and diluted earnings per share 101 001
Fourth Quarter

Net sales $5,206 $4,864
Gross margin 3,941 3,688
Net earnings 1,540 1,157
Basic and diluted earmings per share 098 073

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods was calculated using the shares
distnbuted on January 1, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AbbVie Inc

We have audited the accompanymg combined balance sheets of AbbVie Inc and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the related combined statements of earnings,
comprehensive income, statement of parent company equity and cash flows for each of the three years
n the penod ended December 31, 2012 These combined financial statements are the responsibihity of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our andits

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the combmed financial statements are free of matenal
nusstatement The Company 1s not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
mternal control over financial reporting Our audits included consideration of nternal control over
financial reporting as a basis for destigning audit procedures that are appropnate m the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s mternal control
over financial reporting Accordingly, we express no such opimion An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements, assessing the
accounting prmetples used and sigmificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financral statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opion

In our opimon, such combined financial statements present fauly, n all matenal respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the results of its operations
and 1its cash flows for each of the three years m the penod ended December 31, 2012 in conformty
with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the Unuted States of America

As described 1n Note 1, the accompanying combimed financial statements have been derived from
the consohdated financial statements and accounting records of Abbott Laboratories The combined
financial statements also include expense allocations for certamn corporate functions historically
provided by Abbott Laboratories These allocations may not be reflective of the aclual expense which
would have been mncurred had the Company operated as a separate legal entity apart from Abbott
Laboratories

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chicago, Hhnos
March 15, 2013
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

As previously reported on AbbVie’s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 20, 2012, the
Audit Commutiee of AbbVie’s Board of Directors approved the dismissal of Deloitte & Touche LLP
(Deloitte) as AbbVie’s independent registered public accountant, effective as of the date of Deloitte’s
completion of the audit services for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012 and the filing of
AbbVie’s 2012 Annual Report on Securnittes and Exchange Comrmission Form 10-K, and approved the
appomiment of Ernst & Young LLP as AbbVie’s independent registered public accounting firm to
perform independent audit services begmming with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013

Durmng the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and through March 15, 2013,
(1) there were no disagreements (as that term 1s defined in Item 304(a)(1)(1v) of Regulation S-K and
the related mnstructions) between AbbVie and Deloitte on any matter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to the
satisfaction of Deloutte, would have caused Deloitte to make reference to the subject matter of the
disagreement n connection with 1ts reports on AbbVie’s combined financial stalements for such years,
and (u) there were no “reportable events” (as that term 1s defined n Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
Regulation §-K)

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer, Richard A
Gonzalez, and the Chief Financial Officer, Wilham J Chase, evaluated the effectiveness of AbbVie’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report, and concluded
that AbbVie’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective 1o ensure that information AbbVae 15
required to disclose mn the reports that 1t files or submits with the Securnities and Exchange Commaission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 1s recorded, processed, summanzed and reported, within the
time periods specified in the Commussion’s rules and forms, and to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by AbbVie in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act 18 accumulated
and communicated io AbbVie’s management, mcluding 1ts principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding requred disclosure

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting  This Annual Report on
Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over
financial reporting or an attestation report of the company’s registered public accounting firm due 10 a
transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies

Changes in internal control over financial reporting Durning the quarter ended December 31, 2012,
there were no changes n AbbVie’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined 1n
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have matenally affected, or are reasonably likely to
matcrially affect, AbbVie’s internat control over financial reporting

Inherent Limitafions on Effectiveness of Controls. AbbVie’s management, including its Chief
Executive Officer and 1ts Chief Financial Officer, do not expect that AbbVie'’s disclosure controls or
mternal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud A control system,
no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the control system’s objectives will be met The design of a control system must reflect the fact that
there are resource constramts, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs
Further, because of the inherent hmitations 1n all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
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absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control 1ssues and
mstances of fraud, if any, have been detecied These inherent limitations include the reahties that
Judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mustake Controls can also be circumvented by the mdividual acts of some persons, by collusion of two
or more people, or by management overnide of the controls

The design of any system of controls is based n part on certain assumptions about the likehhood
of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed mn achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions Projections of any evaluation of controls effectiveness to
future periods are subject to risks Over time, controls may become madequalte because of changes in
conditions or deterioration 1n the degree of compliance with policies or procedures

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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Consolidated Statement ot Earnings
{doftars and sharas N thousands exoet per share data)

Abbott 2012 Annua) Report

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010
Net Sales $39,873,910 $38,851,259 $35,168,721

Cost of products sold 15,119,718 15,540,580 14,665,192
Research and development 4,322,182 4,129,414 3,724,424

Acquired in-process and collaborations research and development 288,000 872,500 313,200
Selling, general and administrative 12,059,495 12,756,817 10,378,324

Total Operating Cost and Expenses 31,789,395 33,099,311 29,079,140
Operating Earnings 8,084,515 5,751,948 6,087,581

Intarest expense 592,403 530,141 553,135
Intarest (ncome} {79,225) (85,196} {105,453)
Net loss on extinguishment of debt 1,350,973 - -

Net foreign exchange (gain) loss {8.044) (50,271} {10,924)
Other (income) expense, net {34,206} 158,632 {62,011)
Earnings Before Taxes 6,262,614 5,198,642 5,712,834
Taxes on Earnings 299,694 470,193 1,086,662
Net Earnings $ 5,362,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172
Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 376 8 303 $ 298
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sharo § ' 372 $ 301 $ 296
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding Used for Basic

Earnings Per Common Share 1,575,378 1,557,643 1,546,400
Dilutive Common Stock Options and Awards 16,460 9,746 9,622
Avarage Nurmber of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Diutve Common Stock Options and Awards 1,591,838 1,567,389 1,556,022
Qutstanding Common Stock Optrons Having No Dilutive Effect 1,166 26,789 29,403

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial stalements are an integral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
{dodlars i thousands)

Year Ended Decemnber 31 2012 2011 2010

Nat Earnings $5,962,920 $ 4,728,449 $ 4,626,172

Foreign cumency translation (loss) adjustments {6.826) {817,539} (2,290,256)
Net actuanal losses} and prior service cost end credits and amortization of

net actuanal losses and prior senvice cost and credits,

not of taxes of ${276,076) in 2012, $(391,528) 1n 2011 and ${70,389}1n 2010 {864,935} {510,444} {59,447)
Unrealized (losses) gains on marketable equity secunties,

net of taxes of $(4,079) in 2012, $8,338 n 2011 and $61 n 2010 {7.066) 14,442 106

Net adjustments for denvative instruments designated as cash fiow hedges,

net of taxes of ${29,417) n 2012, $19,857 i1 2011 and $20,567 in 2010 {117,666) 83,202 128,677

Other Comprehensive (loss) {996,493} {1,230,339) (2,220,920)
Comprohensve [ncome $4,066,427 $3,498,110 $ 2,405,252

Supplamental Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Information,

net of tax as of December 31

Cumulative faraign currency transiation loss (gain) adjustments $ 79,353 $ 72,527 $ {745,012)
Ne! actuanal iosses and prior service cost and credits 3,695,554 2,730,618 2,220,175

Cumulatrve unrealized (gains) on marketable equity secunties (31,363} (38.,429) {23,987)
Cumulative {gains) on denvative instruments designated as cash flow hedges (49,886) {167,532) (84.330)

The accompanying notes to consalidated financlal statements are an integral part of ihis statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

{dotars in thousands)

Year Ended Decembar 31 2012 2011 2010
Cash Flow From {Used n) Operating Actities

Net earnings $ 5,962,920 $4,728,449 $ 4,626,172
Adusiments to reconcile earnings to net cash from operating activities —

Depreclation 1,363,673 1,395,371 1,207,450
Amortization of intangible assets 1,419,634 1,848,523 1,416,855
Share-based compensation 433,114 382,602 387,183
Acquired In-process and collaborations research and developmant 268,000 672,500 313,200
Investing and financing (gains) losses, net 356,020 141,565 126,337
Net loss on extinguishment of dabt 1,350,973 - -
Trade recetvablos 35,996 (670,152) (394.,665)
Inventones (417,053) (129,621} 139,857
Prepald expenses and other assets (35,298) 413,268 553,145
Trade accounts payable and other liabilities (134,209) 1,789,652 572,533
Income taxes (1,300,268} {1,402,078) {212,086)
Net Cash From Operating Actvilios 9,314,401 8,970,077 8,735,881
Cash Flow From {Used 1) Investing Actwvities

Acquistions of businesses and technologies, net of cash acquired 1,227,473} (672,500) (9,433,243}
Acquisitions of property and equipment (1,795.289) (1,491,500} (1.015,075)
Purchases of Investment sacuridies (11,897,654) {5,109,987) (805,932)
Proceeds from salas of investment secunties 8,936,406 5,648,720 954,361
Release of {depost of) restncted funds - 1,870,000 {1.870,000)
Other 2,722 16,099 (18,426)
Net Cash {Used in) From Investing Actmties (6,081,288} 260,832 (12,188,315}
Cash Flow From (Used in) Financing Actrvities

Proceads from issuance of (repayments of) shart-term debi and other 783,868 (1,964 ,685) (203.854)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and debt with matunties over 3 months 14,700,000 1,000,000 4,000,000
Repayments of long-term debt and debt with maturitres over 3 months (11,071,178} (3,012,426} {1,673,998)
Purchases of common shares (2,364,240} (77,007) (866,825)
Proceeds from stock oplions exercised, including income tax benefit 1,850,454 968,759 328,411
Drvidends pad (3.182,811) {2,938,096) (2,671,475)
Net Cash From (Used in} Financing Actmties 716,083 {6,023,455) {1.087,741)
Etfect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eqguivalents 40,137 {43,005} (620,893)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,889,343 3,164,449 {5,160,968)
Cash and Cash Equvalents, Beginning of Year 6,812,820 3,648,371 8,808,339
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year £10,802,163 $6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Supplementa! Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 1,366,581 $1,781,602 $ 809,710
Interest paid 575,895 544,559 580,168

The accompanying notes to consalidated financial staterments are an integral part of thus statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consolidated Balance Sheet

{doktars in thousands}
Dacember 31 2012 2011 2010
Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $10,802,163 $ 6,812,820 $ 3,648,371
Investments, pnmanly bank time deposits and U S treasury bills 4,371,821 1,284,538 1,803,079
Restncted funds, primanly U S treasury bills - - 1,872,490
Trade receivables, less allowances of —
2012 $405,921, 2011 $420,579, 2010 $388,564 7,612,860 7,683,920 7,184,034
Inventones
Finished products 2,345,455 2,220,527 2,058,735
Work in process 628,874 432,358 383,580
Matenals 817,984 631,364 746,419
Total Inventores 3,792,313 3,284,249 3,188,734
Deferred income taxes 2,986,216 2,700,540 3,076,051
Other prepaid expenses and receivables 1,757,210 2,002,706 1,544,770
Total Current Assets 31,322,583 23,768,774 22,317,529
Investrmenls 273,595 378,225 302,049
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 604,462 633,917 648,988
Buldings 4,259,240 4,467,387 4,334,235
Equipment 13,110,833 12,216,388 11,813,618
Construction in progress 954,352 698,873 577,460
18,028,887 18,016,565 17,374,302
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,865,840 10,142,610 9,403,346
Net Property and Equipment 8,063,047 7,873,955 7.970,956
Intangible Assets, net of amortization 8,588,285 0,989,636 12,151,628
Goodwill 15,774,127 15,705,380 15,930,077
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Assets 3,213,307 2,560,923 1,901,613
$67,234,944 $60,276,893 $60,573,852
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
{dokars n thousandst

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Docember 31 2012 2011 2010

Liabilties and Shareholders’ Investment

Cument Liabilthes

Short-term borrowings $ 2,081,839 $ 2,347,859 $ 4,349,796

Trade accounts payablo 1,796,990 1,721,127 1,635,759

Salanes, wages and commissions 1,427,765 1,260,121 1,328,665

Other accrued liabiities 6,787,995 7,854,994 6,014,772

Dwidends payable 221,340 754,284 680,749

Income taxas payable 655,424 514,847 1,307,723

Currant portion of long term dabt 308,823 1,026,896 2,044,970

Total Current Liabilities 13,280,176 15,480,228 17,262,434

Long-term Debt 18,085,302 12,039,822 12,523,517

Posi-amployment Obligations and Other Long-term Liabilities 9,056,234 8,230,698 8,022,770

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Investment

Preferrad shares, one dollar par value

Authorzed — 1,000,000 shares, none 1ssued - - —

Comman shares, without par value

Authonzed — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capial amount —

Shames 2012 1,675,930,484,

2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 11,754,552 9,817,134 8,744,703

Common sharas held in treasury, at cost —

Shares 2012 99,262,992,

2011 68,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 (5,590,909} (3,687,478} (3,916,823)

Earnings employed in the business 24,150,996 20,907,362 19,215,768

Accumulated other comprehensive incoms {loss) (3,593,678) (2,597,185) (1,366,846)

Total Abbott Shareholders’ Investment 26,720,961 24,439,833 22,676,802

Noncontrofling Interests in Subsidanes 92,271 86,312 88,329

Total Shamsholders' Investment 26,813,232 24,526,145 22,765,131
$67,234,944 60,276,893 $60,573,852

The accompanying noles to consalidated financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement
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Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Consohdated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment
{dolars 0 thousands excopt per share data)

Year Ended Decamber 31 2012 2011 2010
Common Shares

Beginning of Year

Shares 2012 1,638,870,201, 2011 1,619,689,876, 2010 1,612,683,087 $ 9,817,134 $ 8,744,703 $ 8,257,873
Issued under incentrve stock programs

Shares 2012 37,060,283, 2011 19,180,325, 2010 7,005,889 1,853,574 954,148 316,071

Share-based compensation 434,601 382,326 388,493
Issuance of resincted stock awards {350,757) (264,043) {217,734)
End of Year

Shares 2012 1,675,030,484, 2011 1,638,870,201, 2010 1,619,689,876 $11,754,552 $ 9817,134 $ 8,744,703

Common Shares Held in Treasury

Beginning of Year

Shares 2012 68,491,382, 2011 72,705,928, 2010 61,516,398 $ (3,687,478) $(3,916,823) $(3.310,347)
Issuad under incantwe Stock programs

Shares 2012 6,691,748, 2011 4,838,841, 2010 4,166,200 362,764 249,876 224,237
Purchased

Shares 2012 37.463,358, 2011 424,285, 2010 15,355,730 (2,266,195) (20,531) {830,713}
End of Year

Shares 2012 99,262,892, 2011 88,491,382, 2010 72,705,928 8§ {5,590,909) $ {3,687.476) $(3,916,823)

Earnings Employed in the Business

Beginning of Year $20,907.362 $19,215,768 $17.342,694
Net earnings 5,962,920 4,728,449 4,626,172
Cash dividands declared on cormimon shares

{por share — 2012 $1 67, 2011 $1 82, 2010 5176} (2.649,866) {3.011,631) {2,731,584)
Effect of common and treasury share transactions {69,420) (25,224) {21,514)
End of Year $24,150,996 $20,907 362 $19,215,768

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incaome (Loss)

Beginning of Year ${2,597,185) $ (1.366,846) $ 854,074
Other comprehensive incame (l0ss) {996,493) (1,230,339) {2,220,920)
End of Year $ {3,593,678) $ (2,597,185} $ (1,366,846}

Noncontroing Interests in Subsidianes

Baginning of Year $ 88312 $ 88329 $ 43102
Noncontroling Interests' share of income,

business combinations, net of distrbutions and shars repurchases 5,858 2,017 45,227
End of Year $ 92.2Mm $& 86312 $ 88329

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statemenits are an integrat part of this statement
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business — Abbott’s principal buslness is the
discovery, developmant, manufacture and sale of a broad line
of health care products

in October 2011, Abbott announcad a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, one In dwversified medical products

and the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomplish
the separation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc for its
ressarch-based pharmaceuticals business which consists pnmanty
of Abbott's Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment On
January 1, 2013, Abbott distnbuted all of the outstanding shares of
AbbVie Inc to Abbott's sharehoklers As a result of the distnbution,
AbbVie 1s now an independent company trading under the symbol
“ABBV" Beginning n the first quarter of 2013, the historical resulls
of the research-based pharmaceuticals business wil be reflected in
Abbott's consohdated financial staterments as discontinued operatons

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Dua to the nature of its
operations, Abbott 1s not subject to significant concentration nsks relat-
ing to customers, products or geographic locations, except that three
U 5 wholesalers accounted for 23 parcent of trade recelvables as of
December 31, 2012 and 2010 and 22 percent of trade recevables as
of December 31, 2011 In addition, governmental accounts in italy,
Spain, Greece and Portugal accounted for 16 percent, 23 percent, and
21 percent of total net trade recelvables as of December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectvely Product warranties are not significant

Abbatt has no matenal exposures to off-balance sheel arrangements,
no special purpose entittes, nor activities that include non-
exchange-traded contracts accounted for at farr value Abbott has
penodically entered into agreemants In the ordinary course of busi-
ness, such as assignment of product nghts, with other comparnies
which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondanly liable for obliga-
tens that Abbott was previously primarily hable Since Abbott no
longer maintamns a business relatonship with the other parties, Abboft
Is unabls to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of
future paymenis, If any, under these oblgations Based upon past
expenence, tha likelihood of payments under these agreements IS
remote Abbott penodically acquires a business or product nghts m
which Abbot! agrees to pay contingent consideration based on attain-
ing certain thresholds or based on the occurence of certan events

Basrs of Consolidation and Change in Accounting Principle -— Pror
to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidianas were consol-
dated based on a fiscal year ended Novembar 30 due to the time
needsd 1o consolidate these subsidianes Effectve January 1, 2011,
the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of foreign
subsiiiaries was elminated and the year-end of foreign subsidianes
was changed to December 31 Abbott belisves that the change In
accounting principle related to the elimination of the one month report-
ing lag 1s praferable because it resulls N Mare contemporaneous
reporting af the results of foreign subsidianes In accordance with
applcable accounting Iterature, & change in subsidianes’ year-end IS
treated as a changa tn accounting prnciple and requires retrospeclive
apphication The cumulative effect of the change was an increase In
retainad earmings of $289 milton as of January 1, 2009 and a corre
sponding decrease in other long-term liabiiies The impact of the
changa was not matenal to the results of operations for the previously
reported annual and Intenm peniads afler January 1, 2009, and thus,
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those rasuits hava not been revised A charge of $137 milion was
recorded to Other (income) expanse, net in 2011 to recognize the
cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 Had the financial
statemants been revised, net saks, operating earnings and net earn-
ings 1n 2010 would have decreased by $21 millon, $195 mullion and
$175 million, respectively

Use of Estimates — The financial statements have been prepared

n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States and necessanly include amounis based on estimates
and assumptions by management Actual results could differ from
those amounts Significant estimates include amounts for sales
rebatas, income taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuation of intangible assets, litigation, derwatva financial instruments,
and inventory and accounis recevable exposures

Revenue Recogmtion — Reverwe from product sales 1s racogmized
upon passage of title and nsk of loss to customers Provisions for
discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customars, and returns
and other adjustments are provided for In the period the related sales
are recorded Sales incentives to customers are not matenal Histoncal
data 15 readily avalable and reliable, and is used for estimating the
amount of the reduction in gross sales Revenus from the launch

of a new product, from an improved version of an existing product,

ar for shipmanits in excess of a customer’s nomal reguirements are
recorded when the conditions noted above are met In those situa-
tions, managament records a retums reserve for such revenus, if
necessary In certain of Abbott's businesses, primanly within diagnos-
ties and medical optics, Abbott participates in selling arrangements
that include mulliple deliverables (e g . nstrumants, reagents, proce-
dures, and service agreements} Under these arrangements, Abbott
recognizes revenus upon delivery of the product or performance of the
service and allocates the revenue based on the relative selling price of
each deliverabte, which 1s based pnmanly on vendor specific objectve
evidence Sales of product nghts for marketable products are
recorded as revenue upon disposition of the nghts Revenue from
ticense of product nghts, or for performance of research or seling
actvities, 1s recorded over the penods earned

Income Taxes — Dalemed income laxes are provided for the tax effect
of differsncas between tha tax bases of assets and labilities and their
reported amounts in the financial statements at the enacted statutory
rate to be in effect when the taxes are pad U S income taxes are
pravided on those earnings of foreign subsidianes which are intended
to be remitted 1o the parent company Deferred income taxes are not
provided on undisinbuted earmings reinvested indefinitely in foreign
subsidianes as working capitat and plant and equipment Interest and
penalties on Income tax obligations are Included in taxes on ncome

Earnings Per Share — Unvested rasincted stock that contain non-for-
feitabie nghts to dmidends are treated as participating secunties and are
included n the computation of sarnings per share under the two class
method Under the two-class mathod, net earnings are allocated
between common shares and participating secunties Net earnings allo-
cated to common shares 1n 2012, 2011 ang 2010 were $5 917 bilion,
$4 714 tilllon and $4 613 hillon, respecively

Pension and Post Employment Benelits — Abbott accrues for the
actuanally determined cost of pension and post-employment benefits
over the service attribution panods of the employees Abbiott must
develop long-tenn assumphons, the most significant of winch are the
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haealth care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected return
on plan assets Differences batween the expected lang-term return on
plan assats and the actual return are amortized over a five year penod
Actuarial losses and gains are amortized over the remaining sarvice
attnbution panods of the ermployees under the corndor method

Fair Vakie Measurements — For assets and habilities that are
measured using quoted pnces in active markets, total fair value 1s the
publishied market pnce per unit multiplied by the number of urits held
without consideration of transaction costs Assets and habilities that
are measured using significant other observable inputs are valued by
reference to similar assets or kabilties, adjusted for contract restnc-
tions and other terms specific to that asset or liabity For these ltems,
a significant portion of fair value 1s denvad by reference to quoted
pnces of similar assets or fiabilities n actve markets For all remaining
assets and labilties, fair value is derived using a fair value model, such
as a discounted cash fiow model or Black-Scholes model Purchased
intangible assets are recorded at far value The farr value of significant
purchased Intangible assets 1s based on independent appraisals
Abbott uses a discounted cash flow modsi to value intangible assets
The discounted cash flow modal requires assumptions about the
timing and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital,
larminal values and market participants Intangible assets, goodwill
and indefimte-lved mtangible assets are reviewed for impalrment at
leas! on a quartarly and annual bass, respectwvely

Shara-Based Compensation — The value of stock options and
restncied stock awards and units are amortized over ther service
penod, which could be shorter than the vesting penaod 1f an employee
15 retiremment eligible, with a charge to compsnsation expense

Litigation — Abbott accounts for itigation losses in accordance with
FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies " Under ASC No 450, loss con-
tingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s
best estimata of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be made,

a minimum loss contingsncy amaount 1s recorded Lagal fees are
recorded as ncurred

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments — Cash equivalents consist
of bark Ume deposits and U S treasury bils with onginal matunties of
three months or less Investments in marketable equity secunties and
cartaln Investments in debt secunties are classified as avalable-for-sale
and aro recorded at far valua with any unrealized holding gains or
losses, nat of tax, Included in Accumulated other comprehensive
income {loss) Investments in equity secunties that are not traded on
public stock exchanges are recorded at cost Investments in other
debt securitios are classiied as held-to-malurty, as management

has both the intent and ability 1o hold these secunbes 1o matunty,

and are reported at cost, net of any unamortized premium or discount
Income relating to these securities 1s reported as interest Income

Abbaott reviews the carrying value of investments each quarter to
datenmine whether an other than temporary decline in market value
exists Abbott considers factars affecting the investes, factors affecting
the 1ndustry the investes operates in and general eguity market trends
Abbotl considers the length of time an investment’s marke! value has
been below camying value and the near-ism prospects for recovery to
camying valug When Abbott determings that an other than temporary
decline has occurred, the Investment 1s wiitten down with a charge

to Other income) expense net
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Trade Recenvable Valuatons — Accounts recevablo are stated at their
nel realzable value The allowance against gross trade recelvables
reflects the best estimate of probable losses inherent In the recenvables
porifolo determined on the basis of histoncal expenence, spacific
allowances for known troubled accounts and other currently avaliable
nformation Accounts receivable are charged off after all reasonable
means to collect the full amount {ncluding Iiigation, where appropnate)
have been exhausted

Inventortes — Irwentanes are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out basis) or marke! Cost includes matenal and conversion costs

Property and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful Ives of the
assets The followarg table shows estimated ussful ives of propery
and egquipment

Classification Estimated Usefd Lives
Buddmgs 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)
Equipment 3 to 20 years {average 11 yaars)

Prociuct Lability — Abbott accrues for product labilty claims,

on an undiscounted basis, when it 1s probable that a lability has been
incurred and the amount of the habilty can be reasonably estimated
based on existing information The labiliies are adusted quarterly as
addtional information becomas avallable Recevables for insurance
recovenes for product Jability claims are recorded as assets, on an
undiscountad basis, when it 1s probable that a recavery will be real-
ized Product habily losses are self-insured

Research and Development Costs — internal research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as Incurred Clinical trial costs incurred by
third parties are expensed as the contracted work 1s performed Where
contingent milestone payments are dus 10 third parties under research
and development arrangements, the miestone payment cbiigations
are expensed when the mitestone results are achieved

Acquired In Process and Coliaborations Research and Developmoent
(IPR&D) — The nital costs of nghts to IPRED projects obtamed n an
asset acqusition are expensed as IPR&D unless the project has an
alternative future use These costs include initial payments incurred
prior to regulatory approval in connection with research and develop-
ment collaborabion agreements that provide nghts to develop,
manufacture, marke! and/or sell phamnaceutical products The far
value of IPR&D projects acquired 1n a business combination are
capitalzed and accounted for as indefinite-lived intangble assets

Note 2 — Supplemential Financiat information

{dollars in mifions)

Long tern Investments 202 2011 2010
Equily secuntles $213 $317 $240
Other 61 61 62
Total $274 378 $302

The loss on the extinguishment of debt of $1 35 bilion relates to the
early redemption of $7 7 billon of long term notes  The loss consists
of the premium paid on the notes and the write off of deferred financ-
ing costs 1otaling $1 83 bilhan and was partially ofiset by a gain of
$479 million related to the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to
a portion of the debt Other {income) expense. net, for 2012 includes
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mcome of approximately $60 milllon from the resoiution of a contrac-
tual agreement and a loss of approximately $62 million for the
impalment of certan equity secunties As discussed In Note 1, Other
{income) expense, nat, for 2011 includes a charge of $137 mikon to
recognize the cumulatve immatenal Impacts to 2009 and 2010 relat-
ing to the change In year end for forelgn subsidianes In addition,
Other (income} expense, nat, for 2011 includes $56 milkon of fair value
adjustments and accretion in the conlingent consideration related to
the acquisihon of Solvay's pharmaceutical business Other (income}
expense, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongong con-
tractual payments from Takeda associated with the conclusion of the
TAP joint venture

{dlallars in milions)

Other Accrued Liablitas 2012 2011 2010
Accruaed rebates payabla

1o government agencies $1,020 $1,049 $ 800
Accrued other rebates (a) 1079 1,030 862
All other {b) 4 689 5776 4,263
Tota! 6,788 57,855 36 015

{8) Accrued wholesakr chargeback rebates of $300 $239 and $216 &t December 31 2012,
2011 and 2010 respectvely are natted o trade recenables bacause Abbaoit's customers
are rworced at a higher catalog pnca but only remit to Abbett ther contract price for the
products The 2011 balances have been revisod 1o refiect a reclassfication of cerlan
amaun's from Accrued ather rebates to All other

) 2011 nciudes $1 509 related o a previously disclosed government vestigation and
$400 for acqured in process research and development 2012 2011 and 2010 lncludes
actuson consideration payable of $400 related to the acquisivon of Promal Heat*hcare
Limred's Healthcare Solutions busmess

{dollars in milhons)

Post employment Obligations and

Other Long-term Liabiities 2012 2011 2010
Defined beneft pension plans and

post employment medical and

dental plans for significant plans $4,557 $3 301 $2,425
Deferred moome texes 710 703 1112
Al other (c) 3,789 4227 4,486
Total $9,056 15,231 $8023

o) 2012 2011 and 2010 wcludes aoqusiion conskderation payable of $385 $770 and
$1 150 raspectvety related to the acquisiion of Pramal Hoakhcare Limited s Heal.hcare
Solunons busness

The judgment entered by the U S8 Bistnct Court for the Eastem Distnct
of Texas aganst Abbott in its itigation with New York Unrversity and
Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secura the jJudgment in the event that
its appeal to the Federal Circuit court was unsuccessful n overturning
the distnct court’s decision In the first quarter of 2010, Abbott depos-
ted $1 87 bilion with an escrow agent and considered these assets 10
he restricted On February 23, 2011, the Federal Carcutt reversed

the distnict court's final judgment and found Centocor s patent Invald
On Apnl 25, 2011 Centocor petiioned the Federal Circutt to rehear
and reconsider the dacision In June 2011 the Federal Circunt derved
Contocor's petion and the restnclions on the funds were lifted
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Note 3 — Financial Instruments, Denvatives and Far Value
Measuras

Certain Abbott forelgn subsidianes enter into foreign currency forward
exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated ntercompany purchases by those
subsidiaries whosa functionat currencies are not the U S dollar
These contracts, totaling $1 6 billon at December 31, 2012 and 2011
and $1 3 bilhon at December 31, 2010 are designated as cash flow
hadgss of the vanability of the cash flows due to changes n foreign
exchange rates and are recorded at fair value Accumulated gans
and losses as of December 31, 2012 will be included in Cost of
products sold at the time the products are sold, generally through

tha next twelve months Tha amount of hedge ineffectivenass was
not significant in 2012, 2011 and 2010

Abboti anters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts

o manage currency expasures for foreign currency denominated
third-party frade payables and recevables, and for Intarcompany
loans and trade accounts payable whera the recelvable or payable Is
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbodt to sell or
buy foreign currencies, pnmarly Europsan currencies and Japanese
yen, 1n exchange for pnmanly U S dollars and other European
cumencies For ntercompany and trade payables and receivables,
the currency exposures are pnmanly the U S dollar, European curren-
cles and Japanesa yen At Decamber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Abbott held $18 2 bilion, $15 7 bilion and $10 8 hilion, respeactively,
of such foreign currency forward exchange contracts

Abbatt has designated foreign denominated shorl-term dobt as a
hadgs of the net investment n a foreign subsidiary of approximately
$615 milion, $680 milkon and $650 milion as of December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively Accordingly, changas In ihe farr valug
of 1his debi due to changss In exchange ratas are recorded In
Accumulated other comprehensive Income (foss), net of tax

Abbott 1s a party to interast rate hadge contracts tolaling $9 5 billion,
$6 8 billon and $7 3 billon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectvaly, lo manage ils exposure to changes n the fair value of
fixod-rate debt These contracts are designated as far value hedges
of the vanability of the far value of fixed-rate debt due to changes n
ihe long-term benchmark nterest rates The effect of the hedge 1s to
change a fixed-rate Interest obligation to a varable rate for that portion
of the debt Abbott records the contracts at far value and adjusts
the carrying amount of the fixed-rate debt by an offsetting amount
No hedge ineffectveness was recorded in income in 2012, 2011 and
2010 for these hedges

Gross unrealized holding gains on availlable-for-sale equity secunties
totaled $51 milion, $64 milkon and $40 million at December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectvely
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The following lable summanzes the amounts and location of certaln
derwative financlal instruments as of December 31

{doffars in mifions) Fair Value — Assats Falr Valug — Uabfities

2012 201 2010 Balance Sheet Caption 2012 2011 2010 Balance Sheet Caption
Interast rale swaps designated $185 $598 $138 Deferred income $ 80 § - $ 36  Post-employment
as falr vahue hedges taxes and other assets oblgations and other

Forelgn curmancy forward

exchange contracts —

Hedging Instruments 22 15 16
Others not dasignated as hedges 98 165 109
Debt designated as a hedge of net - - —

investment in a foreign subsidrary

long-term kablilies

Other prepakd n 2 10 Other accrued
expenses and receivablas 135 179 120 fiabilities
na 615 880 650 Short-term borrowings

$305 $878 $263

5841 $861 $818

The following table summanzes the actwity for foreign curmency
torward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges, debt
designated as a hedge of net investment in a foreign subsidiary

Gain {loss) Recognized in Other

and the amounts and location of Income (expense) and gan (oss}
reclassified Into income and for cerlan other dervative financtal
instrumants  The amount of hedge neflectiveness was not significant
in 2012, 2011 and 2010 for these hedges

Ineome (expense) and Gain (loss)

(doltars &y milions) Comprehensive Income (oss) Reclassified into Income
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 Incoma Statement Caplion
Foreign currercy forward exchange $ 2 $ 65 $170 $138 $(26) $ 63 Cost of products sold
contracts designated as cash flow hedgses
Debt designated as a hedge of 65 (30) (75) — — - wva
net investment In a forafgn subsidiary
Interest rate swaps deslgnated as far value hedges na n's nva 62 488 248 nterest expense
Foreign currency forward exchange a n‘a na 108 {11) 155 Net foreign exchange

contracts not dasignated as hedges

The inferest rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges of the
vanability of the fair value of fixed-rate debt due to changes i the
long-term benchmark interest rates The hedged debt 1 marked
to market, ofisetting the effect of marking the interest rate swaps
to market

{gain} loss

The carrying values and farr values of certain financial iInstruments as
of December 31 are shown in the table below The carrying values of
all other financial iInstruments approximate their estimated farr values
The counterparties 1o inancial iInstruments consist of select major
nternational financial nstitutions  Abbott does not expect any lossos
from nonperformance by these counterparties

{doliars i mithons) 2012 2011 2010

Canying Fair Carmying Far Carmyingg Fair

Valuo Value Value Value Value Value

Long term Investment Secunties
Equity secunties $ 213 § 213 $ 7 $ 317 $ 240 $ 240
Gther 61 56 81 42 &2 43
Total Long term Debt (18 394) {19,588) {13067) {15,129) {14 568) (15 723}
Foresgn Cumency Forward Exchange Contracts
Receivabla position 120 120 280 280 125 125
{Payabta) positon {146) (146) (181) (181 (130) (130
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts
Recervable position 185 185 598 508 1468 146
{Payable) position {BO) (80) - - (36) {36)
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The following table summanzes the bases used to measuwe
ceraln assets and labilites at farr value on a recumng basls
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in the balance sheet
{doflars in mikons) Basls of Falr Value Measuremant

Cutstanding Quoted Prices in Sigrificant Othar Significant
December 31, 2012 Balances Actvo Markets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inpuls
Equity secunties $ 76 876 § - 5 —
Interest rate swap financial instrumonts 185 - 185 -
Forelgn currency forward exchange contracts 120 — 120 -
Total Assels $ 3 376 $ 305 $ —
Falr vatue of hadged long-term debl $ 9,632 $— $9,632 $ —
Interest rate swap financlal instruments 80 — 80 -
Forelgn currency forward exchange contracts 146 — 146 —
Contingent considaration related to business combinations 323 - — 323
Totat Liabilties $10,181 §— $9 858 $323
December 31, 2011
Equity securities $ 93 $93 5 - $ -
interest rate swap financial Instrumenis 598 — 598 —
Forelgn currency forward exchange coriracls 280 - 280 —
Total Assets § om $93 $ B78 $ -
Falr value of hedged lorg term debt & 7,427 $— $7 427 5 —
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 181 - 181 -
Contingsnt consideration related to business combinations 423 - — 423
Total Liabiktles $ 8031 §— $7,608 $423
December 31, 2010
Equily secunties $ 75 875 $ - $ -
Interest rate swap financial instruments 146 — 146 —
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 125 - 125 —
Tolal Assets $ 346 $75 $ 271 $ —
Falr value of hedged long term dabt 5 7,444 §— $7 444 5 -
Interest rate swap financial Instruments 36 — 36 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 130 - 130 —
Contingent conskderation related to business combinations 365 — - 365
Total Liabiives $ 7,975 $— $7 610 $365

The far value of the debt was deterrmwned based on the face value

of the dabt adjusted for the far value of the iInterest rate swaps, which
1s based on a discounted cash flow anafysis The far value of the
contingent consideration was determined based on an indepandent
apprarsal adjusted for the tme value of money, exchange and other

changes in far valug
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Note 4 — Post-Employmoent Benclits

Retiermnant plans consist of defined benefit, defined contribution and medical and dental plans Information for Abbott’s maor defined benefit ptans

and post-employment medical and dental benefit plans 15 as follows

{dollars in milons) Defined Benofit Plans Medical and Dental Plans

202 2011 2010 2012 201 2010
Prolected bensfit obligations, January 1 $ 8963 $ 8.606 $6852 $1,857 $1.673 $1,705
Sarvice cost — benefits earnad during the year 376 332 288 61 55 60
Interest cosl on projactad benefit obligattons 447 448 421 81 a8 101

Losses (galns), primanly changes In discount rates, plan design changes,

law changes and differences between actua and astmated health care costs 1,412 608 565 148 {104) {153)
Benefits pald {302) (294) {289) {83} 82) (74)
Acquisition of Solvay's phamaceuticals business - - 1,045 - - 28

Settlement — (776} - - — -

Other, primarily forelgn currency translation 108 41 276) 5 7 6

Projected banefit cbigations, Dacember 31 $11,004 $ 8,963 $ 8,606 $ 1,889 $1,657 $1.673

Plans assets at fair value, January 1 $ 6961 $7.451 $5812 $ 389 $ 396 $ 34

Actual return on plans assets B78 20 782 48 5 56

Company contnbutions 379 304 525 40 40 74

Benefits pad (302 {204) {289) {80) (52) 74)
Acquisition of Solvay’s pharmaceulicals business — - 763 - - -

Settlernent — (776) — — - —

Other, primarily foreign currency translation 33 157 (142} - — —

Plans assets at falr value December 31 $ 7,049 $6,961 $ 7,451 $ 417 $ 289 $ 396

Prolected benefit obligations

greater than plans assets December 31 $ (3,055) $(2,002) %1 155) 81,472) (1,268} 301,277)
Long term assels s 69 & 66 & 27 § - % - 8 -

Short-term babiktes 39) (35) (34) - — —

Long term kabillies (3,085) (2.033) {1,148} (1,472) {1,268) {1 277}
Net habity $(3,055) §(2,002) $1,155) 31 472) $(1,268) $(1,277)
Amounts Racognized n Accumulatad Other Comprehensive Income (loss)

Actuarlal losses, net § 4,742 %3822 $2870 § 701 $ 601 § 713
Prior service cosl (credits) 71 25 30 (322} (364) (406}
Total $ 4,813 $ 3847 $ 2909 § 379 5 237 $ 307

The projected benefit obligations for non-U S defined beneld plans was
$3 1 bilion, $2 3 bilion and $3 O bilion at December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectvely The accumulated benefit obligatons for all
definad benefit plans was $9 4 bilion, $7 7 bikon and $7 5 bilion at
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively For plans where the
accumulated bensfit oblgations exceeded plan assets at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, the aggregate accumulated benefit obligations
weore $7 9 bion, $6 7 billion and $2 0 billon, respectvely, the projpcted
benefit obligations were $9 3 bilkon, $7 @ billon and $2 2 billion, respec-
tvely, and the aggregate plan assets were $6 2 bilion, $5 8 billion and
$1 1 bilion, respectively

in connection with the saparation of AbbVie from Abbolt on January 1,
2013, Abbott will transfer certan liabilibes and assets of both defined

{doflars in mulians)

Defined Benefit Plans

benefit pansion plans and medical and dental plans The estimated
amount of the accumulated benefit cbligations, projecied benefit
obhkgations, far value of assets and deferred gains and losses to be
assumed by AbbVie are $3 9 bilion, $4 5 bilton, $3 1 bdkon and

$1 9 billion, respectively, for definad beneft plans The estmated
amount of the accumulated benefit obligations and deferred gains and
losses to be assumed by AbbVie are $501 rmillion and $114 million,
respectively, for medical and dental plans

Duning 2011, $776 mihon of assets and habilities of a plan sponsored
by Abbott Healthcare BV, a Dutch subsidiary of Abbott Laboratones,
were rrevocably transfarred to a Dutch insurance company in full
sattlemant of that plan The assets were used to purchase an annuity
contract to futfill the plan's obligations

Meadical and Dental Plans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Servce cost — benefits earned during the year $376 $332 $ 288 $ 61 $ 55 $ 60
Interest cost on projected benefil obligations aa7 446 421 81 B8 101
Expecied relurn on plans assets (B11) {608) (571} {33) 34) (31}
Sattiement - 40 - - - -
Amorization of actuanal losses 235 163 136 34 38 38
Amortization of prior servica cost {credits) 4 4 4 (42) (42 22
Total cosl § 451 sar7 $ 278 S101 5105 5146
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Other comprehansive income (loss} for 2012 includes amortzation of
actuanal kosses and pnor sarvice cost of $235 millon and $4 milkan,
raspectvaly, and net actuanal losses of $1 2 bilion for defined benefit

Abbelt 2012 Annual Report

The following table summanzes the bases used to measurs deflined
banefit plans’ assets at fair value

{doltars in mions) Basls of Fak Valus Measurament
plans and amortization of actuanal losses and pnor sevice credits of Cuoted  Significant
$34 millon and $42 milhon, respectivaly, and net actuanal losses of Prgss in Other  Sigraficant
$134 milion for medical and dental plans Other comprehensive income Outstanding Aclive  Observable Uncbservable
{loss) for 2011 includes amortization of actuanal losses and prior serice Dscember 31, 2042 Balances Markats inputs Inputs
cost of $163 milion and $4 mullion, respectively, and net actuarial losses Equities
of $1 1 blllon for defined benefit ptans and amoertization of actuanal US large cap (e} $1,731 $1,731 s - § —
losses and pnor servica crodits of $38 milion and $42 milion, respec- US mid cap ) 461 140 a1 _
tvely, and net actuanal gains of $88 milien for medical and dental plans Intemational {c) 1,558 677 881 _
Other comprehensive Income (Joss) for 2010 includas amortization of Fixad mcome securitias
actuanal losses and pnor service cost of $138 milion and $4 milion, US govemment
respectvely, and net actuanal losses of $305 milhon for defined benefit securtties (d) 843 545 og8 _
ptans and amortzation of actuanat losses and prior service cradits of Gorporate debt
$38 millon and $22 millon, respectively, and net actuanal gains of Instruments () 704 427 277 _
$177 milion for medical and dental plans The pratax amount of actuar- Non-US govemment
ial losses and prior service cost (credits) included in Accumuiated other securities {1 a3 101 572 _
comprehensva Incoma {loss) at December 31, 2012 that 15 expected Other ig) 23 18 5 _
to be recogrized in the net penodic benefit cost In 2013 ks $175 million Absolute raturn funds (h} 1,041 425 805 691
and $5 million, respectvely, for defined benefit pension plans and Commeoxdities §) 208 o 161 a8
$25 milion and ${23} milon, respectively, for medical and dental plans Other § 101 104 . 3
The weighted avarage assumptions used to determine benefit $7.049 $4,177 $3,040 $732
obligations for defined benefit plans and medical and dantal plans
December 31 2011
are as follows Equlties
Drscountvate i(:; 2(:)19:, :T:: US large cap (a) 31,470 1 449 s 21 $ —
U S mid cap {b} 423 152 271 -
Expectad aggregate average long tarm Internatonal {c} 1,217 485 732 -
change in compensalon 53% 53% 51%
Fixed income secunties
The werghted average assumptions used to determine the net cost for U S government
defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are as follows sacunties (d) 857 370 487 -
2012 2011 2010 Corporata dabt
Discount rate 5 0% 5 4% 5 6% instrumants (&) 527 223 304 -
Expected retumn on plan assets 80% 78% 78% Non US government
Expocied aggregate average securiies () 450 228 222 -
long term change in compensation 53% 51% 4 9% Qther ig) 45 21 24 -
Absolute return funds (h) 1,709 334 751 624
The assumed health cara cost trend rates for medical and dental plans Commodites {i} 183 8 165 10
al December 31 waere as follows Other () 80 78 - 2
2012 2011 2010 $6,961 $3 348 $2,977 $636
Health care cost trend rate
assumed for the nex! year 7% 7% 7% Dacember 31, 2010
Rate that the cos! trend rate Equities
gradually declines 1o 5% 5% 5% US large cap {a) $1.523 $1,409 § § -
Year that rate reaches the U'S mid cap (o] 437 162 278 -
assumed Litimate rate 2019 2019 2016 Internatonal {c) 1852 758 94 -
Fixed income securties
The discount rates used to measume labiliies were determined based U S government
on high-quality fixed income secunties that match the duration of the secunties (d 793 355 438 -
axpected retiree benefits The heallh care cost trend rates represent Corporate dabt
Abbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health care nstruments (g} 524 237 286 1
benefits and 15 a forward projection of haalth care costs as of the Non-US government
measurement date A one-percentage point ncrease/{decrease) In the secunties {f) 758 172 586 -
assumed health care cost trend rate would increase/(decraase) the Other () 40 20 19 1
accumulated post-employment benefit obligations as of December 31, Absolute returmn funds () 1426 258 582 586
2012, by $274 milion/$(222) milion, and the total of the senvice and Commodities () 242 5 234 3
interest cost components of net post-employment health care cost for Other {) 156 156 - -
tha year then ended by approximatsly $24 milion/$(19) million $7 451 $3 622 $3,238 %591
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fa} A mibxof ndax funds that track the S&P 500 (50 parcent in 2012 and 45 peccent in 2011
and 2010y and separate actvely managed equity accounts that ara benchwnarked Lo 1he
Russall 1000 (50 percent in 2012 and 55 percent in 2011 and 2010

) Amixof index funds {75 percent} and separate activaly managed equity acoounts
(25 percent) that track or are benchnarkad to the S&P 400 medcap mdex.

&) Primaniy separate actively managad pooled investment accounts that are benchmarked
to the MSCI and MSCI emergng marke! indices

{d) Wndex funds not actvely managed (50 percent in 2012 and 45 percent in 2011 and 2010
and separate ecivety managed accounts (50 percent in 2012 and 55 percent m 2011
and 2010}

{8) Index funds not actively managed {20 percent in 2012, 40 percent in 2011 and 15 percent
in 2010} and separate actively managed accounts {80 percent in 2012 60 percent in 2041
and 85 percent in 2010}

M Primady Unred Kmgdom Japan and insh govemment issued bonds

@) Prmanity mongage backed secuntes

) Pamadly funds Inves'ad by managers that have a giobal mandate with the fiaabili'y to
alloca‘e capral broadly across a wade range of asset classes and stra‘eges nchudng
byt not Lmited 1o equiies fxad YMe COMMONUES N‘eles! rate fulwes currencies
andd other securmes 10 oulperform an agread Lpon benchmark with specfic return and
volatiity targeéls

) Prmarly wwestments In bquid commodity future contracts and private energy funds

(# Pnmanly cash and cash equivalenta

Equities that are valued using quoted prices are valued at the
published market prices Equities ina common collective trust or a
registerad investment company that are valued using significant other
observable inputs are valued at the net asset value (NAV) provided by
the fund adrmunistrator The NAV 1s based on the valus of the underly-
ing assets owned by the fund minus its labilities Fed ncome
secunties that are valued using significant other observable inputs
are valued at prces obtamned from independent financial service
industry-recognized vendars  Absolute return funds and commodities
are valued at the NAV provided by the fund admimstrator Prvate
energy funds are valued at the NAV provided by the partnership on a
one quarter lag adjusted for known cash flows and significant events
through the reporting date

The tallowing table summanzes the change in the valus of assets that
are maasurad using significant unobservable inputs

{doltars m mullions) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 $636 55914 $530
Transfers in (out off from other catagodes 2 m 37}
Actual return on plan assets

Assets on hand at year end 59 (14} 41

Assets sold dunng the year {4) {1) (2
Purchases salas and settlements, net 39 61 59
Decermnber 31 8732 $536 $591

The investment mix of equity secunties, fixed income and othar asset
allocation strategies s based upon achieving a desired return, balanc-
ing tughar return, more volatile equity secunties, and lower return,

less volatie fixed income secunties tnvestrment allocations are made
across a range of markets, industry sectors, capitalzation sizes,

and i tha case of fixed Income secunties, matuntes and credit qualty
The plans do not directly hold any secunties of Abbott There are no
known significant concentrations of nsk in the plans’ assets Abbott’s
medical and dental plans® assels are invested in a similar mix as the
pension plan assets
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The plans' expacted return on assets, as shown above is based on
management's expectations of loryy termn avarage rates of return to be
achieved by the underlying mvastment portfolios In establishing this
assumption, management considers histoncal and expected returns
for the asset classes in which the plans are invested, as wall as current
aconomic and capital market conditions

Abbott funds its domestic pension plans according to IRS funding
imitations International pension plans are funded according to simitar
regulations Abbott funded $379 million in 2012, $394 milion in 2011
and $525 millon in 2010 to defined pension plans Abbott expects
pansion funding for its main domestic pansion plan of $170 milion In
2013 The projected decrease reflects the separation of AbbVie from
Abbott and the transfer of certain assets and liabilities to AbbVie

Total benefit paymenis expacted to be pa to paruicipants, gvng
effect to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott, which mcludes
payments funded from company assets as well as pad from the
plans, are as follows

Defined Medical and
(dollars in milkons) Benefil Plans Dental Plans
2013 $ 173 $ 78
2014 183 80
2015 197 83
2018 21 87
2007 224 20
201810 2022 1367 S10

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan 1s the pnncipal defined contnbution
plan Abboit's contnbutions 1o this plan were $150 million in 2012,
$151 milion m 2011 and $147 mithon in 2010

Abbott prowides certain other post-employment benafits, pnmarily
salary continuation plans, to gqualifying domestic employess, and
accrues for the related cost over the service Iives of the employeos

Note 5 - Taxes on Eamings

Taxes on earnings reflect the annual effective rates, including charges
for nterest and penalties Delerred (ncome taxes reflect the tax conse-
quences on future years of diferences betwean the tax bases of assets
and labiltes and ther financial reporting amounts  The $620 million
domestic loss before taxes in 2012 includes Abbaott's $1 35 billion net
loss on the earty extinguishment of dabt and approximately $395 milion
of separation relaled expenses U S income taxes are provided on
thosa sarnings of foreign subsidianaes which are intended to be remitted
to tha parent company Abbott does not record defared income taxes
on earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign subsicianes Undistnbuted
earrungs reinvested ndafinitely In foreign subsidianes as working capital
and plant and equipment aggregated $40 0 bilion at December 31,
2012 It 1s not practicable to determine the amount of deferred mcome
taxes not provided on these earmings Inthe U S, Abbott's federal
ncoma tax returns through 2009 are sellled except for one item, and
the income tax returns for years after 2009 are open There are numer-
ous other ncoma lax junsdictions for which tax returns am not yst
settied, none of which are indwvicually significant Reserves for interast
and penalties are not significant
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Earnings before taxes, and the related prowisions for taxes on
eamings, were as follows

{clofars n milions)

Eamings Before Taxes 2012 2011 2010
Dornestic § (620) $ 364 $ (275)
Foregn 6,883 4835 5,988
Total $6,263 $5,199 $5713
Taxes on Earmnings 2012 201 2010
Cumrent

Domastic $ 198 % (566) $ 1,462
Foreign 1,230 1187 835
Total current 1428 601 2,297
Deferred

Domestic (483} 162 {1,068)
Forelgn (645) (293) {142)
Total deferred (1 128) {131} (1,210)
Total $ 300 $ 470 $ 1087

Differences between the effectve income tax rate and the U S
statutory tax rate were as follows

2012 201 2010
Statutory lax rate on earrungs 350% 350% 350%
Benefit of lower foreign tax rates
and tax examplons {24 9) {22 9} (19 4)
Resotution of certan tax positions
pertaimng to pnor years 65 112 —
Effect of non deductible htigation reserve 08 91 -
State taxes, net of fadaral benafit a1 ©4) 04
All other net 05 {06) 30
Effactive tax rate on earnings 4 8% 9 0% 18 0%

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, total deferred 1ax assels
were $7 4 billon, $6 3 bilion and $6 1 billon, respectively, and total
deferred tax labilties were $2 6 bilion, $2 9 billion and $3 O bilion,
raspectively Abbott has incurred losses In a foreign junsdiction where
realization of the fulure economic benefit 1s so remote that the benefit
15 not reflected as a deferred tax assel Valuation allowances for
raecorded deferred tax assets were not significant The tax effect of
the differances that give nse to deferred tax assets and habilities
were as follows

{doflars i mutons) 2012 2011 2010
Gompensation and employes benefits $1,936 51658 $1.327
Trade receivable reserves 557 492 525
Inventory reserves 21 212 203
Defemred intercompany profit 1,095 n 255
State ncome taxes 197 227 233
Depreciation {75) {164) 64)

Acquwed in process research and
davelopmant and other accruals and

reserves not currently deductible 3,278 2 BB6 3,401

Qther, primanty the excess of book

basis over tax basis of intangible assets (2,447) {2,838) (2 BOG)
Total 54752 $3,386 $ 3,065
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The following table summanzes the gross amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits without regard to reduction in tax labilities or addiions to
deferrad tax assets and labities if such unrecognized tax benefits
ware settied

{doliars in milions) 2012 2011 2010
January 1 $2 123 $2,724 s2.172
Increass duo to cument year iax positions 673 588 635
Increase dus to prlor year tax posfions 62 282 171
Decraasa due to prior year tax positions {438) 824) 94)
Setttaments (163) [B47) {180)
Decamber 31 $2,257 $2,123 $2,724

The totat amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate Is approximately $2 O billon Abbott
believes that it 1s reasonably possible that the recorded amount of gross
unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by $550 milkon to $650 million,
including cash adjustmants, within the next twalve months as a resull of
concluding vanous domestic and imternational lax matters

Note 6 — Segment and Geographic Area Informatieon

Abbott's pnncipal business is the discovery, development, manufacture
and sale of a broad Iine of health care products Abbott's products are
genarally sold directly to retallers, wholesalers, hospitals, health care
faciities, laboratones, physicians’ offices and government agencies
throughout the world  Effective January 1, 2012, certan international
operations were transferrad from ihe Established Pharmaceutical
Products segment to the Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment
The segment information below has been adjusted to reflect this reorga-
nization Abbbott's reportable segments are as follows

Propriotary Pharmaceutical Products —Worldwide sales of a broad Ine
of propristary pharmaceutical products

Estabiished Pharmaceutical Products —International sales of a broad
lne of branded genenc pharmaceutical products

Nuiritional Products —Worldwide sales of a broad line of adult and
pediatnc nuintional products

Diagnostic Products —Worldwide sales of diagnostic systems and
tests for blood banks, hospitals, commercial laboratones and alter-
nate-care testing sites For sagment reporting purposes, the Core
Laboratones Diagnostics, Molecular Dragnostics, Point of Care and
Ins diagnostic dmisions are aggregated and reported as the Dagnostc
Products segment

Vascular Products—Worldwida sales of coronary, endovascutar,
structural heart, vessel closure an other medical device products

Non-raportable segments inciude the Diabetes Care and Medical
Optics segments

Abbott's underlying accounting records are mantainad on a legal entity
basis for government and public reporting requirements Segment
disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with internal man
agemant reporiing Intersegment transfers of inventory are recorded at
standard cost and are not a measure of segment operaling sarnings
The cost of some corporate functions and the cost of certain

39




Abbott 2012 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ampkiyoe benefits are charged to segments at predetemmined rates
that approximate cost Remaining costs, If any, are not allocated to
segments For acquisittons pnor to 2006, substantally all mtangible
assets and related amortization are not allocated to segments In addi-
tion, no intangible assets or related amortization are allocated to the

Established Pharmaceutical Products sagment The following segment
information has been prepared in accordance with the internal
accounting policies of Abbott, as desenbed above, and am not pra-
sented In accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnclples
applied to the consolidated financial stataments

Net Sales 1o Operating Depreclation Additions 1o

{dollars i milions) External Customers {a} Egrnings (a) and Amortization Long term Assels Total Assets

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2002 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Propnatary
Phermaceuticals $18,012 $17,080 $15380 $ 7048% 7,202 $6592 $ 622 % 630 $ 553 $ 2560 $ 168 32,775 512,026 $10974 $11,421
Established
Phamacauticals {b) 5121 5355 4,461 1,237 1254 938 158 169 148 237 183 2,804 5704 6986 6,730
Nutnionals 6471 6006 5532 1,018 707 7 1M 183 177 458 205 163 3583 3241 3244
Diagnostics 4282 4,128 3784 804 766 559 315 339 244 349 409 319 3007 3429 3462
Vascular 3071 3333 31 802 980 910 195 233 252 659 148 528 5301 5272 5,390
Total Reportable
Sagments 36967 35900 32,370 $11.910$10,908 30776  $1479 $1563 $1,374  $1,369 $1,113 $6,593  $30,521 320,002 $30,247
Other 2907 2851 2,797
Nat Sales $30,874 %38 851 335167

) Netsnkes and operating earnngs were unlavorably affected by the refatnvely stronger U S dollar in 2012 and werg favorably affected by the refatively weaker US dollar in 2011 end 2010
{b)  Adpnons tolong term assets in 2010 tor the Estabished Pharmaceutical Products segment nchude goodwill of $2 797

(doflars in mifhons) 2012 2011 2010
Total Reportabla Segment

Dparating Earnings $11910 $10,889 $9,776
Corporate functions and

benefit plans cosls B51) (529) {568}
Non reportable segments 335 2716 139

Net nterest expense {513} {445) {448}
Net koss on extinguishmemn of dabt {1,351} - -

Acquired in process and

collaborations research

andd development (288) 673) 313
Share-based compansation (433) (383} (387)
Other, net (c) (2 746) (4,048) {2 496)
Consolidated Earnings Before Taxes $ 6263 $ 5,199 $6713

Nat Sales 1o
External Customers {f) Long term Assats
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

(doflars in mullions)

United States $16784 $16014 $15194 15244 $15867 $16 769
Japan 2441 2342 2025 1169 1225 1,172
Germany 1740 1759 1846 8,473 5809 5950
The Nethartands 1,883 2,108 2001 532 462 312
ltaly 1127 1188 1,144 za2 229 242
Canada 1,253 1098 1,036 352 237 224
France 1167 1,297 1,216 220 214 87
Spain 942 1,063 1,066 314 293 201
United Kingdom 1049 971 888 1345 1273 1,272
india 233 931 501 3,467 3160 3.7N

All Other Countries 10,555 10,079 8,250 6,874 7639 8,148

¢ Other net for 2011 inciudas a charge of $1 509 related 1o a previeusly disclosad
government mvestigation Other net for 2012 2011 and 2010 nickeies chivges of
$1 309 $402 and $881 raspocivety for separa ion related costs n 2012 and for cost
reduchon mitialves and in*egraton

{dolars i mithons) 2012 2011 2010
Total Reportable Segment Assels 830 521 $20,802 $30,247
Cash, investments and restncted funds 15,448 8,476 7,626
Current deferred mcome taxes 2,986 2701 3076
Non reportable segments 4413 4173 5385

Al other nat, prmarily goodwill and
intangible assets not allocated

1o reportable segments

Total Assets

13 867 15,025
$67 235 $60,277

14 240
360 574

a0

Consohdated $39,874 538,851 $35167 $35912 $38,508 538,266

id} Sales by coun fy are based on the couniry that sokt the product
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Note 7 — Liigation and Environmenlal Matters

Abbott has been identffied as a potentially responsible party for
invastigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations n the United
States and Puerto Rico under fedaral and state remediation taws and
is investigating potential contamination at a number of company-
owned locations Abbott has recorded an estimated cleanup cost for
each sits for which management believes Abbott has a probable loss
exposure No indwvidua! site cleanup exposure is expected to exceaed
$4 muilion, and the aggregate cleanup exposure 15 not expected to
axceed $15 milion

There are a number of patent disputes with third parties who claim
Abbott's products infringe thelr patents On February 21, 2012, the
United States Supreme Court denied Centocor Inc 's and New York
University's petition to review a February 2011 Federal Circuit Court
of Appeals decision reversing a $1 67 billlon judgment In favor of
Centocor and New York Universidy on a patent they claimed Abbotts
HUMIRA infrnged  This decision concludes the case

The United States Department of Justice, through the United States
Altomaey for the Western Distnct of Virginia, and vanous state
Altorneys General Investigated Abbolt's sales and marketing actmvities
for Depakote The government sought to determine whether any

of these actvitias violated cml and/or cniminal laws, including the
Foderal Falsa Clams Act, the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, and the
Anti-Kickback Statute in connection with Medicare and/or Medicaid
rembursement to third parties The state Attornays General offices
sought o determing whether any of these activities violated vanous
state laws, including state consumer fraud/protection statutes

Abbott recorded charges of $1 5 billion in the third quarter of 2011
and $100 mibon in the first quarter of 2012 related to cvl and crmimal
clams ansing from this matter In May 2012, Abbott reached resolution
of all Depakote-related federal claims, Medicaid-related claims with

49 states and the Distnet of Columbia, and consumer protection
clams with 45 states and the District of Columbia In 2012, Abbott
paid approximately $1 6 billon for the seltiement The payments were
material o Abbott's cash flows in 2012

Abbott gstimates the range of possible bss for its legal proceedings
and ervironmental exposuras to be from approximatety $70 million
to $100 milien The recorded accrual balance at December 31, 2012
for these proceedings and exposures was approximately $80 mifion
This accrual represents management's best estimate of probable loss,
as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies ™ Within the next
year, legal proceedings may occur that may result In & changa In the
estimated loss accrued by Abbott While il 13 nol feasible to pradict
the outcoma of all such proceedings and exposuras with certainty,
management beligvas that ther ultmate disposiion should not have
a matenal adverse effect on Abbott's financial position, cash flows,

or results of operations
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Note 8 — Incenlive Stock Program

The 2009 Incentive Stock Prograrm authonzes the granting of
nonqualifiad stock options, replacement stock options, restncted
stock awards, restricted stock units, performance awards, foreign
benefits and other share-based awards Stock options, eplacement
stock options and restncted stock awards and unils compnse the
majorty of bensfits that have been granted and are currently cutsiand
ing under this program and a pnor program In 2012, Abbott granted
1,831,213 stock options, 2,124,743 replacement stock oplions,
1,134,062 restnicted stock awards and 7,056,609 restncted stock
units under this program The purchase price of shares under option
must be at lsast equal to the fair market value of the common stack
on the dato of grant, and the maximum term of an option 1s 10 years
Options vest equally over three years except for replacement options,
which vest n six months Options granted before Janwary 1, 2005
included a eplacement featura Except for options outstanding that
have a replacement feature, options granted after December 31, 2004
do nat nclude a raplacement feature Whan an empioyes tenders
mature sharas to Abbott upon exercise of a stock option, a replace-
ment stock option may be granted equal {0 the amount of sharss
tendered Replacemant optons are granted at the then cumant market
pnce for & term that expires on the date of the undertying option grant

Upon a change in control of Abbott, all cutstanding stock aptions
become fully exercisable, and all terms and conditions of all restnctad
stock awards and units are deemed satislied Restricted stock awards
generally vest between 3 and 5 years and for restricted stock awards
that vest over 5 ysars, no more than one-third of the award vests in
any one year upon Abbott reaching a minimum return on equity targat
Resincted stock units vest over three years and upon vesung, the
reciplent recavas cne share of Abbott stock for each vested restncted
stock unit The aggregate far markat value of mestncted stock awards
and units 1s recognized as expansa over the servics period Restricted
stock awards and settlement of vested resincted stock units are
issued out of reasury shares Abbott generally 1Issues new shares

for exercises of stock options Abbott does not have a palicy of
purchasing its shares relating to its share-based programs

At December 31, 2012, approxsmately 155 millon shares wera
reserved for future grants Subseguent to year end, the reserve was
reduced by approximately 25 miflion shares for stock options and
resinicted stock awards and units granted by the Board of Directors

tn connection with the separation of AbbVie from Abbott on January 1,
2013, Abbott employees, ncluding those employees transfernng to
AbbVie, holding stock options or restncied stock awards or units as
of December 31, 2012 generally receved one AbbVie stock option for
each Abbaott stock option held and one AbbVie restncted stock award
or unit for each Abbott award or unit held For Abbott stock options,
the exercise pnee of an Abbott oplion was adjusted to reflect the effect
of the separation The per share data presented below has not been
adjusted 1o seftact this adjustment on the par share amounts
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The number of restncted steck awards and units ouistanding and the
weyghted-average grant-date farr value at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2012 was 14,608,595 and $50 29 and 15,506,416 and
$53 17, respectively The number of restncted stock awards and units,
and the weighted-average grant-date fair value, that wers granted,

vested and lapsed dunng 2012 were 8,190,671 and $56 74, 6,774,145
and $51 32 and 608,705 and $52 32, respectvely The far market value
of restncted stock awards and units vested i 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $385 million, $237 mition and $203 millon, respactively

Options Quistanding Exarclsable Options

Weighted Weighted Weighted Wenghted

Average Average Average Average

Exercise Remaining Exercise Remaining

Shares Pnce Life (Years) Shares Price Lita (Years)

December 31, 2011 85,439,279 $50 52 47 81,734,460 $50 51 45
Granted 4,056,956 60 91
Exercised (40,923,624} 4973
Lapsed (380,717} 60 63

December 31, 2012 48,190,894 $51 98 40 43,052 067 $£51 36 37

The aggregate intnnsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2012 was $679 millon and $633 malion, respectively
The total Intrinsic value of options exercised in 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $528 milion, $94 mthon and $77 millon, respectively The total
unrecognized compansation cost related to all share-based compen-
sation plans at December 31, 2012 amounted to approximatety

$174 million, gving effact o the separation of AbbVie from Abbott,
which 1s expected to be recognized over the next thres years

Total non-cash compensation expense charged aganst income in
2012, 2011 and 2010 for share-based plans totaled approximately
$433 mulhon, $383 milion and $385 million, respectively, and the tax
benafit recognized was approximately $132 milion, $116 millon and
$119 million, respectively Compensation cost capialized as part of
inventory 15 not significant

The far value of an option granted 1n 2012, 2011 and 2010 was

$6 80, $6 23, and $9 24, respactivaly The far value of an option grant
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions

2012 2011 2040
Risk free interest rate 12% 27% 25%
Average Iife of oplions (years) 60 60 80
Volatilty 21 0% 210% 22 0%
Dwvidend yield 36% 41% 32%

The nsk-free interest rale 1s basad on the rates avattable at the time of
the grant for zero-coupon U S government issuas with a remaning
term equal to the option’s expected Ife The average lfe of an option s
based on both histoncal and progcted exercise and lapsing data
Expected volatiity 1s based on imphed volatities from traded options
on Abbott's stock and historical volatility of Abbott’s stock over the
expected life of the option  Dividend yisld is based on the option’s
exarcise price and annual dividend rate at the timse of grant
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Nole 9 — Debt and Lutes of Credit
The following 15 a summary of long-term debt at December 31

{doltars m miions) 2012 2011 2010
5 15% Notas, due 2012 8 - 5 - $ 1,000
1 95% Yen Notes due 2013 - 3z1 299
4 35% Notas, due 2014 - 500 500
1 2% Notes, due 2015 (1} 3,500 — —
Vanable Rate Notes, dua 2015 {1) 500 —_ —
2 7% Notes, due 2015 - 750 750
5 875% Notes, due 2016 — 2,000 2000
1 75% Notes, dus 2017 (1) 4 000 - -
5 6% Notes, due 2017 — 1,500 1500
2 0% Notes, due 2018 (1) 1000 - —
5 125% Notes, due 2019 947 2,000 2000
4 125% Notes, due 2020 597 1,000 1,000
2 9% Notes due 2022 (1) 3,100 - -
6 15% Noles due 2037 547 1,000 1,000
6 0% Notes due 2039 515 1000 1000
5 3% Notes due 2040 694 1250 1250
4 4% Notes due 2042 (1} 2,600 — —

Other, including fair value adjustments
relating to interest rate hedge contracts

designated as far value hedges 85 719 225
Total net of current matunties 18,085 12 040 12,524
Cunvent maturties of long-temm deb 308 1,027 2,045
Totat carrying amount $18,304 $13,067 $14 569

{1) Thesa notes were 1ssuad by AbbVia inc i November 2012 Wi h the saparation of
AbbVie on January 1, 2013 Abbo't no longer has any oblgations rela ed 1o this deb’

In 2012, Abbott redeerned $7 7 bilion of its outstanding notes Abbott
incurred a cost of 81 35 billon to extingwsh this debt, net of gains
from the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to the debt In 2012,
AbbVie Inc , a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, 1ssued $14 7 billon
of lang-term debt with matuntes ranging from 3 to 30 years The debt
issued by Abbvie Inc was guaranteed by Abbott with the guarantee
expiring when AbbVie Inc separated from Abbott on January 1, 2013

After the separation of AbbVia from Abbott on January 1, 2013, prnci-
pal payments required on long-term debt outstanding and retained by
Abbott are $308 milion in 2013 and $3 3 billion in 2019 and thereafter
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At December 31, 2012, Abbott’s long-terms debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Service
In the thard quarter 2012, Abbott replaced unused lines of credit of

$3 0 billion and $3 7 billon that were to expra in October 2012 and in
2013, respactivaly, with two five-year credit facilities totaling $7 0 bilion
that support commercial paper bomowing arrangements One of the
credit faciliies totalng $2 0 billion will support AbbVie commearcial paper
bormowings after separaton and expired for Abbott at the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 Abbott's weighted-average
interest rate on short-term borrowings was O 4% at December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010

Note 10 — Business Combinations, Technology Accusitions
and Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Piramal Healthcare Limited's
Healthcare Solutions business, a leader in the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 bilion, in cash, plus additional payments of $400 mil-
hon annually m 20141, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbott recorded a

$1 6 bilion lability for the present value of the addiional payments at
the acquesition date The acquisition was financed with cash The allo-
cation of the far valua of the acquisition resultad in the recording of
£2 7 bilion of deductible acquired Intangible assets and $1 0 billion

of deduchible goodwill Acquired intangible assets consist pnmarily of
trade names, customer relationships and assoclated nghts and are
amortized over an average of 19 years

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay s pharmaceuticals busthess
{Solvay Pharmacauticals) for approximately $6 1 billion, in cash, plus
additional payments of up to EUR 100 millkon per year If certain sales
milastones are met in 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $280 million was recorded The acguisshion of Solvay
Phamaceuticals provided Abbott with a large and complemantary
portfolio of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott s presenca
In key global emerging markets Abboll acquired control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
oparations are Included In these financlal statements beginning on
thal date Net sales for the acquired operations for 2010 were approxi-
mately $3 1 bilion Pretax loss of the acquired operations, including
acquisiion, integration and restructunng expenses, for 2010 was
approximately $395 milion The acquisition was funded with cash and
short-tarm investments The allocation of the farr value of the acquisi-
tion resulted in the recording of $2 2 billion of non-deductible goodwall,
$4 1 bilvon of non-deductible intangble assets, $500 million of non-
decluctible acquired in-process research and development assets, net
tangble assets of $700 milion and defetred income taxes of $1 1 bil-
lion Acquired mntangible assets consist primarity of product rights for
currently marketed products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years
({average of 11 years} Acquired in-process research and development
projects are accounted for as indefinite Ived intangible assets until reg-
ulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assets acouired
cansist pnmantly of trade accounts recevable of approximately $675 mil
hon, inventory of approxmately $390 milion, property and equipment
of approximately $725 milion, net of assumed liabiities, pnmarly trade
accounts payable, accrued compensation and other labihties

Had tha acquisition of Salvay Pharmaceuticals taken place on
January 1, 2010, unaudied pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diluted earnings per sharg for 2010 would have been $35 8 bilion,
$4 6 bilbon and $2 98, respectivaly The pro forma miormation ncludes

Abbott 2012 Annual Report

adjustments for amorteation of intangible assets and far value adjust-
ments to acquisition-date inventory as well as acquisition, integration
and mstructunng expenses The pro forma financial iInformation is not
necessanly indicative of the mesults of operations as they would have
been had the transaction besn effected on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acqured STARLIMS Technologies for approxi-
mately $100 million, in cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, prowviding
Abbott with leading products and expertise to bulld its position in
laboratory informatics A substanta portion of the falr value of the
acquisition has been allocated to goodwill and amortzable intangible
assets In Apnl 2010, Abbott acqured the outstanding shares of Facet
Biotech Corpaoration for approximately $430 millon, in cash, net of
cash held by Facet The acquisition enhanced Abbott's sarly- and
mid-stage pharmaceutical pipeline, including a blologic for mulliple
sclerosis and compounds that complement Abbott's oncology
program A substantal portion of the fair value of the acquisition was
allocated to acquired in-process research and development that Is
accounted for as an indefinite-Ived intangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acqusiions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoll-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly different
from reported amounts

Abbott's Propnstary Pharmaceutical Products segment has entered into
vanous collaboration research and development agreements [n 2012,
Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under davelopment for the prevention
of acute kidney injury associated with major cardiac surgery in patients
at iIncreased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott recorded a
charge to acquired in-procass and collaborations research and develop-
ment of $110 millon In addiion, n 2012, Abbott entared into a global
collaboration to davelop and commercialize an oral, next-generation
JAK1 nhitstor in Phase |l development with the potential to treat multiple
autoimmune diseases, and as a result of this transaction Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired in-process and collaborations research
and development of $150 millon Additional payments of approxmately
$1 2 brllon could be required for the achievement of certain davelop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agreement
Undar another collaboration, Abbott was granted the nghis in 2012 to
utihze up to three antibody-drug conjugate compounds and Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired In process and collaborations research
and davelopment of $28 millon Additonal payments of approximately
$220 milion for each licensed compound could be required for the
achigvement of certain development, regulatory and commercig mie-
stones under this agreement In connection with the acquisition of
Solvay Phamnaceuticals, the achievement of a certain sales milestone
rasutted in a payment of approximatety $134 mdbon in the first quarter
of 2012 for whuch a lability was previously establshed

Duning 2010 and 2011, Abbott entered into a senes of transactions

with Reata Pharmacauticals which included (1) a colfaboration agree-
ment for the joint davelopment and commeraialization of secand
gonaration oral antioxidant inflammation modutators resulting in a charge
to acquired i process and collaborations research and devalopment of
$400 melton in 2011, (2) an agreement to acquire icensing nghts outsice
the U S, excluding certain Asian markels, to bardoxolone methyl a
product n development for the treatment of chronic kidnay disease
resulting in a charge to acquired In-process and collaborations research
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and development of $238 mullior in 2010 and (3) the acquisition of
equrty nterests in Reata of $62 millon each in 2011 and 2010 In 2011,
certaln milestones were achieved in the development for the treatment
of chronic kidney dissase and charges to acquired in-process and col-
laborations research and development of $188 millon were recorded

In the first quarter of 2012, $50 million of research and development
expense was recorded related to the achievernent of a climical develop-
mant milestone under the license agreement The license agresmant
requines additional payments of up to $150 millon if certain developmant
and regulatory milestones assoclated with the chronic kidney disease
compound are achieved

On QOctober 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that it is discontinuing
the Phase 1ll elinical study for bardoxolone methyi for chronic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott will closely examine the data from this
study to detarmine whether thera is an appropnate path forward for
tha development of bardoxolene methyl in chronic kiiney disease or
other Indications [n the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approximately $50 million for the impairment of the equily
investment in Reata

In 2011, Abbott entered into an agreemant with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialize a freatment for rheumatold arthntis and psoriasis
resulting in a charge to acquired in-process and coltaboratons
rasearch and development of $85 milion Additronal payments totaling
up to $395 millon based on projected regutatory approval irnetnes
could be required for the achievement of certain devetopment, regula-
tory and commercial mikestones under this agreement in 2010, Abbolt
entered into an agreemeant with Neurocnne Biosciences to develop
and commercialize a product for the treatment of endometnosis result-
ing In a charge to acquived IN-process and collaboralions research

and davelopment of $75 million Additional payments of approximately
$500 milion could be required for the achievemeant of certain develop-
ment, regutatory and commercial milestanes under this agreement

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangtble Assets

Abbott recorded goodwill of approximately $3 4 bilion in 2010 related
to the acquisitions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business, Piramal
Healthcars Limited's Healthcare Sclubons business, Facet Biotech and
STARLIMS Technologies Goodwill related to the Solvay, Piramal and
Facet acquisittons was allocated to the pharmaceutical products seg-
mants In addition, 1n 2010, Abbott pad $250 mullion to Boston
Sciantific as a rasult of the approval to markat the Xence V drug-elut-
ing stent in Japan, resulting In an increase in goodwill in the Vascular
Products segment  Foreign currency translation and other adjustments
nereased (decreased) goodwill in 2012, 2011 and 2010 by $69 mul-
lion, $(225) rmilbon and $(B879) milkon, respectively The amount of
goadwill related to reportable segments at Decermber 31, 2012 was
$6 3 bilion for the Propnatary Pharmaceutical Products segment,

$3 0 billion for the Established Phammaceutical Products segment,
$209 milion for the Nutnhional Products segment, $385 mllion for the
Diagnostic Products segment, and $2 7 biflion for the Vascular
Products segment There were no significant reductions of goodwill
relating 1o impairmants or disposal of all or a portion of a business

The gross amount of amortizable intangible assets, pnmanly product
nghts and technology was $17 6 bifion, $17 5 bilion and $17 3 bition
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as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and accumu-
lated amorlization was $9 7 bilion, $8 3 bifion and $6 5 bifion as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Indefinite-lived
intangible assets, which relate to in-process research and davelop-
ment acqured in a business combination, were approximately $691
milkon, $814 mukon and $1 4 billlon at December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectivaly in 2012 and 2011, Abbott recorded Impairment
charges of $82 milkon and $174 milion, respectively, for certain
rasearch ard development assats due to changes in the projected
development and ragulatory timelines for the projects The 2012
charge refates to a non-reportable segment and in 2011, $125 millilon
related to a non-reportable sagment and $49 million related to the
Other category in Abbott's segment reporting Discounted cash flow
analysis was used to analyze fair value and the charges are includsd In
rasearch and development expenses The estimated annual amoriza-
tion expense for intangible assets recorded at December 31, 2012,
adjusted for the separation of AbbVie from Abbott, is approximately
$800 rmulkon in 2013, $675 million in 2014, $530 millon in 2015,

$605 million in 2016 and $565 millon in 2017 Intangible assat
amortizaton 1s included in Cost of products sold in the consolidated
statement of earnings Amortizable intangible assets are amortized
over 2 to 30 years (average 11 years)

Note 12 - Restructunng Plans

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans lo strearnline vanous
commaercial operations in order to reduce costs and improve efficien-
ces in Abbott's core diagnoshics, established pharmaceutical and
nutriionals businesses Abbott recorded employes related severance
charges of approximately $167 milion in 2012 Additional charges of
approximately $22 million were also recorded in 2012, pnmarily for
asset imparments Approximately $70 milion is recerdad in Caost of
products sold and approximately $119 milion as Seling, general and
admirustrative expense As of December 31, 2012, no signiicant cash
payments have been mads refating to these actions

In 2011 and pror years, Abbott management approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and development operations in order to reduce cosis In
2011 and 2010, Abbolt recorded charges of approximately $194 mil-
lion and $56 millon, respectvely, reflecting the imparmsnt of
manufactuning faciibes and other assets, employee severance and
other refated charges Approximately $76 milkon 1in 2011 1s classilied
as Cost of products sold, $68 million as Ressarch and development
and $49 million as Selling, general and administratve  Approximaltely
$56 mition in 2010 is classified as Cost of products sokd The following
summanzes the actwly for these restuctunngs

{dolars v milions)

Accrued batance at January 1 2010 $ 145
2010 restructurng charges 56
Payments impaimants and other adustments {124)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 77
2011 restruciuring charges 194
Payments, impakments and other adjustments (94}
Accrued balance al Dacemmber 31, 2011 177
Payments and other adjustments (48)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 $ 128
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An addtional $110 mifion, $25 mlion and $13 midlion wera recorded
n 2012, 2011 and 2010, respactively, retating to these restructurings,
primanly for acceleraled depreciation

in 2012 and 2010, Abbott managsmenl approved restructurng plans
pnmanly related to the acquistion of Solvay's phamacauticals busk-
ness These plans streamiine operations, improve efficiencies and
reduce costs In certain Solvay sites and functions as well as In certain
Abbott and Solvay commercial organizations In various countnes

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $150 milkon for
employee severance and contractual obligations, primarily related to
the extt from a research and development facity Approximately
$142 milion is recordad as Research and devetopment and $8 millon
as Seling, generat and administratve In 2010, Abbott recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Selling, general and adeministrative of approximately $99 millicn,

$152 milion and $272 million, respectively The following sumimanzes
the activity for these restructunngs

(doliars in mihons)

2010 restructunng charge $523
Payments, impalrments and other adustments {113)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 410
Payments and other adjustmants {302)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 108
Rastructunng charges 150
Paymenis and other adjustments {143}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 $115

An additional $38 milion, $102 milion and $12 milkon ware recardad
1 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivaly, relating to these restructunngs,
pnmarily for additional employes severance and accelerated
depreciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to streamline
global manufactunng operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
sfficiencies in Abhott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge

of $28 millon was recorded in Cost of products sold Tha following
summarizas the actity for these restructurings

(ciotars in nvfhons)

Accruad balance at Janyary 1, 2010 $98
Payments and other adjustments {10}
Accrued batance at December 31, 2010 88
2011 restructunng charge 28
Paymenis and other adjustments [37)
Accrued balance a1 December 31, 2011 19
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Acciued balance at December 31 2012 %56

In addilion, charges of approximately $16 milion, $42 millon and $60
rillon were recorded in 2012, 2011 and 2010, pnmardy for acceler-
ated depreciation and product transfer costs
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Note 13 — Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

{daltars in milions except per sharg dals) 2012 2011 2010
First Qusarter

Net Sales $9,456 6 $9.0409 57,698 4
Gross Profit 57317 51818 4,363 2
Net Earnings 1.2421 B63 8 1,0030
Basic Earnings Per Common Sharé (a} 79 56 65
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (z) 78 55 64
Market Price Per Shara High 56149 49 45 56 79
Market Price Per Share-Low 5396 45 07 52 21
Second Quarter

Net Sales $9 8071 $96163 £8,826 0
Gross Profit 65,1698 57458 5,282 1
Net Earnings 1,724 6 19428 1201 7
Basic Earnings Per Commen Share (@} tog 124 83
Diuted Earmnings Per Common Share {a) 108 123 83
Market Price Per Share-High 64 47 54 24 5326
Market Price Per Share-Low 59 04 49 05 45 26
Thirgd Quarter

Net Sales $9,7733 $98167 $8,674 5
Gross Proft 60752 58434 49334
Net Earnings 1,9428 3032 8907
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a) 122 18 58
Diluted Earnings Per Commeon Share (a} 12 19 57
Market Pnce Per Share-High 7041 53 60 52 86
Markat Price Per Share Low 63 51 46 29 44 59
Fourth Quarter

Net Sales $10,8369 $10377 4 $9,867 8
Gross Profit BTITS 6,539 6 59228
Net Earnings 1,053 4 16187 1,4408
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a} 866 103 a3
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (g) 66 102 a2
Market Price Per Share-High 7247 56 44 5375
Market Prica Per Share Low 62 62 48 96 46 03

{a) Thesum of the quariers basic earnmg@s par share for 2014 and 2010 and dibtad eamings
per share for 2042 and 2011 do not add 1o the full year earnngs per shara amounts dug ta
rounding
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Management Repott on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

The management of Abbott Laboratones is responsible for establishing
and mantaning adequate nternal control over financial reporting Abbott's
ntemal control system was designed to provide reasenable assurance to
the company’s management and board of directors regarding the prep-
aration and far presentation of published financial statements

All internal control systermns, no matter how well designed, have
irherent hmitabions  Therefore, even those systems determined to
be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and prasentation

Abbott's management assessed the effectiveness of the company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012

In making this assessment, it used the critena set forth in Interral
Conlrol — integrated Framawork issued by the Committee of Sponsonng
Organizatons of the Treadway Commission Based on our assessment,
we believe that, as of December 31, 2012, the company's Intemal control
over financial reporting was effective based on thoss cntena

Abbott’s independant registered public accounting firm has issued an
audit repaort on their assassment of the effectveness of the company's
internal control over financial reporting  This report appears on page 47

Mites D White
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C Frayman
Executve Vica President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Greg W Linder
Vice President and Controller

February 15, 2013
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratortes

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Abbott Laboratones and subsidianes {tha “"Company”) as of
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the related consoldated
stataments of earnings, comprshansive income, shareholders’
investment, and cash flows for the ysars then ended These financial
staternents are the responsiility of the Company’s management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thess financial
statements based on our audits

Wa conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtan reason-
able assurance about whether the tinancial staternents are free of
matenal misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
ewidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financlal
statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting pnrciples
used and signficant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financtal statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly,
mn ai matenal respecits, the financial pesition of the Company as

of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles genarally accepted in the United States
of Amenca

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
onJanuary 1, 2013, the Company distnbuted all of the outstanding
shares of AbbVie Inc , which encompasses the Company's
rescarch-basad pharmaceuticals business, to the Companys share-
holders As atso discussed in Note 1, in 2011 the Company changed
the year end of ds foreign subisidianes from a November 30 fiscal year
end to a December 31 calendar year end

Wsa have also audied, In accardance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company's
internal contro! over financal reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework 1ssuad by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of
the Treadway Commisson and our report dated February 15, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion an the Company's internal control
over inancial reporting

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 15, 2013

To the Board of Directors and Shareholdsrs of Abbolt Laboratories

We have audited the internat control over financial reporting of Abbott
Laboratones and subsidiaries {the “Company”) as of December 31,
2012, based on cntena established in Internal Corlrol — Intagrated
Framework wssued by the Committea of Sponsonng Organizations of
the Treadway Commission The Company s management (s responsi-
ble for mamtaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for #ts assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included n the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reparting Our rasponsibility 1s 1o
express an opinion on the Company s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
raporting was maintalned in al matenal respects Our audit included
obtaning an understanding of intsmal control over financial reparting,
assessing the nsk that a materlal weakness exlIsts, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effsctiveness of Internal control based

on the assessed nsk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit
providas a reasonable basis for our opinlon

A company’s intemal controt over financlal reporting is a process
designed by, or under the supervsion of, the company's pnncipal
executive and pnncipal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, manage-
ment, and other parsonnsl to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
mants for extarnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting panciples A company's nternal control over financial
reporting ncludes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the
mantanance of records that, in reascnable detal, accuratety and tarrly
reflact the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
{2) provide reasonable assursnce that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that receipts and
expendtures of the company are being made only n accordance with
authorzations of management and drectors of tha company, and

{3} prowide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely delec-
tion of unauthonzed acquistion, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherant mitations of internal control over financial
reporting, imcluding the possibility of collusion of improper manage-
ment overnde of controls, material misstatements due ta error or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basss Also, projections
of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over finan-
cal reporting to future penods are subject to the nsk that the controls
may bacome nadequate because of changes in condiions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may datenorate

In our opiion, the Company mantaned, in all matenal respects, effec-
tve Internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on the cnteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations

of the Treadway Commission

We have also audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the consoll-
dated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and our report dated February 15,2013
expresses an unqualified opinion on thase financial staternents and
includses an explanatory paragraph regarding the distnbution of the
shares of AbbVie Inc to the Company's shareholders and the
Companys change to the year end of its foregn subsidianes

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 15, 2013
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Financial Insttuments and Risk Management

Market Price Sensitive Investments

Abbott holds avallable-for-sale equity securties from strategic
technology acquisitons The market value of these investments was
approximately $76 million and $33 milion as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respsactively Abbott monitors thesa investments for other
than temporary declines in market value, and charges impairment
losses to income when an other than temporary decline in value
oceurs A hypothetical 20 percent decrease in the share pnces of
these investments would decrease tharr far value al December 31,
2012 by approximatsly $15 milhon (A 20 percent decrease s beleved
to be a reasonably possible near-termn change In share prices )

Non-Publicly Traded Equaty Secuntics

Abbott holds equity secunties from strategic technology acguistions
that are not traded on pubtlic stock exchanges The carrying value of
these investmants was approximately $137 milion and $224 milicn
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively No indmidual invest-
ment 1s recorded at a valus in excess of $30 millon Abbott monitors
thase investments for other than temporary declings In market value,
and charges iImpairment losses to income when an other than tampo-
rary decline in estimated valua occurs

Interest Rate Senstive MTmancial Instruments

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $9 5 biflion and $6 8 hillon, respectively, to manage
ils exposure to changas in the far value of debt Tha effect of these
hadgss Is to change the fixed interest rate to a vanable rate Abbott
does not use dervative financial Instruments, such as interes! ratg
swaps, to manage its exposure to changes In interest rates for its
investment secunties At December 31, 2012, Abbatt had $1 3 billon
of domestic commercial paper cutstanding with an average annual
interest rate of 0 32% with an average remaining Iife of 17 days

The far value of long-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to $19 6 billon and $15 1 billon, respeciively faverage interast
rates of 2 9%} with matunties through 2042 At December 31, 2012
and 2011, the far value of current and long-term Investment secuntes

amounted to approximately $4 6 hillon and $1 7 hillion, respectively
A hypothetical 100-basis point change in the interest rates would
not have a matenal effect on cash flows, mcome or market valugs
(A 100-basis point changs is believed {0 be a reasonably possible
near-tenm change in rates }

Foreign Currency Sensitive Financial Instruments

Cartain Abbott foreign subsidianes enter into foreign currency forward
exchange contracts to manage exposures to changas in foreign
axchange rates for anhicipated intercompany purchases by those
subsidianes whose functional currencies are not the U S dollar These
contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of the vanability of the
cash flows due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
are marked-to-market with the resulling gains or losses reflected in
Accurmulated other comprehensive income {loss) Gains or losses

will be included in Cost of products sold at the time the products are
sold, generally within the next twelve months At December 31, 2012
and 2011, Abbott held $1 6 billion of such contracts, which all mature
In the following calendar year

Abbott enters into foreign cumency forward exchange contracts to
managse Its exposure to foreign currency denominated intercompany
loans and trade payables and third-parly trads payables and recewv-
ables The contracts are marked-to market, and resulting gains or
losses am reflected In income and are generally offset by tosses or gans
an the foreign currency exposure being managed At December 31,
2012 and 2011, Abbott held $18 2 bilion and $15 7 bilion, respactivety,
of such coniracts, which mature in the next twelve months

Abbott has designated forergn danominated short-term debt of
approximately $615 millon and approximately $880 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respsctively, as a hedge of the net
investment in a foresgn subsidiary Accordingly, changes in the fair
value of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded
in Accumutated other comprehensive Income {loss), net of tax

The following table reflects the total foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 201

Fair and Fax and

Weighted Carying Weighted Carrying

Average Value Average Value

Contract Exchange  Recewable/ Contract Exchange  Receivable/

fdoliars in rrfioirs) Ameunt Rate (Payable) Amount Rate (Payable)

Recelve prmanty U S Dollars

in ex¢hange for the following currencies

Euro $11,349 1317 54 $10528 1329 5102

Bntish Pound 1,318 162t 1 1,501 1571 3

Japanese Yen 2,624 a2 9 2,458 803 (3)

Canadian Dollar 332 992 1 280 1026 2)

All other currencles 4,169 N/A {33) 2,544 N/A (h

Total $19,702 $(26) $17,309 s 99
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Abboli's revenues are denved pnmarily from the sale of a broad ine
of health care praducts under short-term receivable arangements
Patent protection and licenses, technotogical and performance
features, and incluslon of Abbott’s products under a contract or by
a pharmacy bensfit manager most impact which products are sokd,
price controls, competition and rebates most impact the net seling
pnces of products, and forelgn cumancy translation impacts the
measuremant of net sales and costs Abbott's pnmary products are
nutritionat products, prescnption pharmaceuticals, diagnostic testing
products and vascular products

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, one in divarsitied medical products and
the other in research based pharmaceuticals To accomplish the
saparation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc (*AbbVie®)
for its research-based pharmaceuticals business which consists
pnmanly of Abbott's Proprietary Phamaceutical Products segment
On January 1, 2013, Abbott distrbuted all of the outstanding shares
of AbbVie to Abbott's shareholders As a result of the distnbution,
AbbVie 15 now an independent company trading under the symboi
“ABBV” Beginming in the first quarter of 2013, the histoncal rasults
of the research-based phamaceuticals business will be reflected in
Abbott’s consolidated financlal statements as discontmued operations

Pnior to the separation of AbbVie, sales In international markels were
approximately 60 percent of consolidated net sales Post-separation,
salgs outside the U § am expecled to comprise approximately

70 percent of nel sales

Continued robust growth of HUMIRA in a broad rango of indications,
the acquisitions of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business (Solvay
Pharmaceuticals} and Pramal Healthcare Limited's Healthcare
Solutions busness, sales growth and margin improvement in the
nutntional and diagnostics businesses, a government investigation
of Abbott's sales and marketing aciivities ralated o Dapakote,

and the challenging economic and fiscal environment in many
countries around the world have impacted Abbott's sales, costs
and financial position over the tast three years

Phammaceutical research and development was focused over the last
three years on therapeutic areas that ncluded immunology, encalogy,
neuroscignce, pain management, hepatiis G (HCV), chronic kidney
disease and women's health In addition, Abbott acguired the nghis to
varnous In-process pharmaceutical research and development projects
including the development of second-generation oral antioxidant
inflammation modulators and an oral, next-genaration JAK1 inhibitor
with the potential 1o treat multiple autommune diseases

In 2003, Abbott began the worldwade launch of HUMIRA for heumatoxd
arthntis, followed by launches for six additional indications inthe U S
and eight addtional indications in the European Umon HUMIRA'S world-
wade sales increased to $9 3 bilion in 2012 compared to $7 9 bilion
2011, and $6 5 bilton In 2010 Genenc competition for ThCor began
in the fourth quarter of 2012 Austenty measures implemenied by
saveral European countnes reduced healthcare spending and affected
pharmaceutical pricing over the last three years The U S propretary
pharmacauticals busness was negatvely affected by the 2010 U S
health care reform legislabion which resutted in rebate changes begin-
ning n 2010 and the payment of an annual fee beginring in 2011
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In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay Pharmaceuticals which
prowided Abbott with a large and complementary portiolio of pharma-
ceutical products and expanded Abbott's presance in key global
emerging markets The acqusition added approximately $3 1 biion to
Abbott's 2010 net sales, prmarily autside the US In September 2010,
Abbott completed the acquisition of Piramals Healthcare Solutions
business, propeling Abbatl to market leadership in the Indian pharma
ceutical markel and further accelerating the company's growth iIn
emerging markets Abbott recorded expense of approximately

$262 milion In 2012, $345 milkon in 2011 and $710 mblion in 2010
related to tha integration of the Solvay business and restructuring
plans to strearmiine operations, improve efficiencias and reduce costs
pnmanly in certain Solvay sites and functions

n May 2012, Abboll reached resotulion of all Depakote-related
federal claims, Medicad-related claims with 49 states and the Distnct
of Columbia, and consurner protection claims with 45 states and the
District of Colurnbia Abbott recorded chargss related to this matter of
$1 5 billon in 2011 and $100 million in 2012, of which approxmatety
$1 6 billion was pad n 2012

In Abbott's worldwide nutntional products business, sales were posi-
tvely impacted by demographics such as an aging population and an
increasing rate of chronic disease n developed markets and the nse

of a middte class in many emerging markets, as well as by numerous
new product introductions that leveraged Abbott's strong brands

At the same time, manufactunng and distnbution process changes and
other cost reductions drove margin improvernants across the business

In Abbott's worldwide diagnostics business, margin improvement
continued to be a key focus and operating margins increased from
14 7 parcent of sales in 2010 to 18 7 percent in 2012

Over the last three years, Abbott continued ta bulld Its Xience
drug-eluting stent franchise with the receipt of approval to market
Xience Xpedition in vanous countnes, including U S approval in the
fourth quarter of 2012 as well as the launchas of Xience nano and
Xence PRIME i the U S 1n 2011, and Xience PRIME and Xence V
n Japan in April 2012 and January 2010, respectwely Xience, which
includes Xience V, PRIME, nano and Xpedition, ended 2012 as the
market-leading drug eluting stent globally In 2011, the third party
distnbutor of the Promus product began transitioning away from
the product and that supply agreement ended in 2012 The affect
of the winding down of the agreement will continue into the first
quarter of 2013

In 2010, the U S government passed health care reform legislation
which included an increase in Medicaid rebate rates and the extension
of the rabate to drugs provided through Medicaid managed care orga-
nizatons beginning in 2010 The legislation also imposed annual fees
which pharmaceutica! manufacturers began paying in 2011 and medi-
cal davice companies will bagin paying in 201 3, as well as additional
rebates related to the Medicare Part B "donut hole" beginning n 2011
In addition to a 2010 one time charge of approximately $60 milion to
reduce deferred tax assets associated with raetires health care Labiities
related o the Medicare Part D retires drug subsidy, the legslation’s
negative Impact on Abbott's performance grew from more than

$200 milhan in 2010 to approximately $400 million per year n 2011
and 2012 The $400 millon annual impact ncluded approximately
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$100 million for the annual pharmaceutical manufacturer fee This fse
15 no! tax-deductible and 1s ncluded in selling, general and adminisira-
tive expenses With the separation of AbbVie at the beginning of 2013,
Abbott no longer sells pharmaceutical products nthe U S and there-
fore Is no longer subject to the annual pharmaceutical fee or the
additional rebates Beginning in 2013, Abbott will begin paying the

2 3 percent medical dewice tax under U 8 health care reform legista-
tion This tax will be included in saling, general and administratve
axpenses and the amount of the tax is not expectsd to be material

In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 billion of
long-term debt and incurred a charge of $1 35 billon related to the
earty repayment, net of gains from the unwinding of interast rate
swaps related to the deb! Abbott's short- and [ong-term debt totaled
$20 5 bikon at December 31, 2012 This balance includes $1 bilion
of short-borrowings and $14 7 tihon of long-term debt that was
Issued by AbbVie Inc in 2012 After the separation of AbbVie on
January 1, 2013, Abbott has no remaining obligations related to this
$15 7 billion of dabt At Decembar 31, 2012, Abbott’s long-term deb!
rating was A+ by Standard and Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's
Investors Service Operating cash flows in excess of capital expendi-
tures and cash dividends have partally funded acquisitions over the
last thres years

In 2013, Abbott will focus on several key Intiatives In the nutrtional
business, Abbott will continue to bulld s product portfolio with the
introduction of new science-based products, expand in high-growth
emerging markets and implement additional margin Improvement ini-
tiatives n the established pharmaceuticals business, which includes
intarnational sales of branded genenc products, Abbott will continue
to focus on obtaming additional product approvals across nuUMerous
countres and expanding Its presenca in emerging markels in the
diagnostics business, Abbolt wil focus on the development of next-
generation nstrumants and other advanced technologies, expansion
in emarging markets, and further improvements n the segment’s
operating margin In the vascular busness, Abbott will continue to
focus on marketing products in the Xience and endovascular fran-
chises, ncreasing international MitraClip sales, and obtaining
regulatory review of the MitraClip devico nthe U S as well as further
clincal development of ABSORB, its bioresorbable vascular scatfold
{BVS) device and a further roll-out of ABSORE in numerous countnes
In Abbatt's other segments, Abbott will focus on devetoping different-
ated technotogies In higher growth markets

Cnical Accounting olicres

Sales Rebates — In 2012, approximately 56 percent of Abbotl's con-
solidated gross revenues were subject to vanous forms of rebates and
allowances that Abbott recorded as reductions of revenues at the time
of sale Most of these rebates and allowances are in the Proprietary
Pharmaceutical Products segment and the Nutntional Products seg-
ment Abbott provdes rebates to pharmacy benefit managemaent
companies, state agencies that adrminister the federal Medicaid pro-
gram, Insurance companies that administer Medicare drug plans, state
agencies that administer the Special Supplemantal Nutrition Program
for Women, Infanis, and Children (WIC), wholesalers, group purchas-
ing organizations, and other government agencies and private entities

Rebale amounts are usually based upon the volume of purchases
using contraciual or statulory pnces for a product Factors used in the
rebate calcutations include the idantification of which products have
been sold subject 1o a mbate, which customer or government agency
pnce terms apply, and the estimated lag time batween sala and pay-
ment of a rebate Using histoncal trends, adjusted for current changes,
Abbott estimates the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and
records the lability as a reducton of gross sales whon Abbott records
its sale of the product Settlemant of the rebate generally oceurs from
two to exght months after sale Abbott regularty analyzes the histoncal
rabate trends and makes adjustments to reserves for changes in
frends and terms of rebate programs Rebates and chargebacks
charged against gross sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010 amounted to
approximately $6 2 bittion, $5 5 billon and $4 9 billion, respectively, or
22 9 percent, 22 2 percent and 23 1 percent, respectively, based on
gross sales of approximately $26 © billion, $24 8 bilion and $21 1 bil-
lion, respectively, subject to rebate A one-percentage point increase
in the percentage of rebates to related gross sales would decrease
net sales by approximatety $269 milion in 2012 Abbott considers

a one-percentage point increase to be a reasonably lkely Increase

in the percentage of rebates 10 related gross sales Other allowances
charged against gross sales were approximately $542 millon,

$4089 milion and $415 mifion for cash discounts In 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and $365 million, $490 million and $537 muilon

for returns in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respaciively Cash discounts are
known within 15 to 30 days of sale, and thersfore can be reliably
astimated Returns can be reliably estimated because Abbolt's histon-
cal returns are low, and because sales returns terms and other sales
tarms have ramalned relatively unchanged for several periods

Managemant analyzes the adequacy of ending rebate accrual bal-
ances each quarter In the domestic nutntional business, management
usas both internal and external dala available to estimate the level

of nvantory In the distnbution channs! Management has access 1o
several large customers’ inventory management data, and for other
customers, utilizes data from a third party that measures tme on the
reta shell These sources allow management to make rekable esii-
matses of inventory in the distnbution channel Except for a transihon
penod before or after a change in the supplier for the WIC busness
i a state, mventory in the distribution channel does not vary substan-
tially Managsment also estimates the states’ processing lag time
based on claims data in addition, internal processing time is a factor
in estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state whare the
sale 1s made, which 1s the determining factor for the apphcable prce,
15 reliably daterminable Estimates are required for the amount of WwIC
sales within aach state where Abbott has the WIC business External
data sources utiized for that astimate are participant data from the

U S Depariment of Agnculture (USDA), which administers the WIC
program, participant data from some of the states, and Internally
administered market research The USDA has been making its data
avallable for many years Internal data includes histoncal redemption
rates and pricing data At December 31, 2012, Abbott had WIC
business in 22 states
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In the domestic propnetary pharmaceutical business, the most
significant charges aganst gross sales are for Medicald and Medicara
Rebates, Pharmacy Benefit Manager Rebates and Wholesaler
Chargebacks In order to evaluate ihe adequacy of the ending accrual
balances, managemant uses both internal and external data to esh-
mate the lavel of Inventory in the distribution channel and the rebate
clams procassing fag time Bdernal data sources used to estmate
the invantory in the distnbution channel include inventory levels penad-
wally reported by wholesalers and third party market data purchased
by Abbott Management estimates the processing lag tme based on
penodic sampling of clalms data To estimats the pnce rebate parcent-
age, systems and calculations are used to track sales by product by
customer and to estimates the contractual or statutory pnce Abbott's
systems and calculations have developed over time as rebates have
become more significant, and Abbott believes they are reliable

The following table 15 an analysis of the four largest rebale accruals,
which comprise approximatealy 70 percent of the consolidated rabate
provisions charged agains! revenues in 2012 Remaning rebate
provisions charged against gross sales are not significant in the
determinalion of operaling earnings

Domestic Propnetary
Pharmaceutical Products
Domestic Medcald  Phanmacy

Nutnhonals and Benefit Wholesaler
wIC Medicare Manager Charge
(dofiars in millions) Rebates Rebatas Rebates backs
Balance at
January 1 2010 $153 § 352 $239 S 160
Prowsions 616 899 841 1,162
Payments [640) 617) (670) {1,163)
Balance at
December 31, 2010 129 634 410 159
Prowisions 575 985 831 1,361
Payments {568) (899) (735) {1,348)
Balance at
Dacember 31, 2011 136 720 506 171
Provisions 657 1077 830 1,645
Payments {B70) (990) (840) {1,592)
Balance at
December 31, 2012 $123 $ 807 $ 496 $ 224

Historically, adjustments to prior years' rebate accruals have not been
matenal 1o net ncoma Abbott employs vanous techniques to verly
the accuracy of clams submitted to it, and where possible, works with
the organizations submilting claims to gain nsight into changes that
might affact the rebate amounts For Medicaxd, Medicare and other
governmenl agency programs, the calculation of a rebate nvolves
interpratations of relevant regufations, which are subject to challenge
or change n inferpretalion
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Income Taxes — Abbotl operates in numerous countnes where its
income tax raturns are subject to audts and adjustments Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audst tems are often very
complex, and the abjectives of the government auditors can result in
a tax on the same income In more than one country Abbot employs
internal and external tax professionals to minimize audit adjustment
amounts where possible In accordance with the accounting rules
relating to the measurement of lax contingencies, in order to recognize
an uncortain tax benefit, the taxpayer must be more likely than not of
sustaining the position, and the measurement of the bonefi is calcu-
lated as the largest amount that 1s more than 50 percent likely to

be realized upon resolutton of the benefit Application of these rules
raquires a significant amount of udgment In the U S, Abboll's federal
Income tax retums through 2009 are settled except for one item, and
the income tax returns for years after 2009 are open Abbot! does

not record deferred ncome 1axes on earnings renvested indefinitely

n forelgn subsidiaries

Pension and Post-Employmaent Benefits — Abbot! offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care to many of its employees
Abbolt engages outside actuaries to assist in the datermination of the
oblgations and costs under these programs Abbott must develop
long-term assumptions, the most significant of which are the health
care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected return on plan
assets The discount rates used to measure labilities were doterminad
based on high-quahty fixad income secunties that match the duration
of the expected retrea benefils The health care cost trend rates repre-
sent Abbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health
care bensfits and 1s a forward projection of health care costs as of the
measurement date A difference between the assumed rates and the
actual ratas, which will not be known for decades, can be sgnificant
in relation to the obligations and the annual cost recorded for these
programs Low assel raturns duse to poor market conditions and low
nterest rates have significantly ncreased actuanal losses for these
plans At December 31, 2012, pretax net actuanal losses and pnor
service costs and {credits) recognized in Accumulated other compre
hensive Income (Joss) for Abbott's defined benefit plans and medical
and dental plans were losses of $4 8 billon and $379 milion, respec-
tvaly Actuanal losses and gans are amoriized over the remaining
service attrbution penods of the employees under the corndar
method, in accordance with the rules for accounting for post-employ-
ment benefits Differences between tha expected long-term relurn on
plan assets and the actual annual return are amortized over a five-year
penod Nots 4 to the consolidated financial statements descnbes the
impact of a one-percentage pont change in the health care cost trend
rate, howaver, there can be no certainty that a change would be hm-
Ited to only one percentage point

Valuation of Intangible Assets - Abbott has acquired and continues

to acquire sigriicant iftangible assets that Abbott records at fas value
Transacttons involving the purchase or sale of ntangble assats occur
with some frequency between companies in the health care field and
valuations are usually based on a discounted cash flow analysis The
discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the iming
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and amount of future net cash flows, nsk, the cost of capital, terminal
values and market participants Each of these factors can significantly
affect the value of the intangible asset Abbalt engages independent
valuation experts who review Abbott's cntical assumptions and
cakculations for acgquisitions of significant intangibles Abbott reviews
definite-lved intangible assets for impaiment each quarter using an
undiscounted net cash flows approach If the undiscounted cash
flows of an intangible asset are less than the camying value of an
Intangible assetl, the intangible asset Is wiitten down to s falr valus,
which 15 usually the discounted cash flow amount Where cash flows
cannot be dantified for an indhvidual asset, the review 15 applied at the
lowast group leval for which cash flows are identdfiable Goodwll and
indefinte-Ived intangible assets, which relate to in-process research
and development acquired in a busingss combination, are reviewed
for impalrment annually or when an evant that could result in an
impairment occurs At December 31, 2012, goodwil and imtangibles
amounted to $15 8 bifion and $8 & billion, respectively, and amortiza-
tion expense for intangible assets amounted to $1 4 bilkon in 2012
There wara no imparmeants of goodwillin 2012, 2011 or 2010 In 2012
and 2011, Abbott recorded impairment charges of $82 million and
%174 million, respectively, for certain research and developmant assets
due to changss in the projectad development and regulatory timelines
for the projects

Litigation — Abbott accounts for ligation losses in accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification No 450, "Contingencies *
Under ASC No 450, loss contingency provisions are recarded for
probable losses at management’s best estimale of a loss, or whena
best estimate cannot be made, a mmimum loss contingency amount
ts recorded These estimates are often intally devetoped substantially
earlier than the ullimate loss 15 known, and the estimates are refined
each accounting period as addiional nformation becomes known
Accordingly, Abbott s often initially unable to devetop a best estumate
of loss, and therefore the minimum amount, which could be zero,

15 recorded As information becomes known, etther the minimum toss
amount 15 mcreased, resulting in additional loss provisions, or a best
astimate can be made, also resulting in additional loss provisions
Occasonally, a best estimate amount is changed to a fower amount
when events result In an expectation of a more favorable outcome than
previously expecied Abbott estimates the range of possible loss {o be
from approximately $70 mifion to $100 mullion for its legal proceedings
and environmental exposures Accruals of approximatety $80 rmilion
have been recorded at December 31, 2012 for these procesdings and
exposures These accruals represent management's best estimate of
probable ioss, as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contngencies “

52

Hesults of Operations
Sales

The foliowng table datalls tha components of sales growth by report-
able segment for the last three years

Total Componenis of Change %

% Change Price Volume  Exchange
Total Net Salas
2012 ve 2011 26 17 38 29
2011 vs 2010 1056 12 65 28
2010 vs 2009 143 o1 132 12
Total U S
2012 vs 2011 48 56 08} -
2011 vs 2010 54 44 10 —
2010vs 2009 68 o7 61 —
Totad International
2012 vs 2011 11 o 7 50
2011 vs 2010 143 12 106 49
2010vs 2008 207 0 8) 193 22
Proprigtary Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 55 45 ar en
2011 vs 2010 110 KE 52 23
2010vs 2009 138 03 127 06
Established Pharmacsutical Products Segment
2012vs 2011 (4 4} 13 34 B9
2011 vs 2010 200 nn 174 43
2010 vs 2009 517 03} 491 29
Nutntional Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 77 45 42 {104
2011 vs 2010 86 30 36 20
2010vs 2009 47 17 12 18
Diagnostic Products Segment
2012vs 2011 40 {14 B7 33
2011 vs 2010 88 oy 65 34
2010 vs 20090 B0 01 43 16
Vascular Products Segment
2012 vs 2011 79 52 o4 23)
2011 vs 2010 44 a3 55 3z
2010 vs 2009 186 47 223 10

Total Net Sales n 2012 reflact unit growth, partally offset by the
impact of unfavorable foreign exchange The decrease in 2012
Vascular Products sales 1s partially due to the winding down of royalty
and supply agreements related to cerlain third-party products, nelud-
ing Promus  Excluding this royalty and supply agreement revenue in
both periods and the unfavorable effect of exchange, Vascular
Products sales increased 3 4 percent in 2012 In 2011 and 2010,
Total Net, Total U S, Total International, Propretary Pharmaceutical
Products segrnent and Established Pharmaceutical Products segment
sales reflect the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals business on
February 15, 2010 and unit growth, while the relatvely weaker U S
dollar favorably impacted international sales across all segments

Total Net, Total Internaticnal and Estabiished Pharmaceutical Products
segment sales growth in 2011 also reflects the acquisition of Pramal
Healthcare Limited's Healthcare Solution business in September 2010
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A companson of signficant product and product group sales 1s as
folows Percent changes are versus the pnor year and am based on
unroundad numbers

Parcent Parcent Percent

{dollars n mufions) 2012 Change 2011 Change 2010 Changs

Propnatary Pharmacauticals —

Total US

Propretary sales $10,158 7 $9.455 8 38,744 12
HUMIRA 4,376 28 3427 19 2872 14
TRILIPIX/ ThCor 1,098 20y 1,372 1 1355 1
Miaspar a1 4] 976 5 Q27 B
AngdroGel 1,152 32 B74 a5 649 rin
Lupron 569 5 540 12 483 {11)
Synthroid 851 6 522 16 451 9
Craon 353 7 332 35 246 n/m
Kalatra 280 (14) 326 [4]8)] 363 {19)

Total International

Proprietary sales 7,854 3 78625 15 6645 16
HUMIRA 4,880 9 4,505 23 3,676 24
Kalatra 733 {13} 844 51} 882 3
Lupron 231 {14} 270 2 265 2

Total Established

Pharmaceuticals — 5121 4) 535 20 4,461 52
Clarthromycin 501 @) 551 8 521 (11)
ThCCor and Lipanthyl
{fencfibrate) 282 =) 308 24 248 n/m
Creon 306 4 296 58 187 n/m
Serc 205 12) 233 30 180 n/m
Duphaston 259 16 223 64 136 n/m
Synthrowd 105 1 103 9 95 19

Nutntionals —

US Pediatne Mutmionals 1 445 14 1268 5 1,208 {7)

Intarnational Pediatric

Nutntionals 2080 8 1926 15 1,676 9

US Adult Nuttionals 1,452 6 1368 2 1,345 6

International

Adult Nutntionals 1,484 4 1427 13 1,268 15

Diagnostics —

Immunochemistry 3,279 4 3,180 8 2904 4

Vascular Products {1) —

Xience 1599 3 1558 14 1,370 40

Other Coronary

Products 588 (1) 605 9 555 5

Endovascular 452 1 449 9 414 5

nim — Parcen' change 15 no* meamngiut

{1) Crher Coronary Froducts ncluds pamardy gukdewres and balioon cathe'ers
Endavascular includes vessal closure carg id slen's and other penpheral producis
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Excluding the negatwve effect of exchange, Total International
Proprietary sales increased 8 9 percent in 2012 In Propnetary
Pharmaceuticals, a ganene version of TriCor entered the U S market
in the fourlh quarter of 2012 Total Established Pharmaceutical
Products sales decreased in2012 due to the negative effect of
exchange and decraased sales of Clanthromycin and Serc due to,

in part, pncing pressures in Europe, partially offset by growth in
emerging markets Excluding the effect of exchange, Total Estabished
Pharmaceulical Products sales increased 2 1 percent U S Pediatnc
Nutnitional sales n 2012 refloct market share gains for Similac and
unit growth for PediaSure Theincrease n 2012 U S Adult Nutntional
sales reflects unit growth for the Ensure and Glucerna products
International Pediatne and Adult Nutritionals sales ncreases over

ihe three years were due pnimanly to volumae growth in daveloping
countries and were negatvely Impacted in 2012 by the effect of the
relatively stronger US dollar

The increasas nU S Propnetary product sales in 2011 and 2010

are primarily dus to increased sales of HUMIRA and the acquistion of
Solvay Pharmaceuticals in February 2010, partially offset by decreasad
sales of Depakote, Zempiar, and Kaletra The increases in Estabkshed
Pharmaceutical sales in 2011 and 2010 are pnmanly dus to the acqui-
sitions of Solvay Pharmaceuticals and Piramal and growih in emerging
markets 1S Padiatric Nutntionals sales m 2011 and 2010 were
affactad by the voluntary recalt of certain Similac-brand powder infant
formulas in September 2010 and the subsequent racovery In market
share In 2011 International Propnetary Pharmaceuticals, International
Adult Nutribionals and Immunachemistry sales were positwely
impacted by the effect of the relatively weaker U S dollar in 2011

and 2010 Abbeott has penadically sold product nghts to non-strategic
products and has recordad the related gains in net sales 1n accor-
dance with Abbott’s revenue recogniion potcies as discussed in

Note 1 to the consoldated financial statements Related net sales
were approximately $58 mifion in 2010, while there were na significant
sales N 2012 and 2011

The expiration of licenses and patent protection and genenc compet-
tion can affect the future revenues and operating ncome of Abbott
There are currently no significant patent or license expirations in the
next three years that are expected to affect Abbott after the separation
of Abbvie

Opeiating Earmngs

Gross profit margins were 62 1 percent of net sales in 2012, 60 0 per-
cont in 2011 and 58 3 percent n 2010 The crease i the gross proft
rnargn in 2012 was impacied by improved gross margins across all
reportable segments as a result of cost reduction initkiatives, the Impact
of exchange and favorable product mix The increase n the gross
profit margin n 2011 was due, 1n part, to improved marging n the
establshed pharmaceutical, diagnostics and diabetes businesses and
was partially offset by the unfavorable effect of exchange on the proft
margin ratio The increase m the gross profit margin in 2010 was due,
in pan, to improved margins In the establshed pharmaceutical, vascu-
lar, diabetes, diagnostics and nutntional businesses and the favorable
effect of exchange on the gross profit margin ratio
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inthe U S, slates receve pnce rebates from manufacturers of infant
formula under the federally subsidized Specal Supplemantal Nutrition
Program for Women, Infants, and Chidren There are also rebate
programs for pharmaceutical products in numerous countnes  These
rebate programs continue o have a negatve effect on the gross profit
margins of the Nutntional, Proprietary Pharmaceutical and Established
Phamaceutical Products segments

Research and devalopment expanse was $4 322 bilion in 2012,

$4 129 bilion in 2011 and $3 724 billon in 2010 and represented
increases of 4 7 percent n 2012, 10 9 percent in 2011 and 35 7 per-
cent n 2010 Excluding charges related to the Solvay restructunngs
announced in September 2010, research and davelopment expense
mcreased B 2 parcent in 2011 and 29 4 percent in 2010 The 2010
increasa, exclusive of the effects of the restructunng charges, reflects
the acquisiions of Solvay's phammacsuticals business in February
2010 and Facat Biotech in Apnl 2010 The increases In 2012, 2011
and 2010 also reflact continued pipsline spending, including programs
in brologics, hepatiis C and diagnostics The majortty of research and
davelopment expenditures over tha three years were concentrated

on pharmaceutical products $2 9 billion of Abbott's 2012 research
and devalopment expenses related to Abbaott’s pharmaceutical
products, of which $2 2 bilion was directly allocated to the Propnetary
Phamaceutical Products segment in 2012, research and davelop-
mant expenditures totaled $367 million for the Vascutar Products
segment, $382 million for the Diagnostics Products segment,

$275 mulkon tor the Established Phamnaceutical Products segment
and $186 milhon for the Nutntonal Products segment

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 5 5 percent In
2012 and increased 22 9 parcent in 2011 and 23 4 percent in 2010
2012 mncludes approximately $405 milion related to the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott and a $100 milion ihgation charge related to the
government investigation related to Depakole while 2011 includes a
Iiigation charge of $1 5 billion related to the Depakote investigation
Excluding separation costs, lligation charges and Solvay-related
restructunng and mntegration costs, seling, general and administrative
expenses increased 4 6 percent in 2012 and 6 7 percent in 2011
Excluding charges related to Solvay restructuring and integraton proj-
ects, seling, general and administratve expenses in 2010 increased
18 2 percent This increase, exclusve of the effects of the restructunng
and integration charges, reflects the acquistions of Solvay's pharma-
ceuticals business n 2010 and Advanced Madhcal Optics, Inc in 2008
and higher provisions for igation in 2010 The remaining increases In
salling, general and administrative expenses over the three year penod
were due pnmarly o Increased sefing and marksting support for new
and existing products, including continued spending tor HUMIRA,
inflatron, and m 2011, the impact of the pharmaceutical fes imposed
by U S healthcare reform legislation

Restructurings

In 2012, Abbott management approved plans to streamiine vanious
commercial operations in crder to reduce costs and improve efficien-
cies in Abbott’s core diagnostics, establkshed pharmaceutical and
nutntionals businesses Abbott recorded employee related severance
charges of approximately $367 milion in 2012 Additional charges of

approximately $22 million were also recorded In 2012, pnmanly for
asset impairments Approximately $70 milion is recorded m Cost of
products sold and approximately $11¢ milton as Selling, general and
administralive expense As of December 31, 2012, no significant cash
payments have been made relating to thesa actions

In 2011 and prior years, Abbott managemant approved plans to
realign ts worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commearcial and
research and development operations in order to reduce costs

In 2011 and 2010, Abbott recorded charges of approxmately

$194 miflion and $56 milion, respectvely, reflecting the impaiment
of manufacturing faciities and other assets, employee severance and
other retated charges Approximatsly $76 milion in 2011 1s classified
as Cost of products soid, $69 millon as Research and development
and $42 milion as Selling, general and administrative Approximately
$56 million in 2010 15 classified as Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actmty for thesa mastructunngs

{dollars i mulhons)

Accrued balance et January 1, 2010 $ 145
2010 rastructuring charges 56
Payments impairments and other adustments {124)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2010 7
2011 restructuring charges 184
Payments, Impairments and other adjustments (94}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 177
Payments and other adpstments (48)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 $120

An additional $110 millon, $25 milion and $13 million were recorded
In 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely, relating to these restructurings,
pnmanly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved mestructunng

plans pnmanly related to the acquisition of Solvay's pharmaceuticals
business These plans streamline operations, improve efficiencies and
reduca costs in cortain Solvay sites and functions as well as in certain
Abbott and Solvay commerclal organizations in vanous countnes

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approxmately $150 million for
employee severance and contractual obligations, pnmarily related

to the exit from a research and development facility Approxamately
$142 milllon 15 recorded as Research and development and $8 mifion
as Selling, general and adminisirative In 2010, Abbott recorded
charges to Cost of products sold, Research and development and
Seling, generat and administrative of approximatety $92 million,

$152 milion and $272 milion, mspectvely The following summanzaes
the actmty for these restruciunngs

{doltars in mions)

2010 restructuring charge $523
Paymentis, Impairments and other adjustments (113)
Accrued balance at December 31 2010 410
Payments and other adustments (302)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 108
Restructuring charges 150
Payments and other adjustments (143}
Accrued balance at December 31 2012 8115
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An addtional $38 million, $102 millon and $12 mition were recordad n
2012, 2011 and 2010, respactwely, relating to these restructunngs, pn-
manly for addlional employee severance and accelerated depreciation

In 2011 and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to streamline
global manufactunng operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
efficiencies in Abbott's core diagnostic business n 2011, a charge

of $28 milhon was recorded in Cost of products sold The following
summanzes the actvity for these restructunngs

{dottars in milions)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2010 %93
Payments and other adjustments (10)
Accrued balarce at December 31, 2010 a8
2011 restructunng charge 28
Payments and other adjustments {37}
Accrued batance at December 31, 2011 78
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 556

tn addihion, charges of approximately $16 millon, $42 milion and
$60 millon were recorded i 2012, 2011 and 2010, primanly for accel-
arated depreciation and product transfer costs

Interest expense and Interest {income)

In 2012, interest expense increased pnmarty due to bridge faciity
fees related to the separation of AbbVie from Abbott in 2011, interest
expense decreased due to lower debt lavels Interest income in 2012
and 2011 decreased as a result of lower rates In 2010, interest
expense increased due pomarily to increased deb! levels Interost
income decreased in 2010 due to lower investment balances

Change in Accounting Principle and Other (income) expense, net

Prior to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsichanes were
consolidated based on a fiscal year ended November 30 dus to the
time needed to consolidate these subsidianes Effective January 1,
2011, the one month lag in the consolidation of the accounts of
foreign subsidianies was eliminated and the year-end of foretgn subsid-
1anes was changed to Dacembar 31 Abbott believes that the change
In accounting principle related to the elimination of tha ona month
reporting lag 1s preferable because it results In more contemporanaous
reporting of the results of foreign subsidianes In accordance with
applicable accountng literature, a change i subsidianes’ year-end is
treated as a change in accounting principle and requires ratraspective
applicaton The cumulative effect of the change was an increass in
rotained earnings of $289 milion as of January 1, 2009 and a corre-
sponding decrease in other long-term liabiities The impact of the
change was not matenal to the resutts of operations for the previously
reporied annual and intenm penods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
those resulis have not been rewised A charge of $137 millon was
recarded 1o Other income) expense, net In 2011 to recognize the
cumulative immatenal impacts to 2009 and 2010 Hadl the financial
statements been revised, net sales, operating earmings and net earn-
Ings in 2010 would have decreased by $21 milion, $195 million and
$175 million, respectively
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Other (income} expensa, nel, for 2012 includes income of approxi-
mately $680 milion from the resolution of a contractual agreement and
a loss of appraximately $62 million for the impairment of certain equity
secunties Other (income) expensa, net, for 2011 includes $56 milion
of fair value adjustments and accretion in the contingent consideration
refated to the acquisihion of Solvay’s pharmaceutical businass Other
income) expanse, net, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 also includes ongo-
ing contractual payments from Takeda associated with the conclusion
of the TAP joint venture

Net Loss on Extinguishment of Dabt

in the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott extinguished $7 7 billion of
long-term dabt Abbolt ncurred a cost of $1 35 bilion to extinguish
this debt, net of gains from the unwinding of interest rate swaps
related to the debt

Taxes on Earnings

The income tax rates on earnings wera 4 8 percent in 2012, 9 0 per-
cent in 2011 and 19 0 parcent in 2010 Taxes on earmings in 2012
reflect the $493 mifion effect of tho tax rate applied to Abbott's net
debt extinguishment loss as well as the recognition of $408 milion of
tax benefits as a result of the favorable resolution of vanous tax posi-
tions pertaing to a pnor year, which also decreased the gross
amount of unrecogmized tax benefits by approximately $560 million
Taxes on sarnings in 2011 reflact the effect of the tax rate applied to

a liwgation reserve and the recogrstion of $580 milion of tax benefits
as a result of the favorable resolution of varous tax positions pertaining
to prior yoars, which also decreased the gross amount of unrecog-
nized tax benefits by approximately $1 3 bilion Exctusive of these
discrets items, the effective rates are lower than the U S federal
statutory rate of 35 percent due primarily to the benafit of lower foreign
tax rates and tax exemptions that reduced the tax rates by 24 8, 22 9,
and 19 4 percentage ponts in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

The tax rate reductions are pnmarily denved from operations in

Puerto Rico, Switzedand, Ireland and Singapore whare Abbott benefits
from a combination of favorable statutory tax rules, tax rulings, grants,
and exemptions See Nots § to the consoldated financial statements
for a full reconciiation of the effective tax rate to the U S federal
statutory rate

As a resuft of the American Taxpayer Relef Act of 2012 signed into
law in January 2013, Abbolt expacts to record a tax benefit of
approximately $100 milion in the first quarter of 2013 for the ralroac-
five exlension of the research tax credit and the look-through rules
of section 954(c)(6} of the Internal Revenue Code to the beginring

of 2012 Excluding this and any cther discrete tems, Abbott expects
o apply an annual effectve rate of approximately 21 percent

As a result of the Patient Protection and Affardable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act which were signed into
law 1n 2010, Abbott recorded a charge ol approxmately $60 million in
2010 to reduce deferred tax assets associaled with retiree health care
llatulihies related to the Medicare Part D retiree drug subsidly

In October 2010, Puorto Rico enacted legislation that assesses a tax
beginning in 2011 on certan products manufactured in Puerto Rico
The tax 1s levied on gross ntercompany purchases from Puerto Rican
entities and 15 Included in mventory costs In 2012 and 2011, cost of
goods sold included $187 milion and $111 million, respectively,
related to this tax The tax 1s creditable for U S income tax purposes
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Research and Development Programs

Abbott currantly has numerous pharmaceitical, medical and nutntional
products in development

Research and Development Procass

In the Propnetary Phammaceuticals segmaent, the research and
davelopment process generally begins with discovery research which
focuses on the idantdication of a molecule that has a desired effect
against a gven disease If preciinical testing of an identrfied compound
proves successful, the compound maves into clinical development
which generally includes the following phases

* Phase | — involves the first human tests in a small number of
heaithy volunteors to assess tolerability and potential dosing

» Phase | — tests the molecule's efficacy against the disease
In & small group of patients

* Phase il — {ests a molecule that demonstrates favorable results
in the sarlier phases In a significantly larger patient population 10
further demonstrate efficacy and safety based on regulatory cnterla

The climical tnals from all of the development phases provida the
data required to prepare and submit a New Drug Application {NDA),
a Biological Licensa Application (BLA) or other submission for regula
tory approval to the U S Food and Drug Administration {FDA} or
similar government agencies cutside the U S The specific require-
ments {e g , scopa of clinical trials) for obtaining regulatory approval
vary across different countries and geographic regons

The research and development process from discovery through

a new drug launch typically takes 8 - 12 years and can be even fonger
There 1s a significant amaunt of uncertainty inherent in the research
and development of new pharmaceutical products and there is no
guarantee when, or if, a molecule will receve the regulatory approval
required to launch a new drug or indication

In addiion to the davelopment of new products and new formulations,
propriatary pharmaceutical research and developrment projects also
may include Phase IV trials, sometimes called post-marketing studies
For such projects, cinical trials are designed and conducted to collect
addiional data regarding, among other paramsters, the benefits and
nsks of an approved drug

in the Established Phamaceuticals segment, the developrment
process focuses on the geographic expansion and continuous
improvernent of the segmant s existing products to provide benefits
1o patients and customers As Established Pharmaceuticals does
not actively pursua pnmary research, development usually begins
with work on existing products or after the acquishon of an advanced
stage lcensing opportunity

Depending upon the product, the phases of development may include
+ Drug praduct development

¢ Phase | bioequivalence studies lo compare a future Established
Phammacautical's brand with an already marketed compound with
the same active pharmaceutical ingredient (AP
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* Phase Il studiss to test the efficacy of benefits In a small group
of patients

= Phass lll studies to broaden the testing to a wider population that
reflects the actual medical use

¢ Phase IV and othar post-marketing studies to obtam new clinical
use data on existing products within approved Indications

The specific requiremants (e g scopa of clincal tnals) for obtaining
regulatory approval vary across different countrigs and geographic
regions The process may range from one year for a bioequivatence
study project 1o 6 or more years for complex formulations, new indica-
tions, or geographic expansion in specific countnes such as China

In the Diagnostics segment, the phases of the rasearch and
devalopment process include

» Discovery which focuses on identrfication of a product that wal
address a specific therapeutic area, platform, or unmet clinical need,

* Concep{/Feasibiity dunng which the matenals and manufacturnng
processes are evaluated, testing may Include product charactenza-
tion and analysis 1s performed to confir climeal utidy, and

« Davelopment dunng which extensive testing 1s performed to
demonstrate that the product meets specified design requirements
and that the design specifications conform to user needs and
intended uses

As with pharmaceutical products, the regulatory requiremants for
diagnostic products vary across different countries and geagraphic
regions In the U S , the FDA classifies diagnostic products into
classes {, il, or lll) and the classification determines the regulatory
process for approval While the Diagnostics segment has products
n all three classes, the vast majority of its products ara categonzed
as Class | or Class || Submisslon of a separate regulatory filing is
not required for Class | products Class |l devices typically require
pre-markel notification 1o tha FDA through a regulatory filing known
as a 510(k) submisston  Most Class it products are subject to the
FDA's Pra-Marketing Approval {(PMA} requirements Other Class Il
praducts, such as those used to screen blood, reguire the submission
and approval of a BLA

In the EU, diagnostic products are also categonzed into different cate
gones and the regulatory process, which 1s governed by the European
In Vitro Diagnostic Medical Device Directve, depends upon the cale-
gory Certan product caleganes require raview and approval by an
independent company, known as a Notrfied Body, before the manufac-
turer can affix a CE mark o the product to show cormplance with the
Diractive Other products only require a seli-certification process

In the Vascular segment, the research and development process
begins with research on a specific technology that is evaluated for
feasibility and commercial viability f the research program passes that
hurdle, it moves forward nto davelopment The development process
includes evatuation and setection of a product design, completion of
chrucal tnals to test the product's safety and etficacy, and validation of
\he manufactunng process 1o demonsirate is repeatabiity and ability
to consistently meet pre determinad speciiicabions
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Similar to the diagnostic products discussed above, mthe U S,
vascular products are classified as Class I, Il, or lli Most of Abbott's
vascular products are classified as Class Il devices that follow tha
510(K) regulatory process or Class |l devices that are subject to the
PMA process

in the EU, vascular products are also categonzed into different classes
and the regulatory process, which 1s governed by the European
Medical Device Directive, vanes by class Each product must bear

a CE mark to show comphance with the Directve Some products
require submission of a design dosswer to the appropnate regulatory
authonty for review and approval prior io CE marking of tha device
For other products, the company 15 required to prepare a technical
file which includes testing results and climcal evaluations but can
self-certify its ability to apply the CE mark to the product Qutside the
U S and the EU, the regulatory requirements vary across different
countnies and regons

After approval and commercial launch of some vascular products,
post-market tnals may be conducted either dua to a condihional
requirement of the regulatory market approval or with the objective
of proving product supernonty

In the Nutntional segment, the ressarch and development process
generally focuses on identifying and developing ingredients and prod-
ucts that address the nutrtional needs of particular populations (9.
infants, athlotas) or patients (e g . people with diabetes) Depending
upon tha country and/or region, If claims regarding a product's efficacy
will ba made, climical studies typically must be conducted Mos! other
product development, such as a product form change from quid to
powder, genarally does not necessitate cknical studies

Inthe U S , the FDA requires that it be notified of proposed new
formutations and formulaion or packaging changes related to infant
formula products Prior 10 the launch of an infant formula or product
packaging change, the company 1s reguired to obtain the FDA’s
confirmation that if has no objectons to the proposed product or
packaging For other nutrtion products, notrication or pre-approval
from the FDA 15 not required unless the product includes a new food
additive In some countnes, regulatory approval may be required

for certan nutrtiona! products, Including infant formula and medical
nutntonal products

Araas of Focus

In 2013 and beyond, Abbott's signficant areas of therapeutic focus
will Include the {otlowang

Establshed Pharmaceuticals — Abbott 1s actively working on plans for
about 20 - 30 key brands Depending on the product, the development
actvities focus on new data, markets, formulations, combinations,

or Indications  Abbatt focuses on bulding country-specific porticlios
made up of global and local pharmaceutical brands that bast meel
each Jocal market's needs Ovar the next several years, Established
Pharmaceuticals will work to expand the market for many of its
products through registrations across muttiple geographies, including
key emerging markets
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Vasctdar — Ongoing projecis in the pipeline inchude

« Xience Xpedition, our next-generation drug-eluting stent (DES)
with enhanced delverabiity and an expanded size matrix It utiizes
the Xience PRIME stert, everolimus and biocompatible coating
technology but incorporates new catheter technology for improved
deliverabilty Xence Xpadition receved U S regulatory approval
in Decembar 2012 and Is also avalable m Europe and parts of
Asia and Latin Amenca Abbott expects to launch the product in
additional markets in 2013

* Absorb, the world's first drug eluting bioresorbable vascular
scaffold (BVS) device for the treatment of coronary artery disease
that 15 gradually resorbed Into the vessel wall In January 201 3
Abbott niliated the ABSORB |l chnical tnal which is designed to
enrall approxmately 2,250 patients of which the majonty will ba In
the U S The data from this tnal will be used to support theU S
regulatory filng of Absorb In 2011 Abbott released five-year data
from its ABSORB clinical tnal, which showed efficacy and safety
resulls consistent with the four-year data In 2011 after recemng
CE Mark approval for Absorb, Abbott ntated a randomized,
controtied chinical trial to further study the device In an expanded
population in Europe In 2010, Abbott nibated the ABSORB
EXTEND clinical tna! which will enrolt up to 1,000 patients with
more complex coronary artery disease

» MitraClip device for the treatment of mitral regurgitation -
Abbott's MitraClip system which is on the market in Europe and
In parts of Asta and Latin America Is currently under review for
approval by tha FDA An amended filing to the FDA was submitted
in December 2011 A FDA panel i3 expected to review the filing
in the first half of 2013

« Coronary and endovascular core product projects, including new
coronary and endovascular guids wires The Absolute Pro and
Omnifink Elte stent systems, both for the treatment of ilac artery
disease, a form of penpheral artery cisease that affects the lower
extremities, were launched mthe U S in 2012

Medical Optics - Abbott 1s developing & number of new products

for patients undergoing cataract surgery, which are designed to
improve physician efficiency and patent outcomes Atbott has devel-
oped advanced intraocular lenses (1OLs) that address astigmatism as
wall as prasbyopia The Tecris brand monofocal Tonc 0L, which 1s
soid In Europe, 1s currently undergoing U S reguiatory review A multi-
focal version of the Toric 10L was launched in a number of internatonal
markets in 2012 A preloaded IOL insertion system that 1s designed to
wmprove surgeon efficiency 1 also currently under regulatory review In
the U 8, the product was launched in Europe n 2012 Abbott 1s con-
tinuing the development actmties required to obtain U S approval for
an enhanced version of the Synchrony 10L which 1s designed to mimic
ihe eye's natural abidy 1o change focus and deliver improved vision at
all distances, this product was launched in Eurape in late 2012 Abbott
has also developed a new diagnostic instrument and laser treatment
planning software which 1s designed 1o Improve visual outcomes  After
the receipt of CE Mark approval in November 2011, this instrumant
and software wers launched m Europe in 2012 A PMA filing for U S
regulatory approval of this product was subrmitted in 2012
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Molacular Diagnostics — Vanous new molecular in vitro diagnostic (IVD)
products, inchuiding oncology and infectious disease assays and a next
generation Instrument system are in vanous stages of development
and commercialzation Abbott's companion diagnostic test for an
Al K gene rearrangement test for non-small-cell lung cancer has been
approved n mora than 40 countnes around the world In 2012,
companion diagnostic efforts waere expanded to include collaborative
efforts with muttiple major phammaceutical companies In the U s,

an assay to genotype HCV-infected patients to aid in the choice of an
appropnate therapy was submitied for regulatory approval Additional
assays for infectious diseases ncluding MTb and MTb drug resistance
are In development

Core Laboratory Diagnostics — Abbott 1s working on the development
of assays n vanous areas mcluding infectious disease, cardiac care,
fertility and metabolks, and on next-generation blood screening,
hamatology, and immunochemistry instrument systems Abbott 1s also
focusing on near-lerm launches of automation sotutions, such as ts
nexi-generation track systermn, ACCELERATOR a3800 to increase
efficiency in laboratones

Diabetes Care — In the first quarter of 2012, Abbotl obtained U S
regulatory approval for s FreeStyle Insulmx blood glucose monitonng
system ihat includas a touch-screen nterface and other features
designad to support the nsuln-using patient After receiving CE Mark
for this system in May 2011 and Haalth Canada approval In October
2011, Abbolt 1s continuing to provide R&D support as the preduct

is launched 1n additonal markets Development 15 also continuing on
an updated hospital blood glucose monitoning system for which a filing
for approval 1s projected o be submitted 1 the U S duning the first
half of 2013 Abbott 15 also developing a next-generalion monitonng
system under the Precision product platform and for which Abbolt
anticipates submitting filngs for approvat in vanous markets in the
sacond half of 2013

Nuirition - Abbott 1s focusing its research and development spend

on six banefit platforms that span the pediatnc, adult and performance
nutrition areas immunity, cognibon, lean body mass, inflammation,
metabolism and tolerance Numerous new products that buid on
advances in these benefit plalforms are currently under development
and ara expacted to be faunched over the coming years

Givan the diversity of Abbott's business, its intenbion to remain a
broad based healthcare company and the numerous sources for
potential future growth, no individual project 1s expecled to be matenal
to cash flows or resulis of oparations over the next five years Factors
considered included research and development expenses projected to
be incurred for the project over the next year relative to Abbott's total
research and developmant expanses as well as qualitatve factors,
such as marketplace perceptions and impact of a new praduct on
Abbott's overall market position Thera were no delays In Abbott's
2012 research and devalopment actvilies that are expected to have

a materal ympact on operations

While the aggregale cost to complete the numerous projects currently
in developmant is expected to be matenal, the total cost to complete
will depend upon Abbott's ability to successfully complete each
project, the rate at which each project acdvances, and the ultimate
timing for complation Given the potential for significant delays and
the high rate of failure inherent in the research and development of
new phamaceutical and medical device products and technologes,

it is not possible to accurately estimate the total cost to complete all
projects currently in development After tha separation of AbbVie,
Abbott plans to manags its portfolio of projects to achieve research
and development spend equal to approxmately 6 percent to 7 percent
of sales sach year Abbott does not regularly accumulate or make
managemant decisions based on the total expenses ncurred for a
particular development phase in a given penad

Busmness Combinations, Technology Acquisiions and
Related Transactions

On September 8, 2010, Abbott acquired Piramal Healthcare Limted's
Heatthcare Solutions business, a leader in the Indian branded genencs
market, for $2 2 bilkon, i cash, plus addtonal payments of $400 mllion
annually m 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 Abbolt recorded a $1 6 billion
kabilty for the present value of the addtional payments al the acquisition
date The acquisition was financed with cash The allocation of the fair
value of the acquisition resulted in the recording of $2 7 bilion of
deductible acqured intangible assets and $1 0 bilion of deductible
goodwill Acquired mtangible assets consist pnmanly of trade names,
customer relationships and associated nghts and are amortized over
an average of 19 years

In February 2010, Abbott acquired Solvay's pharmaceuticals business
{Solvay Pharmaceuticals) for approximately $6 1 tilhon, in cash, plus
additional payments of up 1o EUR 100 million per year if cortain sales
milestones are met in 2011, 2012 and 2013 Contingent consideration
of approximately $280 millon was recorded The acquisition of Solvay
Pharmacauticals provided Abbot! with a large and complementary
portioho of pharmaceutical products and expands Abbott's presence
in key global emerging markats Abbolt acqured control of this busi-
ness on February 15, 2010 and the financial results of the acquired
operations are ncluded in these financial statements beglnming on that
date Nt sales for the acquired operations for 2010 were approxi-
mately $3 1 billon Pretax loss of the acquired operations, including
acqulistion, integratian and restruclunng expenses, for 2010 was
approxmately $395 milllon The acquisition was fundad with cash and
short-term invastments The allocation of the fair value of the acquisi-
tion resuited n the recording of $2 2 biltion of non-deductible goodwal,
$4 1 bibon of non-deductible intang:bie assets, $500 million of non-
daductible acquired In process research and development assets, net
1angible assats of $700 millon and deferred incoma taxes of $1 1 bil-
lon Acquired intangible assets consist pnmanly of product nghts for
currently marketed products and are amortized over 2 to 14 years
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{average of 11 years) Acquired in-process ressarch and development
projects arg accounted for as indefinite lived intangible assets untl
regulatory approval or discontinuation The net tangible assels
acquired consist pnmanty of trade accounts recewvable of approxi-
mately $675 million, inventory of approximately $330 million, property
and equipment of approximately $725 million, net of assumed liabil-
ties, pnmarly trade accounts payable, accrued compensation and
other labilties

Had the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals taken place on

January 1, 2010, unaudited pro forma net sales, net earnings and
diuted earnings per share for 2010 would have been $35 8 billion,

%4 6 billon and $2 96, respactively The pro forma information includes
adustments for amortization of ntangible assets and fair value adjust-
ments to acquisdion-date invantory as wall as acquisition, mtegration
and restructurng expanses The pro forma financlal nformation 1s not
nacessanly indicative of the results of operations as they would have
been had the transaction been effected on the assumed date

In March 2010, Abbott acquired STARLIMS Technologias for approxi-
rately $100 million, in cash, net of cash held by STARLIMS, providing
Abbott with leading products and expertise to build its position in
laboratory infarmatics A substantial portion of the farr vatus of the
acquisition has been allocated to goodwill and amoertizable intangible
assets In Apni 2010, Abbott acquired the outstanding shares of
Facet Biotech Corporation for approximately $430 milion, in cash,

net of cash held by Facet The acquistion enhanced Abbott's early-
and md-stage pharmaceutical pipeline, including a biologic for
muitiple sclerosis and compounds that complement Abbott's oncology
program A substantial portion of the fair value of the acquisition was
allocated to acquired in-process research and davelopment that 1s
accounted for as an indsfinite-lived mtangible asset until regulatory
approval or discontinuation

Except for the acquisition of Solvay Pharmaceuticals, had the above
acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consoli-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly different
from reported amounts

Abbott's Propnetary Pharmaceutical Products segment has enterad
into varous collaboration research and development agreements

In 2012, Abbott acquired AP214, a drug under developmant for the
prevention of acute kidney inury associated with major cardiac surgery
in patients at Increased nsk, and as a result of this transaction, Abbott
recorded a charge to acquired in-process and coflaborations research
and development of $110 milion In addiion, in 2012, Abbott entered
info a global collaboration 1o develop and commerclalize an oral,
next-generation JAKT inhibitor in Phase |l development with the
potential to treat multiple autoimmune diseases, and as a result of
this transachon Abbott recorded a charge to acquired in-process and
collaborations rasearch and development of $150 mullon Additional
payments of approximately $1 2 bithon could be required for the
achtovement of certain development, regulatory and commercial
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milestones under this agresment  Undar another collaboration,
Abbotl was granted the nghts in 2012 to utdize up to three antibody-
drug conjugata cempounds and Abbaott recorded a charge to acquired
in-process and collaborations research and development of $28 mil-
on Addiional payments of approximately $220 milion for each
licensed compound could be required for the achievemeant of certain
development, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agree-
ment In connection with the acquisition of Solvay Pharmacaeuticals,
the achievement of a certain sales milastone resulted in a payment

of approximately $134 million in the first quarter of 2012 for which a
hability was previcusly established

During 2010 and 2011, Abbott entered into a senes of fransactions
with Reata Pharmaceuticals which included (1) a collaboration agree-
ment for the joint development and commercialization of second
generation oral antixadant inflammation modulators resulting m a
charge to acgured in-process and collaborations research and devel-
opment of $400 milion n 2011, {2) an agreement to acquire licensing
nghts outside the U S, excluding certain Asian markets, to bardoxo-
lone methyl, a product 1n development for the treatment of chronic
kidney disease resulting in a charge to acquired In-process and collab-
orations research and development of $238 milion n 2010 and {3} the
acauisiion of equily interests in Reata of $62 milllon each in 2011 and
2010 In 2011, certain milestones were achieved In the development
for the treatment of chronic kidney disease and charges to acquired
n-process and collaborations research and development of $188 mul-
hon ware recorded In the first quarter of 2012, $50 million of ressarch
and developrment expense was recorded related to the achievernent
of a clinical development milestone under the license agreement The
license agreement rmqguires additonal payments of up to $150 milion
if certain development and regulatory milestones associated with the
chronic kidney disease compound are achieved

On October 17, 2012 Reata informed Abbott that it 1s discontinuing
the Phase ill clinical studly for bardoxolone methyl for chronic kidney
disease Reata and Abbott wil closely sxamine the data from this
study to determine whether there 15 an appropnate path forward for
the development of bardoxclons mathyt In chronic kidney disease or
othar indications In the fourth guarter of 2012, Abbott recorded a
charge of approxmately $50 mififon for the impairment of the equity
invastment in Reata

In 2011, Abbott entered into an agreement with Biotest AG to develop
and commercialize a treatment for rheumato:d arthntis and psoniasis
resulting in a charge to acquired in-process and collaboratons
research and development of $85 millon Additional payments totakng
up to $395 mulon based on projected regulatory approval tmelines
could be required for the achievement of certain development, regula-
tory and commercial midestones under this agresment In 2010, Abbott
entered nto an agresment with Neurocnine Biosciences to develop
and commerciahze a product for the treatment of endometnos:s resutt-
Ing n a charge 1o acquired in-process and collaborations research and
development of $75 million Additional payments of approximately
$500 million could be required for the achrevement of certain develop-
ment, regulatory and commercial milestones under this agresment
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Goodwill

At Dacember 31, 2012, goodwill recorded as a result of business
combinations totaled $15 B billon Gooawill 1s reviewed for impalrment
annually or when an event that could resuft in an impairment occurs
The results of the last impatrment test indicated that the fair value of
each reporting unit was substantially in excass of its carrying value
axcept for the Medical Optics unit While the fair value of the Medical
Oplics business exceeds its carrying valus, extended economic pres-
sure on govemment-relmbursad cataract procedures m Europe and
on the global LASIK surgery business as well as longer regulatory
approval timelines for products currently under development could
result in a valuation in the future where the fair value of the Medical
Optics unit has declined below its carrying value, thereby triggenng the
requirernent to estimate the impled falr value of the goodwll and mea-
sure for impayment

Fiancial Condition
Cash Flow

Net cash trom aperating aclvibies amounted to $9 3 billion, $9 0 bilion
and $8 7 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectvely Trade accounts
payabla and other habilities in Net cash from operating activities in
2012 includes the payment of appreximately $1 5 billion related to

a htigation accrual recorded i 2011 This was partially offset by
increases in other labililies, pnmanly restructunng reserves Income
taxes payable n 2012 and 2011 includes $408 million and $580 mil-
lion, respectvely, of tax benefits related to the favorable resolution of
vanous tax positions pertaining to prior years While substantially all
cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 that will be retained
by Abbott after the separation and all cash and cash eguwalents at
December 31, 2011 and 2010 1s consilered remvestad indefinitely

n foreign subsidiaries, Abbott does not expect such rainvesiment to
affect its liqudity and capital resources If these funds were needed

for operations 1n the U S, Abbott would be required to accrue and
pay U S mcome taxes to rapatnate thess funds Abbott believes

that it has sufficient scurces of kquidity to support its assumption that
the disclosed amount of undistnbuted earnings al December 31, 2012
can ba considered to be reinvested indefinitely Abbott funded

$379 miflion in 2012, $394 mition 1n 2011 and $525 million in 2010 to
defined pension plans Abbott expects pension funding for its main
domestic penston plan of $170 millon in 2013, the decrease primarily
reflects the separation of AbbVie and the transfer of certain plan
assels and llabiities 10 AbbVie Abbott expects annual cash flow from
operating actavities 1o continue 1o exceed Abbott's capilal expenditures
and cash dividends

Far 2010, the reductions In ¢ash and cash equivalents dus to the
effect of exchange rate changes was pnmanly driven by the Impact

of changes in the value of the U S dotar compared to the auro on
nan-dallar denominated cash and cash equivalents While future fluc-
tuations in the value of tha U S dollar against forsign cunencies could
have a substantia) effect on the dollar value of Abbott's cash and cash
equivalents, such fluctuations are nol expected to matenally impact
Abbott’s iquidty

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2012, Abbott's long term debt rating was A+ by
Standard & Poor s Corporation and A1 by Moody's investors Service
In 2012, Abbott replaced unused lines of credit of $3 0 bition and

$3 7 billion that were to expire in Octaber 2012 and in 2013, respec-
tively, with two five year credit facities totaling $7 O billion that support
commercial paper bomowing arrangements One of the credit facilities
totaling $2 0 biliton will support AbbVie commerclal paper borrowings
after separation and expired for Abbott at the separation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013

In 2012, Abbott redeemed $7 7 billion of long-term notes in prepara-
tion for the separation of AbbVia from Abbott and repaid $1 billion

of long term notes that were due in 2012 In addition, Abbvie inc ,

a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, issued $14 7 bilhon of long-larm
notes that were guaranteed by Abbott untll AbbVie's separation from
Abbott on January 1, 2013 In 2011, Abbott repaid $2 0 billion of long
tenm notes using pamanty short-tarm bomowings Under a registration
statement filed with the Secunties and Exchange Commission in
February 2009, Abbotl 1ssued $3 0 billion of fong-term dabt in the sec-
ond quarter of 2010 with matunty dates In 2015, 2020 and 2040 and
Interest rates of 2 7 parcent, 4 125 percent and 5§ 3 percent, respec-
twvely The debt dusin 2015 was extinguished in 2012 Proceeds from
this debt were used to pay down shori-term borrowings

In Qctober 2008, the board of directors authonzed the purchase of up
to $5 bifion of Abbott's common shares from time to time  Under this
authonzation, 37 0 mithon and 14 8 malon shares weme purchased In
2012 and 2010 at a cost of approximately $2 2 billon and $800 mil-
hon, respeciively No shares were purchased under this authonzation
in 2011 Abbott plans to purchase shares from time to time in 2013

The judgment entered In 2009 by the US Distnct Court for the
Eastern District of Texas against Abbott in its liigation with New York
University and Centocor, Inc required Abbott to secure the judgment
in the avent that #s appeal io the Federal Circuit court was unsuccess-
fulin overturning the distnct court’s decision In the first quarter of
2010, Abbott deposited $1 87 billon with an escrow agent and con-
sidered thase assets to be restncted On February 23, 2011, the
Federal Circudt reversed the distnct court’s final jJudgment and found
Centocor's patent Invalid On April 25, 2011, Centocor petitioned the
Federal Circut to rehear and reconsider the decislon In June 2011
the Fedaral Circuit denied Centocor's petition and the restnctions on
the funds ware lifted




Financial Review

Working Capital

Working capital was $18 0 billon at December 31, 2012, $8 3 bilion
at Decembar 31, 2011 and $5 1 billon a! December 31, 2010 The
increase in working capital n 2012 was due pnmanly to higher cash
generated from operating actmties and higher cash and investments
as a rasult of the net 1ssuance of long-term debt m connaction with the
separation of AbbVie from Abbott The increase in working capital in
2011 was due pnmanly to higher cash generated from operating actmi-
ties and lower debt lovels The decrease In working capital in 2010
was due pnmarly to cash and investments used to acquire Solvay's
pharmaceuticals business and Piramal Healthcare Limited's Heatthcare
Solutions business

Substantally all of Abbott's trade recelvables i italy, Spain, Portugal,
and Greece are with governmental health systems Given the eco-
nomi; conditions and sovereign debt issues in these countnes, the
time it takes 1o collect outstanding recenvables increased n 2011

In 2012, collection timeas mproved relative to 2011 with the exception
of Greece Outstanding net governmental recevables in these coun-
tries at December 31, 2012 were

Net Percaniage Cver
{dfoltars i mithons} Recelvables One Year Past Dug
Haty $564 162
Spain 431 o8
Portugal 1 284
Greece 88 2040

With the excephion of Greece, Abbott histoncally has collected almost
all of the outstanding receivablas in these countnes Abbott continuas
to monitor the credit worthiness of customers located in these and
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other geographic areas and establishes an allowance against a trade
recevable whan it Is probable that the balance will not be collected

In additon to closely monitonng economic conditions and budgetary
and other fiscal developments in these countnaes, Abbott regularly
communicates with its customers regarding the slatus of receivable
batances, including their payment plans and obtains posve confima-
tion of the validity of the recevables Abbott also montors the potential
for and penodically has ublzed factonng arrangements to mitigate
credit risk atthough the receivables included in such arrangemaents
have histoncally not boen a matenal amount of total outstanding
recavables If government funding were to bacome unavailable in
these countnes or if significant adverse changes in their remburse-
ment practicas were to occur, Abbott may not be able to collect the
entire balance

Camital Expendilures

Capial expenditures of $1 8 billon in 2012, $1 5 bilkon in 2011

and 31 0 bilhon 1n 2010 were pnncipally for upgrading and expanding
manufactunng, research and development, and admnistratwve support
facilities in all sagments, investiments in information technology, and
laboratory instrumenis placed with customers

Contractual Obhgations

The table balow summarnzes Abbott's estimated contractual obligations
as of Decamber 31, 2012 The amounts do not reftect the separation of
AbbVie from Abbott on January 1, 2013 After the separation of AbbVie
from Abbott on January 1, 2013, pnneipal payments required on long-
term debt outstanding and retained by Abbott are $309 million In 2013
and $3 3 bilkon in 2019 and thereafter Payments on long-term debt to
be made by AbbVie, ncluding interest, total approximately $19 6 hilion

{doliars in mullrons) Payment Due By Penod
2018 and
Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
Long term debt, including curent maturities and future interest payments $26,403 $ 839 $ 5038 4,029 $15,586
Operating lease obhgations 795 146 234 170 245
Capiialized auto lease obligations 92 N 61 — -
Purchase commitments (a) 3154 3048 B8 1 17
Other lang-tarm labilibes reflected on the consolidated balance sheal —
Banefit plan obligations 5126 - 1,024 1149 2,953
Other 3869 - 3,682 32 156
Total (b) $39 439 $4 064 $10,128 $6,281 $18,966

{a} Purchasa cormmitments are for purchases made o the normal course of business to meet operaJonal end capral expenditure reguremen's

(b} Unrecognizad tax benel s to*aing $2 O bihon are excluded v the 1able shove BS Abbott 5 Unabig 16 reasonably estmale the penod of cash saitlemant with 1he respeciive taxng

euhortas on such rems
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Contingent Obligations

Abbott has penadically entered into agresments In the ordinary
course of business, such as assignment of product rights, with other
companies which has resulled in Abbott becoming secondarily lliable
for obhgations that Abbott was previously pnmarlly kable Since Abbott
no longer maintains a business retationship with tha other parties,
Abbott is unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential
amount of future payments, If any, under these obhgations Based
upon past expenenca, the ikelihood of payments under these agree-
ments 15 remote In addition, Abbott penadically acquires a business
or product nghts In which Abbott agrees to pay contingent consider-
ation based on attaining certain thresholds or based on the
occurrence of certain events

Lemslative Issues

In 2010, tha Patisnt Protection and Affordable Care Act and the
Health Care and Education Reconailiation Act (collectively referred
to herein as “health care reform legislation”) were signed into law in
the U S Health care reform legstation included an increase in the
basic Medicaid rebate rate from 15 1 parcent to 23 1 parcent and
extended the rebate to drugs provided through Medicaid managed
care grganizations

Begnning 10 2013, health care reform legislatron wall elminate the
federal meome tax deduction for prescnption drug expenses of retirees
for which Abbott receves reimbursement under the Medicare Part D
retiree drug subsidy program  As a result, Abbott recorded a charge of
approxamately $60 milion in the first quarter 2010 to reduce deferred
tax assels associated with retwes health care liabiities

$150

$100

$50
2007 2008 2009 2010

Assurming $100 nvested on 12/31/07 with dividends reinvested
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In 2011, Abbott began recording the annual fee Imposed by health
care reform legislation on companes that sell branded prascnption
drugs to specified govermment programs The amount of the annual
foe is based on tha ratio of cerlain of Abbott’s sales as compared to
the totat such sales of all covered enties multiplied by a fixed dollar
amount specified in the legislation by year In 2011, additional rebates
were Incurred related to the Madicane Part D coverage gap “donut
hale " Beginning in 2013, Abbott will record the 2 3 percent excise tax
impossd by health care reform legisiation on the sale of certain med:-
cal devices nthe U S

Abbott's pnmary markets are highly competitive and subject to sub-
stantial government regulations throughout the world Abbott expects
dabate to continue over the availabiity, method of delvery, and pay-
ment for health came products and services It 1s not possible Lo predict
the extent to which Abbott or the health care industry in general might
be adversely affected by these factors in the future A more complete
discussion of these factors 1s contained in item 1, Business, and ltem
1A, Risk Factors, to the Annual Report on Form 10-K

Private Secunties Liigation Reform Act of 1995 -
A Caution Concermng Forward-Looking Sialements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Secunties bitigation
Reform Act of 1985, Abbolt cautions investors that any forward-look-
Ing statements or projections made by Abbott, including those made
in this document, are subject to nsks and uncertaintles that may cause
actual results to differ matenally from those projected Economic, com-
petitve, governmental, technological and other factors that may affect
Abbott's operations are discussad in ltem 1A, Risk Faclors, to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K

Performance Graph

This graph compares the change

1n Abbott's curmulative total share-
holder return on its common shares
with the Standard & Poor's 500
Index and the Standard & Poors
500 Health Care Index
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Summary of Selected Financial Data
{oodars n mlons, excapt par shaig data}

Year Ended December 31 2012 2011 200 2000 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
Summary of Operations

Net Sales $308739 388513 351667 307647 295276 250142 224763 223378 196800 172803 152785
Cost of products sold $151197 155408 146652 132093 126120 11,4220 88151 106411 8,884 2 77742 582056

Research and development (5) $ 43222 41294 37244 27437 26881 2,5056 2,2553 18212 16988 1,823 8 147456
Safkng, general

and administrative $12,0505 127568 103763 B,4059 84356 7.4080 63407 5,496 1 49218 4808 1 37249
Cperating samings $ 80845 57519 60876 82357 56938 45785 20422 43823 3,8083 26740 3,1619
Interest expense $ 5924 5301 553 1 5167 5285 593 1 4162 2414 2002 188 3 2380
Intergst income $ 792 185 2} {105 5) (137 8) (201 2) (136 8} (123 8) (87 7) 51 1) 419 {33 5)
Other {income}, net {b) $ 13168 1586 620y (1,3755) [4897) {347 5) (528 5} (411 3) (376 4) (559 5} {374 4)
Eamngs from continuing

operations before taxes 562626 51986 57128 7.1838 5856 3 4,469 6 22764 46199 41258 3,387 2 33210
Taxes on sarnmgs from

continuing operations $ 2997 4702 1,0887 14479 11221 8633 5586 1,247 9 9498 882 4 7740
Earrings from

conbinuing operations $ 59629 47284 4,626 2 57458 47342 36063 1,7168 33721 31758 2504 7 2,547 0
Basic earnings per share

from continuing operations & 376 303 2498 37 306 234 112 217 203 160 163
Diluted earrengs per share

from continuing operations $ 372 3ol 296 369 303 23 112 216 202 159 162
Financial Position

Working capital $18,042 4 82885 50551 10,2844 51068 49395 6693 39705 39088 26509 2,1196
Long term investments $ 2736 J7s2 3020 11329 10737 11253 12299 1340 1458 406 4 2508
Net property and equipment  § B0B30 78740 79710 76195 72192 75181 6,946 4 50031 6,007 9 62818 58281
Total assets $67,2345 602768 H05739 52,5816 424192 39V139 361782 291412 2876875 250303 236927
Long term debt $1B0B53 120398 126235 11,2663 B7133 9487 8 T0007 45715 4,787 9 34523 42140
Sharaholders' investment $268132 24,5261 227651 231874 175167 17,8238 140542 144153 14,3258 130723 10,6646
Return on shareholders

investment from

continung operatons % 232 200 204 284 269 227 121 235 2318 226 280
Book value per share $ 1T 1562 14 53 1476 126 1147 914 937 918 836 682
Other Statistics

Gross profit margn % 621 600 583 571 573 559 563 52 4 6549 5650 554
Rasearch and developmant

to net sales % 108 106 106 89 91 a7 100 82 86 g4 a7
Net cash from

oparating actmlies

of continung operations $ 03144 89701 87360 72752 6994 6 51838 5,262 1 50474 43060 33852 38535
Capltal expendiures $ 17953 14915 10151 10800 12877 16562 13378 1,2075 1,20186 1050 1 11054
Cash dividends declared

per common share $ 1 67 192 176 160 144 130 118 110 104 098 094
Common shares

outstanding {in thousands) 1576667 1570379 1546984 1551168 1552433 1549910 1537,243 1539235 1,560,024 1564518 1563068
Number of

common shareholders 60476 62,939 64 413 67 461 69733 73176 77721 82 237 88,582 91212 94,687
Number of ermployees 92,939 91,922 91,440 72 868 68,838 68,697 66,663 59735 60617 58 181 57,819
Sales por employes (D dollars)  $429033 422655 384588 422,988 428943 377225 337163  373.94B 324,662 297010 264265
Marke! pnce per share — high S 7247 56 44 5679 57 39 6109 59 50 49 87 5000 4783 47 15 5300
Market price per share ~ low $ 5396 4507 44 59 4127 4575 4875 3918 3750 3826 3375 2980
Market phce per share —close 6550 5623 47 91 5399 §3 37 5615 4871 3943 4665 46 60 4000

{8) IN2012 2011 2010 2000 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 and 2001 Abbe ! biso recorded pre.ax chargas ol $288 $673 $313 $170 $2014 $17 $279 $100 $108and $1 330
respedtvely for acqured in process research and development

b} 2012 nchides $1 350 for the ne. kess on extngushment of deb




